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HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN CHINA

E-825, No. 6 Taiping Street

Xicheng District

Beijing 100050

China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Level 54

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Harneys Services (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Harbour Place

103 South Church Street

PO Box 10240, Grand Cayman
KY1-1002, Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN CAYMAN
ISLANDS

Harneys Services (Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Harbour Place

103 South Church Street

PO Box 10240, Grand Cayman

KY1-1002, Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
35/F, One Pacific Place
88 Queensway

Hong Kong
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LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong law
Shearman & Sterling

12th Floor

Gloucester Tower

The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong
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China Merchants Bank

2nd Floor, Tower A

156 Fuxingmennei Street
Xicheng District

Beijing, China
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nghllghts of the Year

January: Phoenix Oxford Cancer Center was established in
Yan Hua Hospital.

February: The 2016 Awards Ceremony of the Group’s
“Phoenix Innovation and Development Award of the
Chairman Foundation” was successfully held - An
innovative development to create a bright future with joint
effort.

March: The “P.H.G. Annual Academic Symposium
2016” successfully convened — Innovation accelerates
development, Clinical characteristics upgrade brand.

March: the donation and signing ceremony of “Peking
University X Phoenix Healthcare General Medical
Development Fund” was held in the conference center of
Peking University Health Science Center.

April: The thematic event “May Fourth Memorial, Phoenix
Take-off” was held by the Youth Committee of the Group -
Inherit culture, Consolidate forces.

August: The Group and CR Healthcare Group signed a
definitive agreement in relation to the acquisition of
hospital assets of CR Healthcare Group.

October: Two of our hospitals once again passed the
Joint Commission International (JCI) review, turning a
new chapter of the Group’s healthcare management —
An episode of passing the JCI certification by Jiangong
Hospital and Yanhua Hospital of the Group for the third
time.

October: Asset Restructuring of the Group and CR
Healthcare Group completed, and CR Healthcare Group
officially became the largest shareholder of the Group.

November: The Company and Pfizer signed a cooperation
agreement — Hand in hand to strive for development,
Alliance between giants to create a new chapter.

December: The Company and Peking University Health
Science Center cooperated to facilitate the development
of optometry — the signing ceremony of “CR Phoenix
Healthcare Optometry Development Fund” was
successfully held.
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th_irman’s Statement
EERMWE

Distinguished Shareholders,

2016 was a milestone on the path of the Group’s
development. Phoenix Healthcare Group Co., Ltd.
reorganized with CR Healthcare Group and was renamed
to China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Limited
(hereinafter referred as “CR Phoenix”). CR Healthcare
Group is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Holdings.
CR Holdings is a diversified conglomerate under the
administration of the State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of the State Council,
ranking the 91st among the Fortune 500 in 2016. Being
a long-term strategic shareholder of the Group, CR
Holdings is committed to the long-term development of
the Chinese healthcare industry. We believe that market-
oriented mechanisms will be maintained by the Group
after the reorganization. The effectively superposed and
complementary advantages of Shareholders are expected
to significantly enhance the Group’s core competitive
advantages, including capabilities in terms of industrial

mergers and acquisitions as well as resource integration.

Through the reorganization, our in-network hospitals
expanded from the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region after
the first time out of Beijing in 2015, to two of the most
economically-developed and populated regions, the Pearl
River Delta and the Pan-Yangtze River Delta, achieving
breakthroughs in development in terms of business scale
and network layout. Currently, CR Phoenix has 7 Grade
Il hospitals, 14 Grade Il hospitals, 27 Grade | hospitals,
55 community agencies via investment, management or
contractual arrangement more than 11,772 operational
beds and receives over 10 million outpatient visits per
year. Among which, revenue from medical institutions
under the Group’s operation and management amounted
to RMB5.926 billion which established our leading position

in China’s social-capital-run hospitals business.
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As at December 31, 2016, the Group recorded revenue of
RMB1.533 billion according to the international accounting

standards, representing a year-on-year increase of 11.7%.

In 2016, the Group completed the acquisition of equity
interests of Ample Mighty. The acquisition was completed
by issuing new shares based on the fair value of the
net identifiable assets of the target company at the
price of HK$8.04 per share. However, according to the
requirements of the IFRSs, the Group should, on the date
of completion of the acquisition, determine the goodwill
arising from the acquisition in respect of the difference
between the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
acquired assets and the fair value of the consideration
paid for the acquisition. The fair value of the consideration
paid for the acquisition is usually determined based on
the close price of the Company’s shares of the completion
date (the shares closed at HK$12.34/share on that day).
As a result, the Group increased the goodwill for the above
acquisition by approximately RMB1.7 billion. Considering
that there were no substantive changes in the acquired
assets during this period, the Group decided to make
full provisions for the impairment of the increase in
goodwill (approximately RMB1.7 billion) according to the
requirements of the IFRSs. Hence the Group recorded a
loss attributable to shareholders in 2016. Such impairment
loss for goodwill was purely a result of an accounting
treatment based on the requirements of the IFRSs as well
as a one-off non-cash profit or loss item on the income
statement without any impact on the daily operation or

cash flow of the Group.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EERME

After the inclusion of the aforesaid goodwill impairment,
the amount of loss from principal operations attributable
to shareholders of the Group in 2016 was RMB1.507 billion.
Excluding the aforesaid impairment loss for goodwill and
restructuring cost, net profit attributable to shareholders
was RMB250 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of 28.9%.

2016 was both the first year of the “Thirteenth Five-Year”
period and an important year for the healthcare reform.
Government authorities successively rolled out significant
medical reform policies to promote the introduction of
social capital into the healthcare industry, hence boosting
the benign development of Chinese healthcare services
industry as a whole. The rigid demand for healthcare
services was also significant and maintained an

accelerated growth.

Looking forward, the healthcare services industry is
expected to become one of the industries with the most
promising growth potential. Consumption upgrading and
an aging population will create a sustainable growth in
needs for the development of the industry. We expect that
elderly population aged 60 or above in China will reach
240 million by 2020, and with the continuous increase
in disposable income per capita, diversified demand for
high-quality healthcare services and demand from the
elderly population in terms of rehabilitation care, elderly
care and preliminary care will be increasingly prominent,
thereby driving sustained growth of the medical and

healthcare services industry.
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Dr. Fu Yuning, Honorary Chairman of the Group,
has put forward the philosophy of “Benefit all with
benevolence and competence” (“{= 012 flf » EIE X T").
In 2017, our priorities will be focused on four aspects: 1)
actively seizing policy and market opportunities, adhering
to the entrepreneurial spirit, and expanding the scale
of business through new mergers and acquisitions as
well as IOT model etc., to obtain more operational beds;
2) accelerating integration, improving the operational
efficiency of our in-network hospitals and enhancing
financial returns; 3) strengthening development of
disciplines, raising the level and reputation of healthcare
services of our in-network hospitals and solidifying
the “ingenuity” (“[E /»”) spirit; 4) upgrading healthcare
services quality and compliance management. The above
mentioned strategies will help us build a solid foundation
for our sustainable development into a time-honored and

internationally recognized hospital group.

Last but not least, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to the Shareholders, Directors, management and
staff of CR Phoenix.

Wang Yin
Chairman
China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Company Limited

Chairman’s Statement
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() CHINA HEALTHCARE SERVICES

INDUSTRY

At present, China has stepped into aging society.
Driven by various factors such as steady progress of
urbanization, sustained growth of disposable income
per capita, continuous improvement of medical
technologies and social security, the healthcare
market in China is huge and is growing rapidly.
According to the National Health and Family Planning
Development Statistical Bulletin ({(EEMTEIEES
¥ BRI AR ), healthcare consumption in China
amounted to RMB4,058.77 billion in 2015, sustaining
at 12.53% CAGR for the past five years. This, however,
only accounted for 6.0% of the GDP and was below
the average of higher-income and middle-income
countries. Given the enormous base of population
and consumption, the Chinese healthcare market still
has significant room to grow. According to the target
proposed in the “13th Five-Year Plan for Healthcare”
(Guo Fa [2016] No. 77)("+=F" HEE@ERAE) &
2%[2016]77%%), by 2020, total healthcare expenditure
in China will account for 6.5% to 7.0% of the GDP and
the healthcare market will reach a size of RMB6.2 to
RMB6.7 trillion.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Meanwhile, the in-depth development of the national
healthcare system reform is underway and focuses
on providing preliminary healthcare services to all
residents based on the principle of “maintaining
basic coverage, enhancing capabilities of lower
level medical institutions and facilitating system
and mechanism”, it aims to develop three medical
linkages between healthcare, medical insurance and
medication (“=EE”). The coverage of the national
healthcare protection is expanding. The public
hospital reform entered a crucial period in which
structural innovations under the concept of “divesting
public service units from government” continued
to progress. While assuring the accessibility and
affordability of national preliminary healthcare
services, the healthcare reform aims to better satisfy
the multi-level and diversified needs of the public.
These initiatives accelerate the progress in the
structural reform of public hospitals, and largely
encourage the investment of private capital in the
healthcare industry. Driven by the healthcare reform,
private capital will identify numerous opportunities
arising from the reform of public hospitals, output of
professional hospital management, development of
hospital groups network, differentiated healthcare
services and combination of elderly care and
rehabilitation. The development trend and policy
orientation of the China’s healthcare services
industry provides a favorable environment for
hospital management groups with rich experience in
healthcare reform and scale advantages.

The year 2016 is the opening year of China’s “13th
Five-Year Plan”. The PRC government has launched
a series of significantly favorable policies in areas
of state-owned enterprises reform and healthcare
system reform:
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEE WD

1. The state-owned enterprises reform. Based
on the “Guidance on Deepening State-owned
Enterprises Reform” (Zhong Fa [2015] No.22)
(P HPREABRERR CEELEXRENEEER
B) H#£[2015]225%), which requires to accelerate
to divest social obligations and hospitals
established by state-owned enterprises,
the State Council of the PRC further issued
the “Notice on Accelerating to Divest Social
Obligations and Historical Issues” (Guo Fa [2016]
No.19) (AR ENE IR M BB A Pt SR AEM
RRELIEERBETHERZMNEN) B3[2016]19
%%). The Notice requires that medical institutions
established by state-owned enterprises shall
be categorized and divested by various ways
including transfering, merging, restructuring
or introducing professional management, or
government procurement services etc., which,
or together with the centralized management,
should be accomplished by the end of 2018;
it is encouraged to explore models such as
government procurement services and involving
private capital into the restructuring of medical
institutions established by state-owned
enterprises.

2. The healthcare system reform. As a guidance for
the healthcare development in China during the
“13th Five-Year Plan”, the “13th Five-Year Plan for
Healthcare” ({"+=H" FHEBEERZI)) requires
to devote great endeavors to the development of
private hospitals, and the formation of diversified
healthcare services model. The plan encourages
private sector’s involvement in the healthcare
services business, promoting the development
of professional hospital management groups and
high-level private medical institutions.

The major policies of state-owned enterprises reform
and deepening healthcare system reform have
created unprecedented opportunities for the leaping
development of professional hospital management
groups in China. It is expected in the next 2 to 3 years,
the PRC government and state-owned enterprises
will further expand the scope of healthcare reform.
During this critical window period when two reform
policies converge, the Group will further consolidate
its leading position in China healthcare industry by
accelerating its mergers and acquisitions as well as
integration.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEER WD

(1) GROUP DEVELOPMENT REVIEW (Z)EEERERE

In 1988, 12 doctors, with entrepreneurial ambition,
established Traumatic Hospital of Jilin, marking
the first step of CR Phoenix into the healthcare
industry, as well as a breakthrough of private
capital’'s investment into China’s healthcare market.
Despite the challenges during the past 28 years,
being the pioneer in this sector, the Group has
always been maintaining its enthusiasm, prudence,
high-efficiency, pragmatic entrepreneurship and
passion. With its extensive experience in hospital
investment and operation and management through
long-term practices, the Group has established a
set of experience-based hospital operation and
management systems, along with a high quality and
experienced management team. Our “collective,
market-oriented, integrated and industrialized”
development pattern has enabled us to become the
largest professional hospital group in the capital
markets of China and Hong Kong.

In 2016, the Group successfully accomplished the
strategic reorganization with CR Healthcare Group,
which significantly expanded our hospital network
and business scale. By leveraging the brand effect of
“CR Holdings” as a key state-owned enterprise and its
diversified industry resources, along with our Group’s
market-oriented mechanism and mature operational
capabilities, this reorganization greatly enhanced the
Group’s competitive advantages, which laid a solid
foundation for improving the operational efficiency of
existing hospitals and accelerating the expansion of
our hospital group network.

After the reorganization, our operation and
management team remained stable and adhered
to our original operation mode and development
strategy. At the same time, Dr. Fu Yuning, chairman
of CR Holdings and Mr. Wang Yin, vice chairman of
CR Holdings, served as the honorary chairman and
chairman of the Group respectively, which reflects
that CR Holdings highly values and supports the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEE WD

After the reorganization, 103 medical institutions
are under the Group’s investment, management or
contractual arrangement, with nearly 11,772 beds in
operation, widely spread over key regions including
Beijing, North China, East China, Central China and
South China. With 7 Grade Ill hospitals, 14 Grade Il
hospitals, 82 Grade | hospitals and clinics, we provide
a full range of multi-level healthcare services such
as clinical diagnosis and treatment, healthcare
management, public health and a combination of
medical treatment and elderly care.

In 2016, medical institutions under the Group’s
operation recorded total revenue of RMB5.926 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 96.3%; with
7.774 million patient visits in total, representing a
year-on-year increase of 64.2%.

In 2016, the Group completed the acquisition of
equity interests of Ample Mighty. The acquisition
was completed by way of issuing new shares based
on the fair value of the net identifiable assets of
Ample Mighty and at the price of HK$8.04 per share.
However, according to the requirements of IFRSs,
the Group should determine the goodwill arising
from the acquisition in respect of the difference
between the fair value of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired assets and the fair value of the
consideration. The fair value of the consideration for
the acquisition is usually determined based on the
closing price of the Company’s shares as of the date
of completion (the shares closed at HK$12.34/share
on the date of completion). As a result, the Group
increased the goodwill for the above acquisition
by approximately RMB1.7 billion. Considering that
there were no substantive changes in the acquired
assets during this period, the Group decided to make
full provisions for the impairment of the increase in
goodwill (approximately RMB1.7 billion) according to
IFRS. Hence, the Group recorded a loss attributable
to shareholders in 2016. Such impairment loss
for goodwill was purely a result of an accounting
treatment based on IFRS as well as a one-off non-
cash profit or loss item on the income statement
without affecting the daily operation and cash flow of
the Group.
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After the inclusion of the aforesaid goodwill
impairment, the amount of loss from principal
operations attributable to shareholders of the Group
in 2016 was RMB1.507 billion. Excluding the above
impairment loss for goodwill and the restructuring
costs, net profit attributable to shareholders was
RMB250 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of 28.9%.

(1) POSITIONING AND BUSINESS MODEL

Hospital group is our unique and explicit industry
orientation in China’s healthcare industry.

As a hospital group, our high quality, differentiated
and multi-level healthcare services are able to
cover stable and large population, which is our
unique advantage compared with other industries,
and anchor us as the core and hub in China’s “Big
Healthcare” industry. Hospital groups have huge
industrial expansion opportunities and derived values,
along with their traditional industrial value. Using the
hospital group as the base, we will expand upstream
and downstream within the industry, thus enrich our
business model of “hospital group+”, i.e. “hospital
group + GPO” “hospital group + physician company”,
“hospital group + internet healthcare’, “hospital group
+ medical insurance”, “hospital group + elderly care”,
“hospital group + UCC” etc. These newly derived
values will maximize the value of the hospital group
as a whole. In 2017, among all the above derived
models, we will focus on developing the physician
company business, in addition to the GPO business
already in operation.

Our Group has well-structured profit models,
including operational revenue and derived revenue
from hospital group, among which:

1. Operational revenue from hospital
group

(1) General healthcare services

The revenue is derived from the provision of
healthcare services to patients by the profit-
making medical institutions invested and
managed by the Group.
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(2) Hospital management and consulting

services

The Group invests in not-for-profit hospitals,
and will enter into consulting or management
agreements with the sponsors of the
invested hospital (or invested hospitals) to
establish consulting business relationships
or obtain management rights. Pursuant
to these agreements, our Group provides
consulting or management services to
the invested hospitals, and is entitled to
receive consulting or management fees. Our
investment in not-for-profit hospitals can
be divided into two models: (i) to acquire the
sponsorship of the target hospital through
investment, such as our investments in
Guangdong 999 Brain Hospital, Wugang
Hospital Group, Huaikuang Hospital Group
and Xukuang Hospital. (ii) to acquire the
management rights of the invested hospitals
through investment, such as I0T investments
in Yan Hua Hospital Group, Jing Mei Hospital
Group, Mentougou Hospital Group, etc..

Revenue from hospital management and
consulting services also contains revenue
from the collective management of supply
chain of the invested hospitals. By establishing
professional supply chain management
companies, our Group has set up an integrated
supply chain management system involving
upstream pharmaceutical distributors and
in-network hospitals. Our supply chain
management services enable all participants,
including in-network hospitals, manufacturers
and distributors, to benefit from improved
efficiency and reduced cost. Our supply chain
management companies charge upstream
suppliers and in-network hospitals (included
in the management fee from hospitals)
management fee, which is counted as other
income from hospital management services.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Derived revenue from hospital group
The derived revenue from the hospital group
represents the revenue derived from the
Group’s diversified business within the “Big
Healthcare” strategy including but not limited
to GPO business, physician company business,
mobile medical business, combination of
medical treatment and elderly care business and
combination of medical treatment and insurance
business. Currently, the derived revenue of the
Group principally includes the revenue from the
GPO business. It is expected that, subsequent to
the year of 2017, the derived revenue of hospital
group such as physician group business, UCC
business, combination of medical treatment and
elderly care business and combination of medical
treatment and insurance business would be
gradually realized.

(1) GPO (Group Purchasing Organization)

By unleashing the scale advantages of the
hospital group and referring to the mature
international GPO experience, our Group
consolidates the procurement needs of
medical and non-medical supplies of our in-
network hospitals. With these consolidated
needs, we negotiate with upstream
manufactures and distributors, so as to
significantly cut the purchase cost which
constitute our derived revenue from GPO
business. According to the regulations from
the PRC government, medical institutions
shall purchase pharmaceuticals and medical
consumables at the “bidding price” stipulated
by the local authorities. As a result, the
benefit derived from our GPO model is not
able to directly form the operating income
of hospitals. Instead, it was presented
as revenue of our Group’s GPO platform,
constituting the derived revenue from GPO
business.

2.
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(2) Physician company

Leveraging our hospital network, internal
physicians and external renowned experts,
the Group established a physician company
called Beijing Easylife, in order to realize its
scale advantage and utilize various medical
resources. Certain specialty physician
groups under Beijing Easylife such as
ophthalmology, traumatology, anorectology,
pain management and traditional Chinese
medicine had already been established.
By providing consultation to certain
departments of our in-network hospitals,
the physician company enhances its service
scale and operating results, thereby sharing
the increased profit of these departments.
It is expected that our physician company
business will expand to external hospitals
and generate revenue accordingly.

We are planning to expand the scale of our
physician company business, by gathering
physicians from both in-network hospitals
and external hospitals, and directly investing
in mature physician companies, and evolving
into an innovative business system with
extensive professional disciplines, broad
service scope and adequate specialists.
Under our physician partnership, the Group
provides internal and external professionals
a platform to promote their individual values
and realize their financial benefits, from
which our Group will greatly benefit from
competent human resources, promotion of
operation standards, extension of service
scope and enhancement of profitability.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016
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(3) UCC (Urgent Care Clinic)

Featured with the organization structure
of “horizontal integration of chains and
vertical integration of linkage”, the Group has
established the RIDS (Regional Integrated
Delivery System) network leveraging the
regional Grade lll, Grade Il, Grade | and in-
network community clinics, thus establishing
a new modernized clinic chain group, namely
Beijing Phoenix Easylife Healthcare Clinical
Management Co., Ltd. In order to increase
local patients’ accessibility and affordability
for healthcare services covered by the RIDS
system, UCC makes reference to the service
charge of public community clinics and
adopts the national healthcare insurance as
the principal payment method. Through the
expanded coverage of community healthcare
services and the establishment of multi-level
diagnostic and treatment system, we have
introduced high-quality healthcare resources
into the community clinics. The Group has
thus become the key access to multi-level
diagnostic and treatment and the gatekeeper
of residents’ health, which provides favorable
pre-conditions for our development into the
upstream and downstream sectors along
the healthcare industry, such as medical
insurance, rehabilitation, nursing and elderly
care services.
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(IVINVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT

STRATEGY

The year 2017 is a critical period when policies of
deepening to divest auxiliary business from state-
owned enterprises and healthcare reform converge
are introduced. The “Work Notice on Accelerating to
Divest Social Obligations and Historical Issues of
State-owned Enterprises” (Guo Fa [2016] No.19) El
BEERENBMRANEEEE CEP LSRN B RE
SEFRBEIFATRNVEAN) (B #[2016]1195) issued
by the State Council of the PRC clearly states that
“medical, education, municipal, fire safety, community
management and other institutions established by
state-owned enterprises shall be categorized and
be divested by various ways including transfering,
merging, restructuring or introducing professional
management, government procurement services”,
which, or together with the centralized management,
should be accomplished by the end of 2018”. As a
professional investment operation platform of the
healthcare industry which enjoys the integrated
benefit of both status backed by state-owned
enterprises and market-oriented mechanism, the
Group will firmly grasp the historical opportunities
arising from the merger and acquisition of state-
owned hospitals. Leveraging the first-mover
advantages and the leading position in the industry,
the Group will speed up the merger and acquisition
as well as integration relying on its strong capability
in post-investment management and mature
management system on hospital groups, with an aim
to further consolidate the leading position of Chinese
hospital groups and broaden the gap with its market
competitors. Meanwhile, the Group will continue
to make systematic improvements on the existing
hospitals operation so as to constantly enhance
the operation quality and efficiency of in-network
hospitals and effectively increase the operating
income and derived revenue of hospital groups. The
main development strategies include:
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Focus on enhancing the standard of
key disciplines

Based on our Group’s six innovative clinical
discipline development methodologies, including
multi-level management of clinical disciplines,
clinical human resources development, clinical
academic development, clinical specialty
disciplines development, clinical disciplines
assessment and organization of clinical
disciplines development, our Group fully utilizes
its collective resources, and builds more clinical
discipline platforms for internal medical experts,
supports and duplicates our current key clinical
disciplines. With the rapid development of all
clinical disciplines across the Group, we will
focus on the development of our clinical brand
disciplines, such as brain surgery, cancer center,
cardiovascular, minimal invasive surgery and
ophthalmology, etc.

Focus on reform on hospitals of
state-owned enterprises and public
hospitals

Our Group continues to regard hospitals of state-
owned enterprises and public hospitals in key
developed regions with large population as our
primary targets of merger and acquisition, by
way of shareholder reform or IOT model. We will
consolidate our competitive advantage in China’s
healthcare market, and further expand our
business and realize economies of scale.
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Focus on developing of regional
integrated delivery system (RIDS)
Healthcare services have typical regional attributes.
In a relatively closed region with concentrated
population, the medical insurance payment
standards are usually identical. Our expansion,
collectivized management and systematic
development can only be realized by the integration
of regional medical resources. Our Group will
provide reliable, efficient, affordable and life-cycle
healthcare services to the public by development
of integrated healthcare services network, which
consists of preliminary healthcare, treatment of
acute disease, rehabilitation and nursing care.
During the realization of effective allocation of
medical resources, the dependence and loyalty of
patients accumulates, which will enable long term
and sound development of our Group.

Focus on developing high-quality
industrial resources

Through establishing close partnership with
medical schools, enterprises and external experts
in various ways such as cooperation, joint venture
and equity participation, the Group can exploit
the resources advantage of its partners in areas
such as technology, management, education,
brand, talent and merger and acquisition,
making a concerted effort in achieving a win-win
situation. The Group plans to establish a flagship
hospital within the next 5 years as CR Phoenix’s
technology and resources platform, integrating
medical, scientific research, education and
information services, so as to guide and
coordinate the development of CR Phoenix’s
national resources and RIDS system, which would
facilitate the overall enhancement of the Group’s
medical standards.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016
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5. Focus on expanding international

medical cooperation

In 2017, the Group will deepen cooperation with
internationally-renowned medical institutions on
basis of the academic cooperation with Peking
University Healthcare Science Centre and other
quality academic resources. Through cooperation
in terms of brand, technology, talent and
education among the international healthcare
market, the Group will enhance the brand image,
academic standard and service capability of our
in-network hospitals. In addition, the Group will
actively identify high-quality overseas merger and
acquisition projects so as to seek opportunities
of resources integration from the international
healthcare industry and achieve synergy with our
PRC operation.

Focus on enhancing core
competitive edges

With over 30 years’ practice in healthcare
services market as private capital, the Group
has developed its five major competences of
“understanding policy, capturing opportunities,
solving problems, innovation and integrating into
the market”, which gradually shaped our unique
and overwhelming core competitive edges, mainly
being embodied as follows:

— adhering to the initial vision and
sustainable entrepreneurship. Pursuing the
entrepreneurship from the beginning, the
Group has always been adhering to its initial
vision and sustainable entrepreneurship over
the past 30 years. Following the reorganization
of China Resources and our Company, we
cherish the year 2017 as the first year of our
second venture, indicating our committed
entrepreneurship and unshaken will of
pursuing to be a time-honored medical brand
and a perpetually sustainable company.
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organic integration of status backed by
state-owned enterprises and market-
oriented mechanism. The reorganization of
China Resources and our Company achieved
an effective upgrade of the Group’s existing,
highly effective and pragmatic market-
oriented mechanism with the synergy of the
brand, capital and industrial resources of
large state-owned enterprises in China. This
will significantly enhance the Group’s core
competitive edges including the capability
in industrial merger and acquisition and
resources integration.

operating capability of hospital groups
accumulated over the past 30 years. The
Group’s operating capability was built
upon the long-term practice in hospital
operation and management, as well as the
competent hierarchy of hospital operation
and management talents, sophisticated,
standardized and modularized hospital post-
investment management system.

economies of scale and resources sharing
within hospital groups. The Group established
an operation system at the group level
aiming to achieve economies of scale
and resources sharing so as to carry out
standardized management among in-network
hospitals and pursue synergy. It aims at
developing advantages in efficiency, quality
and technology that outperforms individual
hospitals, which in turn facilitate the flow
of and sharing medical resources and
management resources among in-network
hospitals.
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On December 28, 2016, Dr. Fu Yuning, the honorary
chairman of the Group and the chairman of CR
Holdings, designated the philosophy of “benefit all
with benevolence and competence” (“{=Z 0= 1if © B
EXT"”) for the Group, which highlights the devotion
to social responsibility. The Group will adhere to the
fundamental pursuit of medical profession which
are benevolence and fully integrate its advantages
in brand, resources, experience and teamwork to
improve the diagnosis and treatment, operating
efficiency and service quality of the existing medical
institution network and provide patients with high
quality healthcare services. The Group will fully
unleash its experience in public hospital reform to
rapidly expand its market presence by exploring
various key regions across China, develop a regional
and integrated high quality collaborative healthcare
system and expand the scale of the healthcare
industry. The Group will uphold the philosophy of
“facilitating the development of healthy China
with the efforts of market and industry”. It adheres
to the entrepreneurship strategy and constantly
participates in the reform of public hospital system
and institutions, aiming to achieve the goal of being a
world-class healthcare group. Bearing the philosophy
of establishing a time-honored brand and benefiting
millions of people, the Group will also adhere to
such benevolence together with the initial vision of
entrepreneurship in pursuing excellence, thereby
achieving a perpetually sustainable healthcare
services business.
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SERE  EERBINBEEES

List of Medical Institutions under the Group’s

28

investment, management or contractual arrangement ik
Grade Il Grade Il Grade | Community
Hospital Hospital Hospital and Medical Total
Province =RER —iREER — ==l HEMEEDR
Beijing b= 2 6 11 36 55
Hebei Ak 1 1 2
Jiangsu L&k 1 1
Anhui ZH 1 6 13 5 25
Hubei il 2 3 13 18
Guangdong E=R 1 1 2
Total a5 7 14 27 55 103

OPERATIONAL INDICATORS OF
MEDICAL INSTITUTIONS MANAGED
BY THE GROUP

During the Reporting Period, medical institutions
managed by the Group (Jian Gong Hospital, Yan
Hua Hospital, Jing Mei Hospital Group, Mentougou
Hospital, Mentougou Traditional Chinese Medicine
Hospital, Mentougou Hospital for Women and
Children, Shunyi District Konggang Hospital, the
Second Hospital of Shunyi District, Baoding Third
Centre Hospital, Guangdong 999 Brain Hospital,
Wugang Hospital Group, Huaikuang Hospital Group,
Xukuang Hospital and 999 Clinic) achieved a total
revenue of RMB5.926 billion, representing a year-on-
year organic increase of 7.4% (The total revenue of
above-mentioned medical institutions amounted to
RMB5.518 billion in 2015).

The total revenue of medical institutions managed
by the Group in Beijing for the healthcare operation
amounted to RMB3.339 billion and the total number
of patient visits was 5,160,136, representing a year-
on-year increase of 9.8%. The number of inpatient
visits amounted to 73,062, representing a year-on-
year increase of 13.5%. The number of outpatient
visits amounted to 5,087,074, representing a year-
on-year increase of 9.7%. The average spending per
inpatient visit amounted to RMB16,850, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 1.2% whereas the average
spending per outpatient visit amounted to RMB400,
representing a year-on-year increase of 2.8%. The
average length of stay was 16.29 days, representing a
year-on-year decrease of 12.4%. The number of beds
in operation was 3,750, representing a year-on-year
increase of 2.1%. The bed utilization rate was 88.0%,
representing a year-on-year increase of 1.1%.

BEE

RBEHE AEEBRESENER
g (1L5%Bm~;a;1t%|1* oEE
BB FIEEERl FEEE
hEEEERT - PISEBE BRI RAERR ~ JE
EZEETBER EREE -ER - R
EMHE=FOLER - ER=NIKRIE
BT RIMEPREE - EREREE -
BRIEBRR - = NAMZH) GFTERE
¥XBARMES9.268T 0 RRBR=E
7.4% (2015F LB BEHESTTE
HEHEEKINAARYKSS.18(ETT) ©

AEBRANELEERBESITTERE
¥ ARMIIIMET  BRMBZ AR
5,160,136 » [@LLER9.8% ; X F
2 AN X73,062 0 [& Lk R13.5% ;
FIs2 32 A)X5,087,074  ELLIE R
9.7% ; (¥R IR E R ARKRY16,850
7t BEHTHE1.2%: 298
A AR®400 RLIER2.8% ;
FHYEE XH16.298 © B T
12.4% ; & & 5 Ik 8 £3,7505 >
BB R2.1%; FHEKRNLEHRR
88.0% ' EILLIER1.1% °
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The total revenue of medical institutions managed by
the Group outside Beijing for the healthcare operation
amounted to RMB2.587 billion and the total number
of patient visits was 2,613,837, representing a year-
on-year increase of 1.6%. The number of inpatient
visits amounted to 160,582, representing a year-on-
year increase of 2.1%. The number of outpatient visits
amounted to 2,453,255, representing a year-on-year
increase of 1.6%. The average spending per inpatient
visit amounted to RMB11,048, representing a year-
on-year increase of 3.6%. The average spending per
outpatient visit amounted to RMB286, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 2.0%. The average length
of stay was 11.56 days, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 3.2%. The number of beds in operation
was 6,134, representing a year-on-year increase of
1.4%. The bed utilization rate was 86.8%, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 4.0%.

The following table sets forth the specific operating
data of our medical institutions managed by the Group
(Excluded physical examination):

Jian Gong Hospital

EEER WD

AEERIMELEBERBETTERE
¥IMARB25.87B T BB AKX
2,613,837 » [ELLER1.6% ; 1EFTH
2 AX160,582 BB R2.1% ;
FI2 32 A)X2,453,255 ' ELLIE R
1.6% ; FRXIEIER ARKY11,048
gt B R3.6%; FAR2 X ER
AER#2867T » ELE TFE2.0% ; F19
FEXE11.56H B TF%3.2% ;
ELRKHE6,134K BLLHER
1.4% ; IR A %86.8% @ [F
bt TB8#4.0% ©

rEBELEFERBNARELCHIE
WT R (FEER) -

Patient visits B2 AR times
Inpatient visits FERBMPZ AKX times
Outpatient visits FIZRB AR times
Average spending per inpatient visit  {EfT.X¥IEH  RMB
Average spending per outpatient visit FIR2X#9%MA RMB

Average length of stay
Number of beds in operation

2.

$i’/]'f;aagi§ﬂ day
BERAKRHEE  bed

Yan Hua Hospital

AR% T

2=k

2016 2015 Change

20165  2015% ]
AR 838,934 788,407 6.4%
AR 11,943 11,689 2.2%
AR 826,991 776,718 6.5%
17,969 19177 (6.3)%
454 438 3.7%
H 9.5 9.5 0.0%
[ 396 407 (2.7)%

Patient visits B2 AR times AJX 1,003,933 953,279 5.3%
Inpatient visits FRRFEZ AR times AKX 17,921 16,103 11.3%
Outpatient visits FIE2RE2 AR times AR 986,012 937,176 5.2%
Average spending per inpatient visit {FfTRIEHR RMB AR¥rx 16,883 16,817 0.4%
Average spending per outpatient visit FIR2R¥IER RMB AR¥TT 487 467 4.3%
Average length of stay FHEEBRE day = 14.0 15.1 (7.3)%
Number of beds in operation EZLE®WKEE  bed iR 663 663 0.0%
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3. Jing Mei Hospital Group 3. RESEEHAER

2016 2015 Change

20165  2015%F 1R iE
Patient visits M2 AR times  AJR 1,249,674 1,119,488 11.6%
Inpatient visits B2 AR times AR 24,802 21,302 16.4%
Outpatient visits PR AR times AR 1,224,872 1,098,186 11.5%
Average spending per inpatient visit {¥BX¥IEA RMB AR 17,884 17,956  (0.4)%
Average spending per outpatient visit FI2X¥9EA RMB AR 443 427 3.7%
Average length of stay FHEERE  day = 24.9 311 (19.9)%
Number of beds in operation BERKRHEE  bed E 1,789 1,742 2.7%

4. Mentougou Hospital

4. FIHEEER

Patient visits
Inpatient visits
Outpatient visits

Average spending per inpatient visit
Average spending per outpatient visit

Average length of stay

Number of beds in operation

5. Mentougou Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital

M2 AR

EBR R AR
FI P AR
ERXHIER
SEVN=E- 3
FIFERE

times AKX 717,410
times AKX 11,459
times AKX 705,951
RMB AR®¥rx 17757
RMB AR¥T 367
day H 11.9
bed R 466

654,241
10,036
644,205
17,207
343

12.1
466

5. MEEETEERR

2016

By 20165

2015
20155

9.7%
14.2%
9.6%
3.2%
7.0%
(1.7)%
0.0%

Patient visits
Inpatient visits
Outpatient visits

Average spending per inpatient visit
Average spending per outpatient visit

Average length of stay

Number of beds in operation

B AR
fERB AR
PIB BB AR
BRI
PRI R A
PUFERY
BEHRYE

times AKX 568,895
times AKX 1,961
times AKX 566,934
RMB AR¥T 11,871
RMB AR¥T 347
day H 14.2
bed [ 120

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016

520,167
1,585
518,582
10,441
347
14.0
120

9.4%
23.7%
9.3%
13.7%
0.0%
1.4%
0.0%
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6. Mentougou Hospital for Women and Children 6.

Change

Patient visits
Inpatient visits
Outpatient visits

Average spending per inpatient visit
Average spending per outpatient visit

Average length of stay

Number of beds in operation

7. Shunyi District Konggang Hospital

B AR
ﬁpﬁﬂkm
PP AR
ﬁﬁmﬂ%ﬁ
PR E A
$ﬂ@m%%
BERKHE

times

times

times
RMB
RMB
day
bed

AR
AR
AR

AR
AR

H

FISEIE B IR 4R PR
2016 2015
20165  2015%F
146,499 123,409

1,292 687
145,207 122,722
5,471 3,975
236 227

5.7 6.1

48 27

&

7. EEEZBER

2016

2015

1 i

18.7%
88.1%
18.3%
37.6%

4.0%
(6.6)%
77.8%

Patient visits
Inpatient visits
Outpatient visits

Average spending per inpatient visit
Average spending per outpatient visit

Average length of stay

Number of beds in operation

B2 AR
Erﬁ 2 ANIR
TP AR
ﬁ%mﬁ%ﬁ
FIRREE A
FIFERH
BELERKHE

8. The Second Hospital of Shunyi District

times
times
times
RMB
RMB
day
bed

AR
AR
AR

AR
ARBT

H
&

8. ExXEF Bk

By

20165

491,926
3,222
488,704
10,743
227
10.2
168

2016
20164

20155

406,564
2,695
403,869
10,015
234

11.3
149

2015
20154

21.0%
19.6%
21.0%

7.3%
(3.0)%
(9.7Y%
12.8%

Patient visits
Inpatient visits
Outpatient visits

Average spending per inpatient visit
Average spending per outpatient visit

Average length of stay

Number of beds in operation

BZ AR
EBR 2 AR
FIRRP AR
ERRRSE R
IR IR9EH
$ﬂ@§iﬁ
EERKEE

times
times
times
RMB
RMB
day
bed

AR
AR
AR

ARBT
AR

H
i

142,865
462
142,403
4,135
258

8.5

100

134,294
306
133,988
4,964
249
9.1
100

EREREBEFRIERARA

—m

—=

6.4%
51.0%
6.3%
(16.7)%
3.6%
(6.6)%
0.0%
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9. Baoding Third Centre Hospital 9. REME=FHLER

2016 2015 Change

20165  2015% 1B iE

Patient visits M2 AR times AR 37,368 33,828 10.5%
Inpatient visits ERFZ AR times AKX 3,253 3,415 (4.7)%
Outpatient visits PR AR times AKX 34,115 30,413 12.2%
Average spending per inpatient visit  {FfTR¥IEA RMB AR¥x 12,865 13,979 (8.0)%
Average spending per outpatient visit FI2X¥9EA RMB AR 295 281 5.0%
Average length of stay FHEERE day H 16.2 16.3 (0.6)%
Number of beds in operation EERKEE  bed iR 243 243 0.0%
10. Guangdong 999 Brain Hospital 10. ER= AR

2016 2015

20165 20154

Patient visits M2 AR times AR 218,167 201,224 8.4%
Inpatient visits ERBZ AR times AR 25,331 25,427 (0.4)%
Outpatient visits FIR R AR times AKX 192,836 175,797 9.7%
Average spending per inpatient visit {FfRRIER RMB AR 26,933 24,032 12.1%
Average spending per outpatient visit FI2X¥9EA RMB AR 832 776 7.2%
Average length of stay FHEFERE  day H 14.4 14.7 (2.00%
Number of beds in operation EERKHE  bed R 779 776 0.4%
11. Wugang Hospital Group 1. RAERER

Patient visits B2 AR times AR 1,016,745 1,031,169 (1.4)%
Inpatient visits FRFEZ AR times AKX 53,739 54,831 (2.0)%
Outpatient visits FA2RE2 AR times AKX 963,006 976,338 (1.4)%
Average spending per inpatient visit PRI ER RMB AR¥R 8,653 7,989 8.3%
Average spending per outpatient visit FIR2)R¥9EFH RMB AR¥x 266 295 (9.8)%
Average length of stay FHEERE day H 1.4 11.7 (2.6)%
Number of beds in operation BEERAHE  bed (S 1,877 1,868 0.5%

32 China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016



12. Huaikuang Hospital Group
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12. EEEREEH

Patient visits

Inpatient visits

Outpatient visits

Average spending per inpatient visit
Average spending per outpatient visit
Average length of stay

Number of beds in operation

13. Xukuang Hospital

Y AR
BB AR
PR BB AR
RN
REVESE T
FHEERY
W YR

times

times

times
RMB
RMB
day
bed

13. BIEERR

AR 1,192,499
AR 61,876
AR 1,130,623
AR® T 7,062
AR 206
| 10.6

iR 2,735

1,172,975 1.7%
57,848 7.0%
1,115,127 1.4%
7,783 (9.3)%
209 (1.4)%
11.0 (3.6)%

)

2,765 (1.1)%

Patient visits

Inpatient visits

Outpatient visits

Average spending per inpatient visit
Average spending per outpatient visit
Average length of stay

Number of beds in operation

14. 999 Clinic

Patient visits
Outpatient visits
Average spending per outpatient visit

BB AR

EBERZ AR
FIR TR AR
ERAXHIER
FIRIRIIE M
FIIFERE
BamiHBE

BB AR

FIR TR AR

FIZIRIE R

times AR 129
times AR 16
times AR 113
RMB AR¥T 9
RMB AR¥

day H

bed [

times AKX 19,170
times AKX 19,170
RMB AR¥x 174

,888
,383
,505
,039

340
10.4

500

14, = hFH2Y

111,342

16.7%

15,767 3.9%

95,575

18.8%

8,183 10.5%
359 (5.3)%
10.9 (4.6)%
400 25.0%

22,300
22,300

(14.0)%
(14.0)%

183 (4.9)%

EPEEBRERARAT —T—
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MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
BEING FACED BY THE GROUP

1. Merger and acquisition integration risk
With nearly 30 years of track record and the merger
and acquisition integration of various state-owned
hospitals, the Group has formed a unique and
effective post-investment management system.
The system has basic characteristics, which aims
to achieve effective control and integration while
implementing ongoing systematic improvements on
invested hospitals. This involves a series of works
such as basic management, financial, information
and supply chain management, medical quality
management as well as marketing and public
relations. In particular, the assessment system
is improved and the salary performance reform
of medical staff is promoted through scientific
incentives, which enables the Group to focus on
healthcare services and improve patient experience
as well as healthcare quality, thereby facilitating the
benign cycle development of its business. With the
above measures, our in-network hospitals achieved
multi-win results among the government, the public
and employees, which effectively mitigated the
merger and acquisition integration risk.

2. Medical malpractice risk

The Group has always adopted the JCI standards
for internal management, strengthened the
implementation of medical quality management
within hospitals, and signed liability statement for
medical quality objectives with discipline heads. The
Group also makes efforts in the implementation of
core healthcare management system and puts the
management of patients with critical conditions in
the first place. Meanwhile, the Group strengthens
the management of hospital-patient relationship
and emphasizes the communication with relevant
media to reduce negative impacts. By implementing
stringent management of medical quality and
patient safety, all hospitals did not have any material
incidents of medical malpractice during the Reporting
Period.

SEHEHRNEERRRT®E
E

FrEER A AR
FEBBROI=TFENRREERNZ
FEEERMFBESERER  EXT
BENMEARBNREERER
ZEANEABEIE  EEREAW
EHMBMENER L  HRRERE
BIFENRSENSGE - BEERE
BB ER ERLEE - ftERE
EiE - BREEEEE  mBEAHE
BE-RINWTE - FRIZFARE
MHBFR TEZHER  EDHE
EAENHFMERRE  £HETE
BRBAS  ReBERTERNE
BREE  RETEHEBHRMERRE
& AEBEMSEFBESNER
HEE EMBEERTHE 8L
FBREIZHHBNER AN
BT SRR S KRR -

BEA A E
REE-HUCIEESANEER
R EBEABINEEREFREEE
2 HENEEAREEREERR
BEEE  ROBEHENEE 1€
EfBAEERIEN - AEEEK
IREE BEAREE  STEHEAAR KRR
MER BRESESE - BBEEW
BEREENREREZEE  NHEH
BRERIGRBEEREREW
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Segment Revenue

We derived revenue from our hospital and clinic network
through the following four ways: (i) general healthcare
services provided by Jian Gong Hospital and 999 Clinic,
(ii) hospital management and consulting services where
we manage and collect consulting/management fees from
our not-for-profit hospitals/IOT hospitals and clinics, and
the collective management of the Group’s supply chain
business, (iii) integrating purchase of medical supplies
and non-medical supplies of affiliated hospitals (GPO
business), and (iv) other hospital-derived services such as
specialized medical consulting services.

General healthcare services

Revenue from our general healthcare services segment is
derived from general healthcare services provided at Jian
Gong Hospital and 999 Clinic. General healthcare services
revenue mainly consists of fees generated from the
provision of outpatient and inpatient services, including
fees for healthcare services, pharmaceuticals, medical
devices and medical consumables. The following table
sets out the revenue, cost of sales and services and gross
profit contributed by our general healthcare services
segment during the periods indicated:

Revenue U
Cost of sales and services HERRBE KA
Gross profit EF)

Revenue from our general healthcare services segment
reached RMB601 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 4.4% and accounted for 39.2% of our total
revenue in FY2016 due to increase in total patient visits
and average spending per outpatient visit of Jian Gong
Hospital.

BERENWwED

g JE) -

73 Wk
REEBBUTHEL X EAKENER
RZFRFERYE  ((RMREETBERR=
NP MRENRSERRE - (VEE
REBRMAFL RIS I0TER K
DL WEREEREE EEE - UK
SEMHEREEER  (NBSETE
e EMENGEE R EN KR RE
% (GPOEF) @ R(vIFRBEHEBER
st s S H A BB IT A IR S

e BRRE
FEEGSBERERBIXNWKRERERE
BERUAR=ZNAMDBEENESERR
%o REBERBWRTEVFEREMMD
MERBRBAEENKRE  BEEER
®oER BEFURBRENBRE T
R AEBREBRERBE D IR
BR W - SHERRBEAURER

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A31HILLEE

2016 2015
20164 20154
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AR¥ETRT) (AR¥T)
600,892 575,634
(512,598) (485,049)
88,294 90,585

AEBGFEBERKEIZNRREIAR
#6.01E T » (hAKE20165F B F 421K
#®N39.2% ¢ REEML4%  FTERE
AREERBARSENIRIZIRIEGD
Bigh -
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The cost of sales and services of our general healthcare
services represents primarily costs of provision of
healthcare services at Jian Gong Hospital and 999 Clinic,
including costs of pharmaceuticals, medical devices and
medical consumables, staff costs, and depreciation and
amortization expenses.

During the Reporting Period, the cost of sales and
services of general healthcare services grew to RMB513
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 5.7%
which slightly surpassed the growth rate of revenue.
This was mainly attributable to the higher costs of staff
remuneration and medical consumables by Jian Gong
Hospital. As a result, the gross profit margin of our general
healthcare services slightly declined to 14.7% (FY2015:
15.7%).

Hospital management and consulting
services

We managed and operated a total of 100 not-for-
profit hospitals, of which not-for-profit hospitals with
sponsorship rights amounted to 45 in total, and a total
of 55 hospitals managed and operated under the 10T
model in FY2016. In return, we were entitled to receive
from each hospital or the hospital sponsors consulting/
management fees, primarily calculated on the basis of
percentage of revenue and/or net income generated by the
hospitals and clinics under our management. Accordingly,
the consulting/management fees we receive depends on
the performance of such hospital and clinic. For certain
hospitals, our management fees are dependent on
profitability and performance reviews.

FEEGAERERBNEERRBKEAE
ZAEREBERMN=NAMIDBIRMEEER
R - BIEER - BESRMKERR
MRA  ETEARNENBHEEN -

RREHE  FEBERBIINHEER
RIERAEINE ARESAMET - BE
EN5.7% - BEBIB R EHIGIE - LT
FEHRNBEEREM KRG NIIRES
ETHMKERZ - At - ZREEBER
BHOERNERBEEE14.7% (2015F 85 -
15.7%)

B2 e LR ARE

R2016FFF - AEBERMEL N
ERMERATTI00K - HPEEEE
MU & R BT A ET 46K - LARKIRIOT
BAEENEENBER AR ER
B3R - AEEBED S REM NEER R
ABREBEBREE EEE  BEBRBE
B ERBEITEREEEERNZN
WER, R ERNBE DL E -
bt AEEERNEEREE EEE
HORRBBER R HRR - HREE
B ARENEEERUAREFN DM
RME -
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Besides, according to the agreement between the Group
and Hong Hui, the Group derived corresponding economic
benefits by granting Hong Hui the priority to supply
to the Group’s three in-network hospitals and provide
collectivized management of supply chain services.

The following table sets out the revenue, cost of sales and
services, gross profit and other income of our hospital
management and consulting services segment during the
periods indicated:

Revenue g

Cost of sales and services HE R R
Gross profit EF)

Other income Hibr g

Total &&t

Revenue from our hospital management and consulting
services segment increased to RMB116 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 61.4% and
accounted for 7.6% of our total revenue in FY2016. This
was mainly attributable to the 2 months’ management fee
income of our hospitals as a result of the acquisition of
Ample Mighty and the increase of the management fee
income of hospitals managed under the IOT model.

Not-for-profit hospitals with
sponsorship rights

Hospitals managed under
the IOT model

Total a

b=111

BERENWwED

AR - ARBAEBEATEET A
SEERTAZDAEEETIXEM HE
EmpELAEREHREBR{CHEEEER
% WREHARBAEWES -

TREIAEEEREERFAARE D X
RETREIER RS - SHERRBEAE - £
MRk EAbi s

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A31HILLEE

2016 2015
20164 20155
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AR®¥Tx) (AR¥Tr)
116,386 72,112
(18,662) (17,389)
97,724 54,723
50,399 48,640
148,123 103,363

REAEEEREERZHARBE S W
WHREMZEARE 116 HAEE
2016 FE M EHRNZMN7.6% BEER
61.4%  FEFRRBHBEEETRETE
PR2E AR REEWA - URIOTERE
BIREEBU AL -

Year ended December 31,
BZ12831BLEE
2016 2015
201545

(RMB’000)

(AR#EFT)

2016&E
(RMB’000)
(AB¥ET )

BEREPEFEREEER

RERIOTE A BB R

21,569 -
94,817 72,112
116,386 72,112

EHRARFERERAR —2-AFH
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Our not-for-profit hospitals with sponsorship rights
include Guangdong 999 Brain Hospital, Huaikuang
Hospital Group, Xukuang Hospital and Wugang Hospital
Group. Following the completion of the acquisition of
Ample Mighty on October 31, 2016, we recorded consulting
fee income from Guangdong 999 Brain Hospital, Huaikuang
Hospital Group and Xukuang Hospital of Ample Mighty for
the two-month period from November 1 to December 31,
2016 amounting to RMB21.57 million.

Our hospitals managed under the 10T model include Yan
Hua Hospital Group, Jing Mei Hospital Group, Mentougou
Hospital Group, Mentougou Traditional Chinese Medicine
Hospital, Mentougou Hospital for Women and Children,
Shunyi District Konggang Hospital, the Second Hospital of
Shunyi District and Baoding Third Center Hospital. In 2016,
the management fees of hospitals managed and operated
under the 10T model amounted to RMB94.82 million,
representing an increase of RMB22.71 million or 31.5% as
compared to FY2015 as follows:

1. The management fee from Jing Mei Hospital Group
was RMB42.06 million, representing an increase of
RMB15.66 million over FY2015. This was mainly due
to the significantly increased patient visits and higher
average spending per patient visit to the hospital as a
result of the commissioning of new equipment and the
opening of new in-patient building, which contributed
to increased revenue and gross profit. Meanwhile, with
the further promotion of the delicacy management,
the enhanced cost control has contributed to the
significant increase in net profit before tax, which in
turn greatly increased our management fees.

2. The management fee from Yan Hua Hospital Group
was RMB35.80 million, representing an increase of
RMB4.03 million over FY2015. In 2016, the number
of total patient visits at Yan Hua Hospital Group
increased as compared to FY2015 whereas the
average spending per outpatient and inpatient visit
remained stable with a relatively stable gross profit
margin, the gross profit therefore increased. Yan
Hua Hospital Group also successfully and effectively
controlled its operating expenses and other costs,
thereby leading to an increase in net profit before tax,
which in turn increased our management fees.

AEEEERPENIENMERBIE=
NIERIERT - EIREBREE - RIBERK
B PT - N2016F 10831 H EHE I BB
TR HEEEET=NERIER &
BEREE - RIEEK20165F118 E12
BEMEANERREERAST AR
2,1578 T °

AEBXKRBIOTEXNEENERBIERL
BREE mEEREE MEABEE
BT - MSEBEET R - MEEBERFEHRRE
BT~ IBEREEEER - IEXES B
REFE=FOERR ° 2016 FMKBRIOTHE
EENMEENBREEERARY,482
B BR015F B FEMARY?2,2718
T 0 RENN31.5% o HAp -

1. REZEBREENEERBEAARY
4,2068 7T B2015F B EFEEMAR
#1,566B 7T 0 TEEHNZERLE
ENMRENTREENRA  mAR
PARRIRIDEIAREIE M - S
mREFNLA  EEEZRALCER
EEMRAEE  RAEHELEE
RS HRBANFAEEEILM - &
MEAREBNWEEE AT M -

2. REFCBREENEEEAARE
3,5808 7T ' B2015F M EEIMAR
4038 T - BILBREE2016F 1
FWBAFZ B AR H B ARE
2015 B EB/FEM  REYMZE
R ERERAEANGEE  BERR
BABE  WMEFBFIEM - i
FAL BT E B R i B IR s H
BBRAREMRA - BATFEFEE N
mMmEREENSEEGFTIEM -

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016



Management Discussion and Analysis

3. The total management fee from Shunyi District
Konggang Hospital, the Second Hospital of Shunyi
District and Baoding Third Center Hospital amounted
to RMB5.54 million (FY2015: Nil). Shunyi District
Konggang Hospital and the Second Hospital of Shunyi
District have only generated management fee income
since 2016 as both of them were newly invested I0T
hospitals in 2015. Baoding Third Center Hospital
was newly invested in September, 2016, which has
generated management fee income for three months.

4. The total management fee from Mentougou Hospital,
Mentougou Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital
and Mentougou Hospital for Women and Children
was RMB11.42 million, representing a decrease of
RMB2.52 million over FY2015. On April 28, 2016, the
Group signed the “2016-2020 Cooperation Agreement
for reform and development of Public Medical
Institutions in Mentougou of Beijing” (BRIt H= T
FEEER LI EBHEKB2016-20208 N EBRR S FH
ZE)) with Beijing Mentougou People’s Government.
The calculation method of management fee has
been changed, which had a negative impact on the
management fee income in 2016. Both the total
patient visits and average spending per inpatient visit
increased at the hospitals, which led to an increase in
both revenue and gross profit margin with satisfactory
operations.

The cost of sales and services of the Group’s hospital
management services were the amortization of operating
rights under 10T agreements, amounting to RMB18.66
million in FY2016, representing a year-on-year increase
of 7.3% due to (i) the first full year amortization for the
investment of RMB100 million in Shunyi District Konggang
Hospital and the Second Hospital of Shunyi District in July
2015, and (ii) the three-month amortization during the
year for the investment of RMB32 million in Baoding Third
Center Hospital in September 2016.

Due to the acquisition of Ample Mighty, the higher gross
profit margin of newly organized not-for-profit hospitals
of the Group and the growth in revenue outpaced the
increase in cost of sales and services, the gross profit
margin of the hospital management services segment
of the Group significantly improved to 84.0% (FY2015:
75.9%).
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GPO business

Revenue from our GPO business segment is primarily
derived from integrating purchase of medical supplies
and non-medical supplies of our in-network hospitals.
The following table sets out the revenue, cost of sales and
services and gross profit of our GPO business segment
during the periods indicated:

Revenue (before inter-segment Wi (9 X EEEAT)
elimination)
Cost of sales and services HER R R

Gross profit EF

Revenue from the GPO business segment of the Group
(before inter-segment elimination) increased to RMB1,011
million, representing an increase of 9.3% over FY2015.
After the inter-segment revenue from sales to Jian Gong
Hospital in the amount of RMB201 million was eliminated
against total revenue, the revenue from our GPO business
segment accounted for 52.9% of our total revenue in
FY2016.

The cost of sales and services of the GPO business
segment of the Group represents the procurement costs
of purchasing medical supplies and non-medical supplies
from upstream manufacturers and distributors. In FY2016,
the cost of sales and services generated from the Group’s
GPO business segment amounted to RMB792 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 6.8% over FY2015.

GPOXTS
AEBMHOGPOXB I MUBETERGE
SETBERERYENEREY SR
ERIRBEK o TREHANEMEBR DX
AR REARI 25 - S5 RERIE AR A R
EF :

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A31BLEE
2016 2015
2015%F
(RMB’000)
(AR¥ETT)

20164
(RMB’000)
(AEB¥TT)

1,011,334 925,442
(791,825) (741,168)
219,509 184,274
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In FY2016, due to better cost control, the gross profit
margin of the GPO business segment of the Group
increased to 21.7% (FY2015: 19.9%).

Other hospital-derived services

Revenue from the other hospital-derived services segment
of the Group in 2016 was primarily derived from the
provision of advisory services on specialized medical
technology to business cooperators based on our hospital
network resources.

The following table sets out the revenue, cost of sales and

services and gross profit of our other hospital-derived
services segment during the periods indicated:

Revenue Uz
Cost of sales and services HER R KA
Gross profit EF)

Revenue from the other hospital-derived services segment
of the Group reached RMB5.04 million, accounting for
0.3% of our total revenue in FY2016. The cost of sales and
services of the other hospital-derived services segment of
the Group mainly represents labour costs.

Gross Profit

In FY2016, the gross profit of the Group amounted to
RMB407 million in aggregate, representing a year-on-
year increase of 23.4%. Due to the relatively significant
increase in profit and gross profit margin contributed by
the Group’s hospital management services segment and
GPO business segment, the aggregate gross profit margin
increased to 26.5% (FY2015: 24.0%).
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Other Income

Other income amounted to RMB93.18 million, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 6.0%, mainly due to the
decrease in interest on bank deposits and investment
income from financial products.

Other Gains and Losses

Other losses amounted to RMB1,729 million,
predominantly due to the one-off goodwill impairment of
RMB1,727 million resulted from the acquisition of Ample
Mighty. The impairment loss on goodwill was purely an
accounting treatment as required under the IFRSs and
was a non-cash one-time profit or loss item in the income
statement which will have no impact on the Group’s daily
operations and cash flow. For details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated January 25, 2017.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses amounted to
RMB24.13 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
127.5%, primarily due to the increase in staff costs.

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses incurred by the Group
amounted to RMB148 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 6.2%, primarily due to the increase in staff costs.

Other Expenses

Other expenses amounted to approximately RMB35.63
million, which was mainly comprised of the professional
consulting service charges of RMB30.06 million incurred
in relation to CR Healthcare Group and CITIC Medical
restructuring projects in 2016.

Our expense on donation was RMB5 million, of which
RMB2 million and RMB3 million were incurred by Peking
University Education Foundation and Beijing Phoenix
Healthcare Charity Fund, respectively.

Income Tax Expense

In FY2016, the Group’s loss before tax amounted to
RMB1,452 million. Excluding the goodwill impairment
of RMB1,727 million resulted from the acquisition of
Ample Mighty, the profit before tax amounted to RMB275
million, representing an increase of 10.9% as compared
to the corresponding period of 2015. Nevertheless,
with the increase in income that is not taxable for PRC
enterprise income tax, the profit before tax amounted to
approximately RMB47.33 million, representing a decrease
of 37.4% from FY2015.
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Net Profit

In FY2016, loss attributable to shareholders amounted
to RMB1,507 million. Excluding two major non-recurring
profit or loss items (i.e. the one-time goodwill impairment
of RMB1,727 million resulted from the acquisition of
Ample Mighty and the professional consulting service
charges of RMB30.06 million incurred by China Resources
and CITIC Medical restructuring projects in 2016), the
profit attributable to shareholders amounted to RMB250
million, representing an increase of 28.9% as compared to
the net profit for FY2015 (excluding non-recurring profit or
loss items), which was mainly attributable to the increase
in profit from hospital management services and GPO
business.

Net Current Assets Position

As at December 31, 2016, the net current assets position
of the Group was RMB902 million (December 31, 2015:
RMB904 million) with no significant change.

Liquidity And Capital Resources

Set forth below are the information from our Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows during the periods
indicated:

Net cash generated from KETHIBEREF
operating activities
Net cash generated from RETEFSHRTFHAE

investing activities
Net cash used in financing activities BE ZBFTHIR S FEEE
Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents
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FUTURE PLANS FOR' MATERIAL INVESTMENT
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Directors confirmed that as at the date of this annual
report, there are no current plans to acquire any material
investment or capital assets other than in the Group’s
ordinary course of business.

Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities
During FY2016, the net cash generated from operating
activities was RMB223.8 million, no significant change as
compared to FY2015.

Net Cash Generated from Investing Activities
During FY2016, the net cash generated from investing
activities was RMB120 million, which was mainly
attributable to the consolidation of Ample Mighty’s
cash amounting to RMB101 million resulted from the
acquisition of Ample Mighty in October, 2016, investment
recovery from financial assets of RMB91.77 million,
repayment of investments of RMB14.81 million from
IOT hospitals and clinics under the I0T agreements,
expenditure on purchase of fixed assets of RMB42.45
million, investment of RMB32 million in Baoding Third
Center Hospital, and expenditure on investment in JV
Company of RMB15 million.

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities
During FY2016, the net cash used in financing activities
was RMB98.61 million, which was mainly attributable to
payment of dividends in the amount of RMB83.11 million,
and repayments to the sponsored hospitals amounting to
RMB15.96 million.

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and
Disposals, Investments in and Receivables
from JV Company and Subsequent Plans
for Material Capital Investments

As of December 31, 2016, the Group’s balance of short-
term investments was approximately RMB66.4 million, all
of which were short-term financial products operated by
banks.

REREBRIRESEREEGE
SR RAFHRAY - BRI ETE
WRENEARESEREE @ HERE
ABEBETERIN

KE RS2
MR2016F B F » KETHHMBREFHE
ABARE2.238F T - B2015F B FAHLE
mEREML o

WERBEREFHE
R2016F 0 F  RETBHAEHRESFE
AARB1.208 T EE 5 ER2016
FIOREHWBEEHAREREAR
MI0MEXT RMERKREWLE AR
9 177%‘7‘5 Y ZIOTH; & 1B T WIOTES
RMEZEREARME1481ET B
%liﬁ?itﬂk&*ﬁmms‘%ﬁ o R
EME=ZFLERBREAREI,200ET
RESENANREZHARY1,5008

JC °

BEEFTHIR € F58
E(‘2016$E7J¢ ﬂﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ;‘%%ﬁ
AARYI861E T ETEFRARIKMTEK
BEAR¥S3INERL  BEBNRERFE
BEL AR¥1,5968 T °

%ﬁ&i\ KEMLE - KRa
NEINRE MRS B AR IE&

f%?j%i ZENERE S

EH1F20165128310 » AEERHRKRE
BREAN AR Y6,6408B T 23 AEHR
TERMEBMER °

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016



Management Discussion and Analysis

Acquisition of Huizhou Hospital and Hangzhou Hospitals

On May 3, 2016, the Group and CITIC Medical entered into a
binding term sheet, and entered into a sales and purchase
agreement on October 28, 2016, pursuant to which the
Group proposed to issue 130,571,837 consideration shares
to CITIC Medical at the price of HK$9.50 per consideration
share for the acquisition of 60% equity interest of
Huizhou Hospital (owned as to 60% by CITIC Medical) and
70% equity interest of Hangzhou Hospitals (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CITIC Medical), at a consideration
of HK$1,240,432,453. Through the acquisition, the
Group acquired a huge portion of the assets, equity
and operation rights of Huizhou Hospital and Hangzhou
Hospitals. Please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated May 3, 2016 and October 28, 2016 for
details.

Currently, there have been impediments in certain
regulatory approval process relating to the acquisition
of Huizhou Hospital and Hangzhou Hospitals and the
Company and CITIC Medical are engaging in negotiations
to explore solution acceptable to both parties, giving
due regard to the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

Acquisition of Ample Mighty

On April 8, 2016 and April 29, 2016, the Group and CR
Healthcare Group entered into a binding term sheet
and supplemental term sheet, and entered into a sales
and purchase agreement on August 30, 2016, pursuant
to which the Group proposed to issue 462,913,516
consideration shares to CR Healthcare Group at the price
of HK$8.04 per consideration share for the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in Ample Mighty, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CR Healthcare Group at a consideration of
HK$3,721,824,669. Through the acquisition, the Group
acquired the assets, equity interests and operation
rights of 46 medical institutions including 3 elderly care
institutions of Ample Mighty.
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The Company convened the extraordinary general meeting
on October 31, 2016 to approve the entering into of the
sales and purchase agreement between the Group and
CR Healthcare Group and the issue and allotment of
consideration shares to CR Healthcare Group pursuant
to the terms and conditions of the sales and purchase
agreement. As a result, all the conditions under the
sales and purchase agreement were satisfied and the
completion took place on October 31, 2016. A total of
462,913,516 consideration shares were duly allotted and
issued to a wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Healthcare
Group, which represents 35.7% of the issued share capital
of the Company and Ample Mighty became an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated April 8, 20186,
May 3, 2016, August 30, 2016 and October 31, 2016 and
circular dated October 7, 2016 for details.

Investment in Baoding Third Centre Hospital

On September 15, 2015, the Company and Baoding
Third Centre Hospital entered into a master agreement
regarding cooperation (the “Master Agreement”). The
period of the cooperation is 20 years from 2015 to 2035
and the total investment is RMB70 million. Pursuant to the
Master Agreement and based on the development needs
of Baoding Third Centre Hospital, the Company made an
initial investment of RMB32 million on September 29,
2016. During the period of the cooperation, Baoding Third
Centre Hospital will offer the Company a fixed return on
investment principal per annum as investment return. In
addition, the Company is entitled to a reasonable return
in the form of management fees from Baoding Third
Center Hospital based on the operations appraisal to be
performed by the Baoding Government against Baoding
Third Centre Hospital. Please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 15 September 2015 for details.
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Investment in JV Company

On July 13, 2015, True Point, UMP Healthcare Holdings,
UMP China, the Company, Pinyu and JV Company entered
into a shareholders’ agreement, pursuant to which each
of the Group and UMP Healthcare Holdings advanced
an interest-free shareholder’s loan of RMB24.25 million
to JV Company as of December 31, 2016. According to
the announcement of UMP Healthcare Holdings dated
September 27, 2016, such shareholders’ loans have been
capitalised and converted into new shares allotted and
issued to each of the Group and UMP Healthcare Holdings
on a pro-rata basis.

As of December 31, 2016, JV Company was held as to 50%
by Pinyu and 50% by UMP China, the investment in JV
Company was accounted under the equity method and the
balance of the investment was approximately RMB7.49
million.

According to the announcement of UMP Healthcare
Holdings dated December 15, 2016, UMP Healthcare
Holdings will, through UMP China, subscribe for 6,668
shares in JV Company, at a consideration of RMB32.33
million. JV Company shall be renamed as UMP Healthcare
(Beijing) Group Limited. Immediately after the completion
of the subscription, JV Company will be owned as to 70%
by UMP China and 30% by the Group and will become
a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the UMP Healthcare
Holdings. On February 27, 2017, the transaction had been
approved by the extraordinary general meeting of UMP
Healthcare Holdings.

Use of proceeds rrom the Initial Public
Offering

With reference to the use of proceeds disclosed in the
Prospectus, the Board is closely monitoring the use of
proceeds from the initial public offering and confirms
that there is no material change in the intended use as
previously disclosed in the Prospectus. As of December 31,
2016, the Group had applied the net proceeds as set out
below.
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Pursuant to the IOT agreement entered into between
Beijing Phoenix and Mentougou District government
on September 23, 2014, the Group committed to an
one-off investment of RMB15.0 million in Mentougou
Hospital for Women and Children in exchange for
the rights to manage and receive performance-
based annual management fees from the latter until
December 31, 2030;

Repayment of the entire loan from our substantial
shareholder, Speed Key Limited, with accrued
interest amounted approximately HK$340.0 million on
December 12, 2013;

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Group
fulfilled the capital commitment to Yan Hua Hospital
Group for approximately HK$80.0 million;

Under the 10T agreement entered into between
Beijing Phoenix and the People’s Government of
Shunyi District, Beijing Municipality on May 28,
2015, the Group undertook to invest working capital
of RMB100 million to Shunyi District Konggang
Hospital, the Second Hospital of Shunyi District
and its relevant primary community healthcare
institutions for rebuilding and expansion of facilities,
recruiting professionals, building clinical laboratories,
acquiring medical equipment and improving the
clinical environment of the pilot medical institution
in exchange for the rights to manage and receive
performance-based annual management fees from
the related medical institutions until December 31,
2035;

Under the share purchase agreement entered into
between the Group, True Point and Pinyu on 13 July,
2015, the Group has paid HK$180 million through
Pinyu to acquire equity interests of UMP Healthcare
Holdings. Concurrent with the execution of the share
purchase agreement, the Company established a
joint venture with UMP China through Pinyu and paid
RMB24.25 million to the joint venture in the form of
shareholder’s loan. The balance was converted into
share capital on August 30, 2016;
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e Under the IOT agreement entered into between
Beijing Phoenix and Baoding Third Centre Hospital on
September 15, 2015, the Group undertook to invest
working capital of RMB70 million to Baoding Third
Centre Hospital for the cooperation with Baoding Third
Centre Hospital in exchange for the rights to manage
and receive performance-based annual management
fees from the related medical institutions until
December 31, 2035. As of December 31, 2016, RMB32
million was paid to Baoding Third Centre Hospital;

e The amount of proceeds used as working capital
and other general corporate purposes in the period
from November 29, 2013 to December 31, 2016 is
well within the 10% estimated range disclosed in the
Prospectus.

Capital Expenditures

The capital expenditures of the Group primarily consist
of the expenditures in respect of acquisition of property,
plant and equipment and investment amount by the Group
to 10T hospitals and clinics as well as the investment
amount by the Group to associates and joint ventures.
The amount of capital expenditures of the Group were
approximately RMB89.45 million during FY2016, primarily
consisted of the investment of RMB15 million in JV
Company, the investment of RMB32 million in Baoding
Third Center Hospital, and purchase of property, plant and
equipment amounting to RMB42.45 million.

Indebtedness

Contingent Liabilities

As at December 31, 2016, the Group did not have any
contingent liabilities or guarantees that would have a

material impact on the financial position or operations of
the Group.
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BEE WD

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates

The Group undertakes certain operating transactions in
foreign currencies, which exposes the Group to foreign
currency risk, mainly pertaining to the risk of fluctuations
in the Hong Kong dollar and U.S. dollar against RMB.

The Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge
against its exposure to currency risk. The management
manages the currency risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates and considers
hedging against significant foreign exchange exposure
should such need arise.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to receivables from IOT hospitals and loan to a
sponsored hospital and cash flow interest risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances, which carry prevailing
market interest rates and short-term investments.

The Group currently does not have specific policies
in place to manage our interest rate risk and have not
entered into interest rate swaps to hedge the exposure,
but will closely monitor the interest rate risk in the future.

Pledge of Assets

The Group entered into the Syndicated Loan Agreement on
February 4, 2015, under which, the Syndicated Loan will
be guaranteed by existing offshore subsidiaries and future
offshore subsidiaries of the Company and secured by first
priority perfected security interests over the following in
favor of the security agent on behalf of the lenders:

i. charge over 100% of the shares of the existing
offshore subsidiaries and future offshore subsidiaries
of the Company;

ii. pledge over 100% of equity interests of Beijing
Phoenix, and future onshore subsidiaries and onshore
joint ventures of the Company;

iii. assignment of any intra-group shareholder loans
from the loan proceeds under the Syndicated Loan
Agreement;
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Management Discussion and Analysis

iv. fixed and floating charge or mortgage over all assets
of the existing offshore subsidiaries and future
offshore subsidiaries of the Company; and

v. charge over the related debt service reserve account.

The Syndicated Loan Agreement has been terminated on
January 15, 2016 and the procedures for discharging of
charges and pledges were completed on June 30, 2016. As
of December 31, 2016, the Group did not have any material
pledge of assets.

Contractual Obligations

As at December 31, 2016, the Group did not have any
significant contractual obligations that would have a
material effect on the financial position or operations of
the Group.

Financial Instruments

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, amounts due from related parties, loan to
a sponsored hospital, other receivables, certificate of
deposit, cash and cash equivalents, receivables from
IOT Hospitals, short-term investments, trade payables,
amount due to related parties, payables to hospitals
sponsored by the Group and other payables. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Gearing Ratio

As at December 31, 2016, on the basis of total interest-
bearing liability (excluding payables to hospitals
sponsored by the Group) divided by total assets, the
Group’s gearing ratio was nil (FY2015: nil).
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The Directors are pleased to present this report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended December 31, 2016.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME AND
STOCK SHORT NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the Company’s
extraordinary general meeting held on October 31, 2016,
the English name of the Company has been changed from
“Phoenix Healthcare Group Co. Ltd” to “China Resources
Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Company Limited” and the
Chinese name of the Company has been changed from
‘BIEBEEEERAF to “EHREERZERBRA A"
The Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name and
the Certificate of Registration of Alteration of Name of
Registered Non-Hong Kong Company were issued by the
Registrar of Companies of the Cayman Islands and the
Hong Kong Companies Registry, respectively, on November
2,2016 and November 25, 2016.

The Company’s stock short name of the Shares for
trading on the Stock Exchange has been changed from
“PHOENIXHEALTH” to “CRPHOENIXHEALTH” in English and
from “BEIEE” to “®HEEEHE” in Chinese with effect
from 9:00 a.m. on December 5, 2016.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Group is mainly engaged in the provision of general
healthcare services, hospital management and consulting
services as well as derived business from hospital group
in Mainland China. Details of the principal activities of the
Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group and a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties being
faced by the Group, as well as the business outlook
of the Group (including key performance indicators of
future development of the Group) are provided in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 12 to 34
of this annual report. Relevant discussion forms part of
this Directors’ Report.
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A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance
for the year ended December 31, 2016 and the material
factors underlying its results and financial position are
provided in the paragraph headed “Financial Review”
under the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 35 to 51 of this annual report.

Significant events affecting the Group that have occurred
since the end of the Reporting Period and up to the date of
this Directors’ Report, if any, are set out in the paragraph
headed “Events Subsequent to December 31, 2016” on
page 87 of this annual report.

Environmental Policies and Performance
As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group recognizes
the importance of good environmental stewardship.
In this connection, the Group has strictly adopted
and implemented policies and procedures to conduct
environmental protection work on a standard which is
not less stringent than the prevailing environmental laws
and regulations of the PRC. We believe that we were in
compliance with all relevant PRC laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection in all material
respects during the year ended December 31, 2016 and
as at the date of this Directors’ Report. No environmental
claims, lawsuits, penalties or administrative sanctions
were reported to our management.

The Group formulated the “Hazardous Substances
Safety Management Plan” ((EE W E T 2 B = 5t &)
and the “Medical Waste Management System” ((E&&ERE
YIEEHFIE)) for all hospitals according to the relevant
requirements of the “Environmental Protection Law of
the People’s Republic of China” ({(hE AR MERER
#%)). The above systems focus on the management of
hazardous substances (containing hazardous chemicals
and medical waste), including storage location, container
labelling, protection, leakage handling and disposal in
use. Hospitals conduct supervisions and inspections
mainly on storage and labelling on hazardous chemicals
and conclude the analysis results on a quarterly basis. As
required by the “Law of the People's Republic of China on
Energy Conservation” ((FEARKFEEHNEIRED), the
Group formulated the “Optimization System of Resource
Decision” ((ERERZEERHIE)), which focuses on the

management of resource decision-making process and
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EEEWE

specifies the requirements on the quality, reasonable
allocation and use of newly procured resources. The
Group monitors the outcome of such decision upon its
implementation, and assesses the effectiveness and
safety by using relevant information and makes further
decision so as to ensure the effective implementation of
the above policies.

Meanwhile, the Group formulated the “Utilities Safety
Management Plan” ({2 A& it &% & B E 5 &)), “Safety
and Protection Management Plan” ((Z2MEEEFTE)
and “Medical Technology Safety Management Plan” ((&
BERMZ2EE5E)), and passed the “Facility Safety
Management Plan” (iRt Z 2 EE513])) to ensure the
effective implementation of the above plans. The Group
formulated the “Radiation Safety Management Plan”
(et Z 2= EE52)) and “Radiation Emergency Plan”
((%8 5 f& = 78 X)) for all hospitals, which focuses on
the management of radiation safety and specifies the
requirements on all radiation equipment, protection and
radiation-related waste treatment. Every year, qualified
testing and rating agencies are engaged to monitor
the radiation level of all radiological equipment and
workplaces in the hospitals. Moreover, the hospitals carry
out drills against radiation accidents and evaluate and
conclude the responsiveness.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and
Regulations

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and
belief as at the date of this Directors’ Report, the Group
has complied in material respects with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group is committed to operating in a sustainable
manner while balancing the interests of our various
stakeholders including our Substantial Shareholders,
employees, patients, customers, suppliers, business
partners and the community.

An account of the Group’s relationship with its Substantial
Shareholders is included in the “Interests of Substantial
Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares and Underlying
Shares” set out on page 71 of this annual report.
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The Group considers its employees as the key to
sustainable business growth. We are committed to
providing all employees a safe and harassment-free
working environment with equal opportunities in relation
to employment, remuneration management, training and
career development. This commitment is incorporated
in our Corporate Responsibility Policy and Employment
Policy. Workplace safety is a priority of the Group that,
with due awareness of all employees throughout the year,
the Group was able to maintain a high standard of health
and safety measures in all company activities. We have in
place a fair and effective performance appraisal system
and incentive bonus schemes that designed to motivate
and reward employees at all levels, which helps to deliver
their best performance and achieve business performance
targets. For talent acquisition and continuous
development, the Group offers training programs as well
as leadership and talent development programs for talents
with different academic backgrounds. The Group believes
that direct and effective communication is essential for
good partnership built-up between management and
employees. The Group holds regular meetings and forums
to brief employees on company developments and obtain
their feedbacks and suggestions.

As a patient-oriented healthcare services provider,
we consider patients as one of the most important
stakeholders. We are committed to serving our patients to
the best of our ability and continually enhancing the level
of service excellence. The Group has embraced new media
platforms as an effective communication channel with our
patients to collect feedbacks and help us identify areas
for further improvement.

The Group is committed to upholding the highest ethical
and professional standards when dealing with suppliers
and contractors. To integrate CSR principles throughout
our GPO business, the Group has implemented the Group
Purchasing Policy and Principles, and a Supplier Code of
Conduct to facilitate a common means whereby we can
better communicate with our business partners regarding
their compliance with local regulations governing labor,
health and safety, and the environment. In order to have a
better and close monitoring of supplier performance, our
procurement department conduct supplier performance
review annually targeting our major suppliers and
contractors, and will communicate with the suppliers
that have unsatisfactory rating for rectification or
improvements.
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For details and cases mentioned above, please refer to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages
125 to 143 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on page 151 of this
annual report.

The Board proposes to pay a final dividend of HK$6.3
cents (equivalent to RMB5.6 cents) per Share for FY2016
(FY2015: final dividend: nil; special dividend: HK$12 cents
per Share). The proposed final dividend will be payable
to Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Tuesday, June 27, 2017. Based
on the number of Shares in issue of the Company as of
December 31, 2016, the total amount of final dividends is
approximately HK$82 million. Subject to the approval by
Shareholders at the annual general meeting to be held on
Friday, June 16, 2017, it is expected that the final dividend
will be distributed on or before July 30, 2017.

The Group is not aware of any arrangement under which a
Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

SHARE CAPITAL

On October 31, 2016, the Company issued 462,913,516
ordinary shares with par value of HKD0.00025 per share
to CR Healthcare Group. Details of the movements in the
share capital of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2016 are set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
for the year ended December 31, 2016 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 155
of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2016, the Group had no distributable
reserve that was available for distribution to the
Shareholders.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, and
subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association,
the share premium account is distributable to the
Shareholders, provided that immediately following the
proposed date of dividend distribution, the Company shall
be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the Group’s property, plant
and equipment during the year ended December 31,
2016 are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, is set out on page 296 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Other Expenses”
under the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on page 42 of this annual report.

BORROWINGS

As at December 31, 2016, the Group had no borrowings.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at December 31, 2016, the Group had no pledge of
assets.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the sales and purchase agreements with CITIC
Medical and CR Healthcare Group as set out in the
paragraph headed “Significant Investments, Acquisitions
and Disposals, Investments in and Receivables from JV
Company and Subsequent Plans for Material Capital
Investments” under the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and the Share Option Scheme as
set out in the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme”
under the section headed “Directors’ Report”, no equity-
linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
existed during the year ended December 31, 2016.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended December 31, 2016, sales to the
Group’s five largest customers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 59.2% (2015: 56.9%) of the total sales for
the year and sales to the largest customer accounted for
approximately 22.8% (2015: 21.7%) of the total sales.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 59.5% (2015:
60.1%) of the total purchases for the year and purchases
from the largest supplier accounted for approximately
46.3% (2015: 46.2%) of the total purchases.
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The sponsor for Yan Hua Hospital is Yan Hua Phoenix,
which is indirectly owned by Ms. Xu Jie, the then executive
Director (resigned on November 25, 2016), and Ms. Xu
Xiaojie, daughter of Ms. Xu Jie. Speed Key Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company, was then wholly-
owned by Mr. Xu Baorui, the father of Ms. Xu Jie. Thus, Yan
Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital Group are connected
persons of the Company as defined under the Listing
Rules. Yan Hua Hospital was also one of the Group’s five
largest customers for the year ended December 31, 2016.

Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, neither the Directors nor any of their close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any
Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital), had
any direct or indirect interest in the five largest customers
or the five largest suppliers of the Group during the year
ended December 31, 2016.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, each Director
shall be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in the execution
of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Group
has taken out insurance policies against the liability and
costs associated with defending any proceeding.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended December 31, 2016
and up to the date of this Directors’ Report are as follows:

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wang Yin (Chairman of the Board)
(appointed on November 25, 2016)
Mr. Wang Yan
(appointed on November 25, 2016)
Mr. He Xuan
(appointed on November 25, 2016)
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Mr. Liang Hongze
(resigned as executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer and re-designated as non-executive Director
on November 25, 2016)

Mr. Yang Huisheng
(resigned on February 1, 2016)

Mr. Rui Wei
(resigned on February 1, 2016)

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Libing (Vice Chairman of the Board)
(appointed on February 1, 2016)

Mr. Wu Potao (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as executive Director since
November 25, 2016 and appointed as Chief
Executive Officer on December 28, 2016)

Mr. Xu Zechang (Executive General Manager)
(resigned on November 25, 2016 and re-appointed
as executive Director on December 28, 2016)

Ms. Xu Jie
(resigned on November 25, 2016)
Mr. Zhang Xiaodan
(resigned on December 28, 2016)
Mr. Jiang Tianfan
(resigned on November 25, 2016)
Mr. Shan Baojie
(appointed on February 1, 2016 and resigned on
November 25, 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong

Ms. Cheng Hong

Mr. Sun Jianhua

Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix

None of the Directors has any financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships with one another.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company are set out under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 117
to 124 of this annual report.
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DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO RULE
13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
November 25, 2016, Mr. Liang Hongze has resigned as
an executive Director and been re-designated as a non-
executive Director on November 25, 2016. Mr. Liang
Hongze entered into a new service agreement with the
Company on November 25, 2016 for a term of two years,
pursuant to which he is not entitled to remuneration
from the Group in respect of his appointment as non-
executive Director. As disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated November 25, 2016 and December
28, 2016, Mr. Xu Zechang has resigned as an executive
Director on November 25, 2016 and been re-appointed
as an executive Director on December 28, 2016. Mr. Xu
Zechang entered into a new service agreement with the
Company on December 28, 2016 for a term of two years,
pursuant to which he is entitled to a fixed remuneration of
RMB1,492,560 per annum for serving as executive Director.
Save as disclosed above, there are no other changes to
the Directors’ information as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF

APPOINTMENT OF THE DIRECTORS

Each of Mr. Wang Yin, Mr. Wang Yan, Mr. He Xuan, Mr.
Liang Hongze and Mr. Wu Potao has entered into a
service agreement with the Group for a term of two years
commencing from November 25, 2016, respectively. Mr.
Cheng Libing has entered into a service agreement with
the Group for a term of two years commencing from
February 1, 2016. Mr. Xu Zechang has entered into a
service agreement with the Group for a term of two years
commencing from December 28, 2016. However, all of the
abovementioned agreements can be terminated by either
party giving to the other party not less than one month
notice in writing.

Each of Ms. Cheng Hong, Mr. Sun Jianhua and Mr. Kwong
Kwok Kong, who are all independent non-executive
Directors, has previously entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company on September 1, 2013
for a term of three years. Their appointments have been
renewed up to December 31, 2017 upon expiry on August
31, 2016. Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix, who is an independent
non-executive Director, has previously entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company on August 21, 2015 for
a term of one year. His appointment has been renewed
up to December 31, 2017 upon expiry on August 20, 2016.
Each letter of appointment shall be terminable by giving
the other party not less than three months prior notice
in writing. Pursuant to the letters of appointment, each
of Ms. Cheng Hong, Mr. Sun Jianhua, Mr. Kwong Kwok
Kong and Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix is entitled to an annual
Director’s fee of RMB240,000, RMB240,000, HK$500,000
and RMB240,000 respectively.
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Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has entered into or intends to enter into a service contract
with any member of our Group which is not determinable
by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than the statutory compensation).

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals in the Group and remuneration
payable to members of senior management by band are
set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report.

The remuneration of the Directors is subject to review of
the Remuneration Committee and approval by the Board,
such remuneration is determined by taking into account
of the relevant Director’s experience, responsibilities,
workload and time commitment to the Group and the
operating results of the Group and comparable market
statistics.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As of December 31, 2016, the Group had a total of
1,010 full-time employees (December 31, 2015: 895
employees). For FY2016, the staff cost (including Directors’
remuneration in the form of salaries and other benefits)
was approximately RMB240 million (FY2015: RMB210.0
million).

The Group ensures that the remuneration packages of
its employees remain competitive and the remuneration
level of its employees is determined on the basis of
performance with reference to the profitability of the
Group, prevailing remuneration standards in the industry
and market conditions within the general framework of
the Group’s remuneration system.

The Group has also adopted the Share Option Scheme and
the Share Award Scheme so as to provide incentives or
rewards to eligible participants for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries.
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INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company believes that all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent in accordance with
the guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

NON-VOTING UNDERTAKINGS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, Yan Hua Phoenix, as the
sponsor (%% A) of Yan Hua Hospital Group, is entitled to
nominate members to the executive committee of the Yan
Hua Hospital Group. Our then Controlling Shareholders,
Beijing Wantong and Yan Hua Phoenix have provided a
non-voting undertaking in favor of the Group in the event
there is any conflict or competition or potential conflict
or potential competition between Yan Hua Hospital Group
and the Group, our then Controlling Shareholders, Beijing
Wantong and Yan Hua Phoenix shall procure the members
of the executive committee nominated by Yan Hua Phoenix
to abstain from voting.

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

Mr. He Xuan is a director and the chairman of the
Board and Mr. Liang Hongze is the general manager of
CR Healthcare Group, a controlling shareholder of the
Company, which is principally engaged in the businesses
of hospital investment, operation, management and
relevant extended services. Saved as the aforementioned,
as of December 31, 2016, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates had engaged in or had any
interest in any business which competes or may compete
with the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As of December 31, 2016, the interests/short positions
of the Directors and the chief executives of the Company
in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required
(a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
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pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are
deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) to be entered into the register kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

Name of
Director

EEHA

Capacity/Nature of interest

B/ EmitE

Liang Hongze

Rz SEEERERES AR
Cheng Libing Beneficial owner

B3 £ BEREAA

Wu Potao Beneficial owner

RINE EnEAA

Xu Zechang Beneficial owner

HEE EnEAA

Note:

1. These interests represented:

(a) 26,705,912 Shares held by Xin Yue Development
Limited, which is wholly owned by Liang Hongze;
and

(b) 155,000 Shares held by Liang Hongze.

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2016, none
of the Directors or chief executives of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and

Interest in controlled corporation and beneficial owner
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the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were deemed or taken to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (c) were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has conditionally adopted the Share Option
Scheme as of September 30, 2013.

1. Purpose
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
incentivize or reward the Eligible Participants (defined
below) for their contribution or potential contribution
to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

2. Eligible Participants

Subject to and in accordance with the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, the
Board may grant options to any full-time or part-
time employees, consultants or potential employees,
consultants, executives or officers (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries at its sole discretion and any suppliers,
customers, consultants, agents and advisers who, in
the absolute discretion of the Board, has contributed
or will contribute to our Group (collectively “Eligible
Participants”).

3. Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from September 30, 2013,
after which time no further option will be granted
but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall
remain in full force, and effective in all other respects
to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise
of any options granted prior thereto and other rights
as may be required in accordance with the provisions
of the Share Option Scheme and options granted prior
thereto but not yet exercised shall continue to be
valid and exercisable in accordance with the Share
Option Scheme.
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Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not,
in aggregate, exceed 80,362,700 Shares, being 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Listing Date (assuming that the over-allotment option
is not exercised).

As at the date of this annual report, the total number
of Shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 80,362,700 Shares, representing 6.2% of
the issued Shares as at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
The total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options granted to any grantee
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) under the Share Option Scheme, in any
12-month period up to the date of grant, shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue.

Offer period and amount payable for
options

An offer of a grant shall remain open for acceptance
by the Eligible Participant for a period of 14 days from
the date of offer, provided that no such offer shall be
open for acceptance after the expiry of the effective
period of the Share Option Scheme. An option shall
be deemed as has been granted to (subject to
certain restrictions in the Share Option Scheme), and
accepted by, the Eligible Participant (the “Grantee”)
and taken effect upon the issuance of an exercise
notice, if the Company receives a copy of the offer
document (including the document for the acceptance
of share option) duly signed by the grantee (the “Offer
Document”), together with a remittance in favor of our
Company in the amount of HK$1.00 in consideration
for the granting of the option on or before the last
date for acceptance. The remittance is not refundable
under any circumstances and shall be deemed as
payment of part of the exercise price. Once accepted,
the option is taken as granted from the date of offer
to the relevant Grantee.
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Minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised
There is no general requirement that an option must
be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised. The period during which an option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme (the “Option Period”) shall be the
period of time to be notified by our Board to each
Grantee as determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that such period shall not exceed 10
years from the commencement date of the vesting
period as stated in the respective Grantee’s Offer
Document.

Basis of determining the subscription
price

The price per share for subscription by a Grantee
pursuant to the exercise of share options (the
“Exercise Price”) shall be determined by the Board,
but in any event shall not be lower than the highest
of:

(i) the official closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
on the date an option is offered (the “Offer Date”);

(ii) the average of the official closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the Offer Date; and

(iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, no share
option had been granted, exercised, expired, cancelled
or lapsed and there is no outstanding share option
under the Share Option Scheme.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme as
a means to recognise the contribution of and provide
incentives for the key management personnel including
Directors and senior management, employed experts and
core employees of the Group. The Share Award Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing from July 7, 2014 (the “Adoption Date”) on
which the Board adopted the Share Award Scheme and is
administrated by the Board and the trustee of the Share
Award Scheme.

In order to provide more flexibility in the administration
and implementation of the Share Award Scheme, the
Board resolved on May 25, 2015 to make amendments to
the terms of the Share Award Scheme and the Scheme
Rules, having retrospective effect from the Adoption
Date, to the effect that the Board may, from time to
time, in its absolute discretion, determine if the Award
Shares shall be granted to a Selected Participant with or
without payment of a price per Award Share payable by
the Selected Participant (the “Grant Price”) which shall
be notified by the Board to each Selected Participant. In
determining whether the Selected Participant shall pay
a Grant Price for the Award Shares and the amount of
the Grant Price, as the case may be, the Board shall take
into consideration matters, including but not limited to
the Selected Participant’s position, experience, years of
service, performance and contribution to the Company, its
subsidiaries and/or associated entities.

The Board will implement the Share Award Scheme in
accordance with the Scheme Rules including but not
limited to providing necessary funds to the trustee for
purchase of no more than 5% of the total number of issued
Shares of the Company as at the Adoption Date with each
Selected Participant receiving not more than 1% of the
total number of issued Shares as at the Adoption Date.
The Company shall comply with the relevant Listing Rules
when granting the Award Shares. If the Award Shares
are granted to the Directors, such award shall constitute
connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and the Company shall comply with the relevant
requirements under the Listing Rules.
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BRMEBETENRMBE > BE2016
F128318  REBRHDEBFEEHER
11,075,200 @ IR 10 - HEEASZE T
FEEEERGHMR - BI£2016F128
31H » RIER D RE T E$% 16,173,339
BREBBRONAREBE TREEHZE
2016F12A3MALFECRERERESH
EHNRBRONES - LUKK20165F12
B31B M RITERERD o

Since the Adoption Date of Share Award Scheme and up
to December 31, 2016, an aggregate of 11,075,200 Award
Shares were granted pursuant to the Share Award Scheme
subject to certain vesting criteria and conditions. As of
December 31, 2016, 6,173,339 Award Shares which were
granted pursuant to the Share Award Scheme remained
unvested. The following table discloses the movement of
Award Shares granted to the Selected Participants for
the year ended December 31, 2016 and outstanding as at
December 31, 2016.

Number of Award Shares

70

RBRHHA
Outstanding Cancelled/ Outstanding
as at lapsed as at Share price
2016.1.1 Granted Vested during  2016.12.31  atgrant
820168 during during  theyear 120165 date Grant Grant
Categoryorname 2HZEH 1818 theyear ~ theyear  FRE#E 12831 KHAH  price date
of participants EEL HAAT ERELE FRBE /&R HAGE RE  HHLEHR RnAH
(Restated) HK$ HK$
(Eit) BT BT

Directors: £
Cheng Libing W& 110,000 110,000 - - 14.92 - 25/05/2015
Xu Zechang %28 110,000 110,000 - - 14.92 - 25/05/2015
Liang Hongze P2 110,000 110,000 - - 14.92 - 25/05/2015
Jiang Tianfan' IRM 110,000 110,000 - - 14.92 - 25/05/2015
Zhang Xiaodan? RER 110,000 110,000 - - 14.92 - 25/05/2015
Shan Baojie® EEf 110,000 110,000 - - 14.92 - 25/05/2015
Sub-total NG 660,000 660,000 - -
Employees =] 660,200 660,200 - - 14.92 - 25/05/2015
Employees &g 3,611,000 1,203,664 - 2,407,336 14.92 12.68  25/05/2015
Employees ] 3,759,000 1,252,997 - 2,506,003 14.92 - 25/05/2015
Employees E& 712,000 - - 712,000 8.98 9.21  22/12/2015
Employees E& 548,000 - - 548,000 8.98 - 22/12/2015
Sub-total N 9,290,200 3,116,861 - 6,173,339
Total @i 9,950,200 3,776,861 - 6,173,339
Notes: et -
1. Mr. Jiang Tianfan resigned as executive Director on 1. JLARMEAR20165F11 A 250 BHT#H

November 25, 2016. TESE -
2. Mr. Zhang Xiaodan resigned as executive Director on 2. REEFFEAEMN20165F12H28H B EH

December 28, 2016. TEE -
3. Mr. Shan Baojie resigned as executive Director on 3. BEEAKLAEMN20165F11 H26R BT

November 25, 2016.

e

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016



The balance of the Shares not yet granted and held by the
trustee for the Share Award Scheme was 7,113,300 Shares
as of December 31, 2016. Subsequently, the trustee for
the Share Award Scheme was instructed to purchase an
aggregate of 8,000,000 Shares at the average price of
HK$10.4245 per Share on April 10, 2017 and an aggregate
of 3,000,000 Shares at the average price of HK$10.3894
per Share on April 11, 2017 from the market, following
which the balance of the Shares not yet granted and held
by the trustee for the Share Award Scheme was 18,113,300
Shares.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As of December 31, 2016, the following persons (other than
the Directors and chief executives of the Company) had
or were deemed or taken to have an interest and/or short
position in the Shares or the underlying Shares which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and entered into the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 5%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company.
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
shares held FEREA
FEROEAE Bok
%

Name of Shareholder

Capacity/Nature of interest

REREHE g4 REtE

China Resources National Interest in Controlled

Corporation Corporation 462,913,516 (L)' 35.70
R ZEEE QT ZEEEER
Speed Key Limited Beneficial owner 181,401,360 (L)? 13.99

ERBEEA

Xu Baorui Interest in Controlled Corporation 181,401,360 (L)2 13.99
RER ZiIELERER
CITIC Group Corporation Interest in Controlled Corporation 130,571,837 (L)® 10.07
FEAEEEBRA T SEEEER
CITIC Medical & Health Beneficial owner

Group Co., Ltd 130,571,837 (L)® 10.07
FEEEREEXEEEEBRAT BmEBA
L: Long position L: &R

Notes: Mt -

72

These shares are directly held by CRH (Phoenix
Healthcare) Limited. CRH (Phoenix Healthcare) Limited
is wholly owned by China Resources Healthcare
Group Limited. China Resources Healthcare Group
Limited is wholly owned by CRH (Healthcare) Limited.
CRH (Healthcare) Limited is wholly owned by China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited is wholly
owned by CRC Bluesky Limited. CRC Bluesky Limited
is wholly owned by China Resources Co., Limited.
China Resources Co., Limited is wholly owned by China
Resources National Corporation.

These shares are held by Speed Key Limited, of which
95% interests are held by Mr. Xu Baorui.

These shares are to be issued to CITIC Medical
& Health Group Co., Ltd pursuant to the sale and
purchase agreement dated October 28, 2016 in relation
to the acquisition of Huizhou Hospital and Hangzhou
Hospitals, which is not completed. CITIC Medical &
Health Group Co., Ltd is wholly owned by CITIC Group
Corporation.

ZEROMBEHREE (BRARE) BR
NAEERE EHEE (BRABE)
ERAGHREHIBREEBBRAREE
HE ZEHBESEARAFHERS
B (8% BRARZEHRE - EHE
B (2%) BRAFHER (£E) R
NEIZEHRE - EH (&8) BRAA
FICRC Bluesky Limited®&# %A ° CRC
Bluesky Limited B¥E BN BR AR E
BA EEROHARATBPEER
BRATIZEWE -

ZEWR D HSpeed Key Limited# A -
% B A5G Speed Key Limited Ay
95%HEm ©

BIEBHA20165F10 4288 A E
BMEREMMER S ATXNESE
W& ZERNDBEITTREEERR
REXSBEERDGE - FIEEE@RE
EXEEARARATEFEEER
RABIZEWE -
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Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2016, the
Directors were not aware of any person (other than the
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had
an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES

Save as the details as set out in the paragraphs headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company or its Associated Corporations”, “Share
Option Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme” under the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”,
at no time during the year ended December 31, 2016 any
right to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate has been granted to Directors or their
respective spouse or children under the age of 18, and
none of any such right has been exercised by them; and
none of the Company and any of its subsidiaries has been
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, or
their respective spouse or children under the age of 18, to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save for the transactions disclosed below, none of the
Directors had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
during the year ended December 31, 2016.

RIGHT TO ACQUIRE
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Major and Connected Transaction in
relation to the Acquisition of Ample
Mighty

The Company entered into the term sheet dated April
8, 2016, the supplemental term sheet dated April
29, 2016 and the sale and purchase contract dated
August 30, 2016 with the seller, CR Healthcare Group,
pursuant to which the Company agreed to acquire,
and the seller agreed to sell, the entire equity interest
in Ample Mighty, through which the Company would
acquire the assets and the equity interests of and/
or the right to operate Xukuang Hospital, Huaikuang
Hospital Group, Brain Hospital, 999 Clinic and
Wugang Hospital Group. The consideration for the
acquisition is HK$3,721,824,669, which was satisfied
by the Company by way of the allotment and issue of
462,913,516 Shares at the price of HK$8.04 per Share.

As CR Healthcare Group would become a controller
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company upon
the completion of the acquisition, the acquisition
constituted a connected transaction under Rule
14A.28 of the Listing Rules. The acquisition was
completed on October 31, 2016, upon which the seller
held approximately 35.7% of the issued share capital
of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and
issue of the consideration shares.

Please refer to the Company’s announcements dated
April 8, 2016, May 3, 2016, August 30, 2016 and
October 31, 2016 and circular dated October 7, 2016
for details of the acquisition of Ample Mighty.

FEXS
BRANBERENTENBERS

2z

AARHEERFEHEEEET LA
B B2016F4A8HMIERRE - B
A2016F 429N RIERERH
HE2016%E8A30EMNEE SR &
I RATRERE  mELSREEH
EEENZIRE  MAQAGEL
B R TEEERT  ETEERFREE - AR
BT - =AM REAEREEN
EERRER SEEE - KBS
18 2 X {8 53,721,824,6698 T » I
EHAQFEEERRMD8.048BITZ
BB 3% & 3£ 17462,913,516 R % 12
Bt

HREBEEEEBABIBSEETK
BRARDTZEFHA (EER L™
FA) > RIE LR BIE14A.280% >
WHESTEEAEERS - WIESEED
720165 10B31H=K > MEHF RN
EREFEZROELERBERETR
EROBRAZALITCHITRALN
35.7% °

BRWIBEENFS  F2HEAATH
#1A20165F4H88H ~ 20165F5H3H
201658 A30H K 20165108318 K
NELURBHE2016F1087HKE
BH o
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II.LCONTINUING CONNECTED

TRANSACTIONS

Yan Hua IOT Agreement

Beijing Phoenix, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the hospital management right
and investment framework agreement dated February
1, 2008 and the hospital investment management
agreement dated February 4, 2008, both of which
were supplemented in April 2008, December 2010,
June 2011, June 2013, July 2013, September 2013
and October 2013, with Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan
Hua Hospital Group (collectively, the “Yan Hua IOT
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Yan Hua IOT Agreement,
Beijing Phoenix has agreed to (i) pay Yan Hua Phoenix
an amount of RMB72 million; and (ii) invest a total of
RMB150 million by tranches into Yan Hua Hospital
Group prior to 2015, in exchange for the right to
manage Yan Hua Hospital, to receive the management
fees from Yan Hua Hospital Group until July 17, 2055,
and to support the long-term development of Yan
Hua Hospital Group. The term of the Yan Hua I0OT
Agreement is from February 1, 2008 to July 17, 2055,
which is subject to approval by the independent
Shareholders of the Group every three years.

As the original annual caps under the Yan Hua I0T
Agreement expired on December 31, 2015, and given
the term of the Yan Hua IOT Agreement is subject
to approval by the independent Shareholders every
three years and the significant contribution of the
management fees contributes to the source of
revenue of the Group, the Company proposed to
continue the Yan Hua I0T Agreement and proposed to
renew the annual caps for the three financial years
ended December 31, 2018, which was approved at the
extraordinary general meeting on October 31, 2016.
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The approved annual caps for the management fees
and the investment repayment under the Yan Hua
IOT Agreement for the three financial years ended
December 31,2018 are as follows:

For the financial

For the financial

HZE20185F12A31H L =@ B &
B HACIOTHERETHWEEERR
RERENSHEEE ERRINT -

For the financial

year ended year ended year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2016 2017 2018
HZ2016%F HZ2017% HZ2018%
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H

IFETREE IFETREE IFETREE
Annual cap on the management fees EBERFE LR RMB39.9 million ~ RMB47.3 million ~ RMB55.7 million
AR¥39.98ET ARM473EERT AR¥S57EER
Annual cap on the investment REREFELR RMB3.6 million ~ RMB3.6 million ~ RMB3.6 million
repayment AR¥I6EEL ARMI6EET ARMI6EER
Total ‘st RMB43.5 million  RMB50.9 million ~ RMB59.3 million
AR®4358BT ARM5098BER ARW59.3HER

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the
amounts of the management fees and the investment
repayment under the Yan Hua IOT Agreement paid/
payable by Yan Hua Hospital Group were RMB35.8
million and RMB3.6 million, respectively.

The sponsor for Yan Hua Hospital is Yan Hua Phoenix,
which is indirectly owned by Ms. Xu Jie, the then
executive Director (resigned on November 25, 2016),
and Ms. Xu Xiaojie, daughter of Ms. Xu Jie. Speed Key
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company,
was then wholly-owned by Mr. Xu Baorui, the father
of Ms. Xu Jie. Thus, Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua
Hospital Group are connected persons of the Company
as defined under the Listing Rules.

Please refer to the Company’s announcements dated
July 8, 2016 and October 31, 2016 and circular dated
October 14, 2016 for details of the Yan Hua 10T
Agreement.

B ZE2016F12HA31HILFEE - #1b
B EERBR/IOTHESNS JE
RNEBRBRARREREDIAARE
I5.8EETRARYIEET

LB EBRABRBE - ik
tEERERNHTESRELZL
(FA2016F 11 A25A BHE) RIREXZ
THLZRBNELLIEERSE - A2
A EER R Speed Key Limited EBF
HREZ TR RERLEZERR
B Hit HEBERRRCERER
BAATNBEEAL (EERLELHR
A) o

BRERIOTHENFEE  F2HK
AAIHE A2016F7H8H k20164
10B831THN A EF UK BEIA20165F
10B14BMEH -
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Yan Hua PMM Framework Agreement

Beijing Wanrong, Beijing Jiayi, Beijing Phoenix and Yan
Hua Hospital Group entered into the pharmaceutical,
medical device and medical consumables sales
framework agreement (the “Original Yan Hua PMM
Framework Agreement”) on November 6, 2013.
Beijing Wanrong and Beijing Jiayi are both wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Company. As the Original
Yan Hua PMM Framework Agreement would expire
on November 5, 2016, Beijing Wanrong, Beijing Jiayi,
Beijing Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital Group entered
into the supplemental agreement in relation to the
extension of the term of the Original Yan Hua PMM
Framework Agreement (the “Supplemental Yan Hua
PMM Framework Agreement”, together with the
Original Yan Hua PMM Framework Agreement, the
“Yan Hua PMM Framework Agreement”) on July 8,
2016 to extend the term of the Original Yan Hua PMM
Framework Agreement until December 31, 2018. As
the original annual caps under the Yan Hua PMM
Framework Agreement expired on December 31, 2015,
the Company proposed to renew the annual caps
for the three financial years ended December 31,
2018. The Supplemental Yan Hua PMM Framework
Agreement and the proposed annual caps for Yan Hua
PMM Framework Agreement were approved at the
extraordinary general meeting on October 31, 2016.

Pursuant to the Yan Hua PMM Framework Agreement,
Beijing Wanrong and Beijing Jiayi have agreed to
supply, and Yan Hua Hospital Group has agreed to
purchase, PMM on a recurring basis. Under such sales
arrangement, Yan Hua Hospital Group places purchase
orders for PMM to Beijing Wanrong and Beijing Jiayi
from time to time and Beijing Wanrong and Beijing
Jiayi fulfill the orders by selling the products to Yan
Hua Hospital Group at a price equal to the “bidding
price” of the products fixed by the PRC regulators or
the prevailing market price.
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The approved annual caps under the Yan Hua PMM
Framework Agreement for the three financial years
ended December 31, 2018 are as follows:

For the financial
year ended
December 31,

HZ2016F
128310
IR

EELR

Annual cap

HZ2018F 128318 L =AM B E
B BfbER  BEBMREREM
ERBZFETHLKMEFE LR
T
For the financial ~ For the financial
year ended year ended
December 31, December 31,
2017 2018
220175 HZ2018%
12A31H 12A31H
IFTREE IR EE

RMB400.8 million  RMB570.7 million  RMB713.5 million

ARK400.8EET AR¥570.78En ARYE7135BETR

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the
amount of the purchase orders under the Yan Hua
PMM Framework Agreement paid/payable by Yan Hua
Hospital Group was RMB278.1 million.

The sponsor for Yan Hua Hospital is Yan Hua Phoenix,
which is indirectly owned by Ms. Xu Jie, the then
executive Director (resigned on November 25, 2016),
and Ms. Xu Xiaojie, daughter of Ms. Xu Jie. Speed Key
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company,
was then wholly-owned by Mr. Xu Baorui, the father
of Ms. Xu Jie. Thus, Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua
Hospital Group are connected persons of the Company
as defined under the Listing Rules.

Please refer to the Company’s announcements dated
July 8, 2016 and October 31, 2016 and circular dated
October 14, 2016 for details of the Yan Hua PMM
Framework Agreement.

CR PMM Framework Agreement

In contemplation of the Company’s acquisition of
Ample Mighty from CR Healthcare Group and the
supply of the PMM by CR Holdings, the Company and
CR Holdings enter into the PMM supply framework
agreement (the “CR PMM Framework Agreement”) on
October 5, 2016. The term of the CR PMM Framework
Agreement is from the date of completion of the
acquisition of Ample Mighty or the date of the
approval of the CR PMM Framework Agreement by the
independent Shareholders (whichever is the later) to
December 31, 2018, subject to renewal for another
three years by mutual consent and negotiation
between the parties. The CR PMM Framework
Agreement and the proposed caps thereunder were
approved at the extraordinary general meeting on
October 31, 2016.
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Pursuant to the CR PMM Framework Agreement, CR
Holdings may, through its subsidiaries, supply PMM
to the Group and its sponsored hospitals from time
to time. The Group and its sponsored hospitals may
place purchase orders for PMM with CR Holdings or
its subsidiaries from time to time and CR Holdings or
its subsidiaries may sell the products to the Group
and its sponsored hospitals at a price in accordance
with the agreed pricing policy. The details of each
purchase order, including price, payment terms and
delivery arrangement, are to be separately agreed in
accordance with the principles laid down in the CR
PMM Framework Agreement.

The approved caps under the CR PMM Framework
Agreement for the period from November 1, 2016
or the completion date of the acquisition of Ample
Mighty, whichever is the earlier, to December 31, 2016
and the two financial years ended December 2018 are
as follows:
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H (UWBREERZE) £F2016%F128
STAMEIE KR E Z£20185F12831H
IEMEMBFE  FHEEZERD - 8
Bk BAEMERBRETHL
#efE ERRANT ¢

The period from

November 1,
2016 or the
completion date,
whichever Financial year Financial year
is the earlier, ended ended
to December 31, December 31, December 31,
2016 2017 2018
H2016511A1H
A B
(LBREERE) BZ2017%F BZ2018%F
BZ20165F 128318 128318
12831 B EE] FEREE EEREE
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For the period from October 31, 2016 to December 31,
2016, the amount of the purchase orders under the
CR PMM Framework Agreement paid/payable by the
Group was RMB64.3 million.

Upon the completion of the Company’s acquisition
of Ample Mighty on October 31, 2016, CR Holdings
became a controlling shareholder and a connected
person of the Company.

Please refer to the Company’s announcement October
5, 2016 and October 31, 2016 and circular dated
October 7, 2016 for details of CR PMM Framework
Agreement.

CONTINUING TRANSACTIONS
WHICH SUBSEQUENTLY BECAME
CONNECTED

Finance Lease Agreement of Huaikuang
Hospital Group

Huaikuang Hospital Group, as lessee, entered into
the financial lease agreement dated May 3, 2016 (the
“Finance Lease Agreement”) with China Resources
Leasing Company Limited Shanghai Branch* (3 EfH&H
FRAE L8 H /A 8]) (“CR Leasing”), as lessor, in relation
to the finance lease of certain medical device in the
amount of RMB1.86 million for a term of 36 months
at the interest rate of 3.75% per annum (subject to
adjustment). The lease was agreed by the parties
with reference to the useful life of the relevant leased
equipment, the lessee’s financial needs and the
lessor’s capital position. CR Holdings holds 100%
equity interest in CR Leasing. Upon the completion of
the Company’s acquisition of Ample Mighty on October
31, 2016, the Financial Lease Agreement constituted
continuing connected transaction of the Company,
although all of its terms remain unchanged. As the
Finance Lease Agreement is an existing agreement for
a fixed period with fixed terms which subsequently
became connected, the Company will comply with
the annual review and annual reporting requirements
in accordance with Rule 14A.60 of the Listing Rules.
In the event of any variation of the terms or renewal
of the Finance Lease Agreement, the Company will
comply with all connected transaction requirements
including, where applicable, the requirement to seek
independent Shareholders’ approval.
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Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
October 5, 2016 for details of the Finance Lease
Agreement.

Depository Services of Brain Hospital
Brain Hospital has placed certain fixed term deposit
(the “Deposit”) with CR Bank. As at 31 October
2016, Brain Hospital had the balance of the Deposit
amounted to RMB10 million in CR Bank. The Deposit
was withdrawn in December 2016. The Deposit is
interest bearing and is on terms no less favourable
than those offered by CR Bank in relation to similar
deposits placed by other independent customers,
which rate is determined with reference to that
published by the People’s Bank of China. China
Resources Co., Limited, a joint stock limited liability
company and the holding company of CR Holdings,
holds 75.33% equity interest in CR Bank. Upon the
completion of the Company’s acquisition of Ample
Mighty on October 31, 2016, the Deposit constituted
continuing connected transaction of the Company,
although all of its terms remain unchanged. As the
Deposit is an existing agreement for a fixed period
with fixed terms which subsequently became
connected, the Company will comply with the
annual review and annual reporting requirements in
accordance with Rule 14A.60 of the Listing Rules.

Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
October 5, 2016 for details of the Deposit.

The Group has followed the pricing policies
(if applicable) as disclosed in the respective
announcements and circulars when determining
the price and terms of the connected transactions
conducted during the year ended December 31, 2016.
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Annual review of continuing connected
transactions

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, the Board engaged the auditor
of the Company to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in pages 75 to 81
of the Annual Report in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that for the year ended
December 31, 2016:

(i) these transactions were entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i) these transactions were entered into either on
normal commercial terms, or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or
from independent third parties;

(iii) these transactions were entered into on terms
that were fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, none of the related-party
transactions or continuing related-party transactions set
out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report fall within the scope of discloseable
connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction under the Listing Rules. The connected and
continuing connected transactions of the Group are in
compliance with the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

As disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions” above, the Company has renewed its
Yan Hua IOT Agreement and Yan Hua PMM Framework
Agreement with Yan Hua Hospital in FY2016 and the
sponsor for Yan Hua Hospital was indirectly owned by
Ms. Xu Jie, the former Director, and her daughter, Ms.
Xu Xiaojie. Save for the aforementioned, no Director
nor any connected entity of a Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business
of the Group to which the holding company of the
Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party at any time during the year ended
December 31, 2016.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

As disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions” above, the Company entered into the
CR PMM Framework Agreement with CR Holdings, a
controlling shareholder of the Company, on October
5, 2016. Save for the aforementioned, no controlling
shareholders or its subsidiary had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance,
whether for the provision of services or otherwise, to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year ended December
31, 2016.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the service contracts or letters of appointment
with the Directors, the Company has not entered into any
contract with any individuals, firms or corporate entities
to manage or regulate the whole or any substantial part
of any business of the Company during the year ended
December 31, 2016.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee and
formulated the Rules and Procedures for Board Meetings
((E =2 & F R B)) of the Company in accordance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code on
November 4, 2013. Its primary responsibilities include
serving as a focal point for communication among other
Directors, the external auditor and the internal auditor
(where an internal audit function exists) as regards their
duties relating to financial and other reporting, risk
management and internal controls, external and internal
audits and such other financial and accounting matters
as the Board determines from time to time, assisting
the Board in providing an independent review on the
effectiveness of the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
and overseeing the audit procedure, reviewing the Group's
financial and accounting policies and practices and
performing other duties and responsibilities as designated
by the Board.

As of December 31, 2016, the Audit Committee currently
comprises one non-executive Director, Mr. Wang Yan
and three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong (committee chairman), Ms. Cheng
Hong and Mr. Sun Jianhua. The Audit Committee, together
with the management of the Company, has reviewed
the accounting principles, accounting standards and
methods adopted by the Company, discussed the matters
concerning risk management and internal control,
auditing and financial reporting matters and reviewed the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended December 31, 2016.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee
and formulated the Rules and Procedures for Board
Meetings ({2 & & #& £ # BI)) of the Company in
compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and
the CG Code on November 4, 2013. The Remuneration
Committee is mainly responsible for: (i) making
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure
for Directors’ and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy; (ii) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
package of Directors and senior management; and
(iii) reviewing and evaluating the performance-based
remuneration and ensure that no Directors or any of his
associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

As of December 31, 2016, the Remuneration Committee
currently consisted of one executive Director, Mr. Wu
Potao, and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Sun Jianhua (committee chairman) and Mr. Lee
Kar Chung Felix.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee
on November 4, 2013. The Nomination Committee is
mainly responsible for: (i) identifying individuals suitably
qualified as potential Board members and selecting or
making recommendation to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; (ii) reviewing
the structure, size and diversity of the Board and the
required skill mix as well as making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to ensure the
implementation of the Company’s strategic goal; (iii)
assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and (iv) reviewing the qualification
of senior management nominated by the Chief Executive
Officer, reported to the Board for consideration and
adoption.

As of December 31, 2016, the Nomination Committee
consisted of one non-executive Director, Mr. Liang Hongze,
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms.
Cheng Hong (committee chairman) and Mr. Lee Kar Chung
Felix.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer
new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as rules governing
dealings by Directors in the listed securities of the
Company.

Having made specific enquiry, the Company confirmed
that all members of the Board complied with the Model
Code during the year ended December 31, 2016. As senior
managers, executives and officers who, because of their
offices in the Company, may possess inside information
of the Company, they shall comply with the provision of
the Model Code. To the best knowledge of the Company,
no incident of non-compliance to the Model Code has
been committed by such employees during the year ended
December 31, 2016.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
annual general meeting to be held on Friday, June 16, 2017,
the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, June 13, 2017 to Friday, June 16, 2017, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to qualify as members entitled
to attend and vote at the annual general meeting, investors
should lodge all transfers of shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong
time) on Monday, June 12, 2017.
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For determining the entitlement to the proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Friday, June 23, 2017 to Tuesday, June 27,
2017, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
entitlement to the proposed final dividend, all transfers
of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Thursday,
June 22, 2017.

CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The full text of the Corporate Governance Report is set out
on pages 89 to 116 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES
During the year ended December 31, 2016, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available and to the
best of the Board’s knowledge, information and belief, the
Company has always maintained sufficient public float as
at the date of this annual report.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the Company’s securities.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO DECEMBER
31,2016

As at the date of this annual report, the Group did not
have any significant events after December 31, 2016.
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AUDITOR

The Company has appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
the auditor of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2016. A resolution will be proposed for approval by
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Wang Yin
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 24, 2017
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance
Report for the year ended December 31, 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is dedicated to establishing a sound corporate
governance system for ensuring the formality and
transparency of the procedures while safeguarding the
interests of the Shareholders.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in
the CG Code as its own code of corporate governance
and confirms that it has complied with all material code
provisions, save for certain deviations as described below
and most of the recommended best practices under the
CG Code during the year ended December 31, 2016.

According to code provision C.1.5 of the CG Code, the Board
should present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment in annual and interim reports and other
financial disclosures required by the Listing Rules. It
should also do so for reports to regulators and information
disclosed under statutory requirements.

The Company will review and commit in making necessary
arrangement to comply with all the code provisions under
the CG Code and the rising expectations of Shareholders
and investors.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code
of conduct for dealing in securities of the Company by
the Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code.

Having made specific enquiry, the Company confirmed
that all members of the Board complied with the Model
Code during the year ended December 31, 2016. As senior
management, executives and officers may possess inside
information of the Company due to their positions, they
shall comply with the provision of the Model Code. To
the best knowledge of the Company, no incident of non-
compliance with the Model Code has been committed by
such employees during the year ended December 31, 2016.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors are accountable to all Shareholders for their
leadership and supervision over the Group’s operation,
and are committed to achieving the goal of increasing

Shareholders’ value.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised
eleven Directors, including three executive Directors,
four non-executive Directors and four independent non-
executive Directors, and changes to the Board members
during the year ended December 31, 2016 and up to the
date of this annual report are as follows:

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wang Yin (Chairman of the Board)
(appointed on November 25, 2016)
Mr. Wang Yan
(appointed on November 25, 2016)
Mr. He Xuan
(appointed on November 25, 2016)
Mr. Liang Hongze
(resigned as executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer and re-designated as non-executive Director
on November 25, 2016)
Mr. Yang Huisheng
(resigned on February 1, 2016)
Mr. Rui Wei
(resigned on February 1, 2016)

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Libing (Vice Chairman of the Board)
(appointed on February 1, 2016)

Mr. Wu Potao (Chief Executive Officer)

(appointed as executive Director on November 25, 2016
and appointed as Chief Executive Officer
on December 28, 2016)

Mr. Xu Zechang (Executive General Manager)
(resigned on November 25, 2016 and re-appointed
as executive Director on December 28, 2016)

Ms. Xu Jie
(resigned on November 25, 2016)

Mr. Zhang Xiaodan
(resigned on December 28, 2016)

Mr. Jiang Tianfan
(resigned on November 25, 2016)

Mr. Shan Baojie
(appointed on February 1, 2016 and
resigned on November 25, 2016)
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Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong

Ms. Cheng Hong

Mr. Sun Jianhua

Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix

None of the members of the Board is related to one
another.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
117 to 124 of this annual report. The list of the Directors
(by category) is also disclosed in all of the corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time
in accordance with the Listing Rules.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Board
complied at all times with the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive Directors (representing
at least one-third of the Board), of which at least one
Director has appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent in accordance with the guidelines set out in
the Listing Rules.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) brought a wide range of business and financial
expertise, experience and judgment to the Board. Through
active participation at Board meetings, taking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflict of interests
and serving on Board committees, all the non-executive
Directors have made various contributions to the effective
development of the Company.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance
cover to protect Directors from possible legal action
against them.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for the performance of the
functions of corporate governance. For the year ended
December 31, 2016, the Board has performed the functions
set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the
roles of chairman and Chief Executive Officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

For the period from January 1, 2016 to April 24, 2016,
Mr. Liang Hongze was both the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer. The Board believes that vesting the
roles of both the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
in an experienced and qualified person such as Mr. Liang
Hongze provides the Company with strong and consistent
leadership while allowing for effective and efficient
planning and implementation of business decisions and
strategies during such period.

On April 25, 2016, Mr. Liang resigned as the Chairman and
remained as the Chief Executive Officer. Ms. Xu Jie, an
executive Director, has been appointed as the Chairman
with effect from April 25, 2016. Since then, the roles of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer have been
separated and performed by different individuals, and
therefore, the Company has complied with the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Chairman has been changed to Mr. Wang Yin with
effect from November 25, 2016 and the vice Chairman is
Mr. Cheng Libing since February 1, 2016.

Mr. Liang Hongze resigned as an executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer and has been redesignated
as a non-executive Director on November 25, 2016. Mr.
Zhang Xiaodan was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer on November 25, 2016 and subsequently resigned
as executive Director and Chief Executive Officer on
December 28, 2016. Mr. Wu Potao was appointed as Chief
Executive Officer on December 28, 2016.
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Under the leadership of Mr. Wang Yin, the Chairman
and Mr. Cheng Libing, the vice Chairman, the Board is
responsible for the approval and supervision of the
Group’s general development strategy, the review and
approval of the annual budget and business plans, the
consent of material investment projects related to the
Group’s business development, the review on the Group’s
performance and the supervision of the work of the
management, and ensures that the Board acts in the best
interests of the Group, operates effectively and performs
the necessary duties, as well as discusses all the
significant and appropriate issues of the Group’s business
in a timely manner. All the Directors are entitled to propose
the inclusion of any item in the agenda of the Board
meetings for appropriate discussion. Mr. Wang Yin, as the
Chairman, and Mr. Cheng Libing, as the Vice Chairman,
have appointed the secretary of the meeting to draft the
Board meetings’ agendas. Under the assistance of the
executive Directors and the secretary of the Board, the
Chairman will ensure that all the Directors are provided
with sufficient and reliable information in a timely manner
required for necessary analysis based on their expertise.

Mr. Wu Potao, as the Chief Executive Officer, has delegated
sufficient authority for the operation and management of
the Group’s business to the executive Directors and other
senior management members, who are in-charge of the
daily management of the Group in every aspect, including
implementation of the Board’s resolutions unanimously,
and be accountable to the Chief Executive Officer for the
operations of various aspects of the Group’s business,
while the Chief Executive Officer shall be accountable to
the Board for the Group’s operations as a whole.

The responsibilities of the Board are as follows:

(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

Corporate Governance Report

TEERHE

HESRIMEERBESRALILEE
MEST  ESEREMNEREELEE
MEEERRRE FRARFUFERESR
REHKRE  BERRAFAEEEBRRN
EAXREEE B AEERBEREEE
HEIF IRREZSULSEBRER
RITE AREELETLERYE  mA
RENmAREXBNAEERREYS
He 2REFHEREHENSZRIAE
SEERFRE  UHREFW - FRES
RNTEAERERARESRARLISL
STEEIERNEERESTEEERRE -
HHTEERESSHEHT - TEH
BREEESERKEHEHRAISESR
B RURARERBERELELEZDN
FirdE »

ERTHAR  RISELECHIATES
REMEREZENEERATER KU
EENEEAKERY  NEXEAEH
RERNAFEE  BEER—ButHT
ESERER  UNAKEXBHEEHE
MEZERTRREAREEE  MITHAR
A AEEREEENESEEE -

ETENREERETIRE
(a) HERBNARDRANEEEGHERR
FHUOESSREER

(b) MAREREERSREEASHE
IRIFEERERE

>l

i
+
sl

EPERBRERARAT —F—7

93



94

Corporate Governance Report
TEERME

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

In order to enhance its corporate governance structure,
the Company has formulated the “Rules and Procedures
for Board Meetings”. The “Rules and Procedures for Board
Meetings” specifies that the Operation and Development
Committee (fEZHEHFEEZEE) is composed of executive
Directors, Chief Financial Officer and Deputy General
Managers, all being called together by the Chief Executive
Officer. As the approval organization for the Company’s
daily operational management, the committee is
responsible for organizing and managing the Company’s
daily operations and accountable to the Board.

BOARD MEETINGS

According to code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, regular
Board meetings should be held at least four times a year
at approximately quarterly intervals. During the year ended
December 31, 2016, there were only two regular Board
meetings held to review and consider the interim results
and the annual results, respectively, as the Company is
not required to announce its quarterly results under the
Listing Rules. Seven other Board meetings were held
during the year ended December 31, 2016. The Chairman
also held a meeting with the non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Director) without
presence of the executive Directors during the year.

For the entire year ended December 31, 2016, the Board
has convened and held nine Board meetings, among which,
the Company held two Board meetings after completion
of the acquisition of assets from CR Healthcare Group.
Attendance records of the Directors at the Board meetings
are set out as follows:
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Name of director

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wang Yin
(appointed on November 25, 2016)
Mr. Wang Yan
(appointed on November 25, 2016)
Mr. He Xuan
(appointed on November 25, 2016)
Mr. Liang Hongze
(resigned as executive Director and
redesignated as non-executive
Director on November 25, 2016)

Executive Directors:
Mr. Cheng Libing
(appointed on February 1, 2016)
Mr. Wu Potao
(appointed on November 25, 2016)
Mr. Xu Zechang
(resigned on November 25, 2016 and
re-appointed as executive Director
on December 28, 2016)
Ms. Xu Jie
(resigned on November 25, 2016)
Mr. Zhang Xiaodan
(resigned on December 28, 2016)
Mr. Jiang Tianfan
(resigned on November 25, 2016)
Mr. Shan Baojie
(appointed on February 1, 2016 and
resigned on November 25, 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong

Ms. Cheng Hong

Mr. Sun Jianhua

Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix
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PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

Notice of regular Board meetings had been served to all
Directors at least 14 days prior to the meetings to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend.

For regular Board and committee meetings, all agendas,
meeting papers, together with all applicable, complete
and reliable statistics will be sent to all the Directors or
committees at least three days before a meeting is held.
All Directors may propose any business to be included
in the agenda of the Board or committee meetings and
contact the company secretary to ensure full compliance
with all of the Board’s procedures and applicable
regulations.

In general, the senior management members shall
attend all the regular Board meetings and, if necessary,
other Board and committee meetings to advise on the
Group’s business development, financial and accounting
matters, statutory and regulatory compliance, corporate
governance and risk management as well as other
significant issues. The Board may, if appropriate, authorize
the Directors to seek independent and professional advice
at the expense of the Group. Matters discussed and
resolved at Board meetings will be recorded in detail by
the Board secretary who shall prepare and file the minutes
or resolutions. Generally, draft minutes of Board meeting
shall be issued to the Directors within reasonable time for
their comments after such meeting is held, and the final
version will be open for inspections by the Directors.

The Articles of Association contains provision requiring
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted
in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in
which such Directors or their associates have a material
interest and this provision has always been complied with.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

According to the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but no less than one-third) are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and any new Director appointed to fill casual vacancy shall
hold office until the next following general meeting of the
Company and for any Director appointed as an addition to
the Board shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company. The retiring Directors
shall be eligible for re-election.

Prior to the completion of reorganization with CR
Healthcare Group on October 31, 2016, the changes in
Directors were as follows: Mr. Shan Baojie (Deputy General
Manager) was appointed as an executive Director on
February 1, 2016; Mr. Cheng Libing (Vice Chairman of the
Board) was appointed as an executive Director on February
1, 2016; Mr. Yang Huisheng resigned as a non-executive
Director on February 1, 2016; Mr. Rui Wei resigned as a
non-executive Director of the Company on February 1,
2016.

Upon the completion of reorganization with CR Healthcare
Group on October 31, 2016, the Board members were
adjusted accordingly as follows: Mr. Liang Hongze, Ms.
Xu Jie, Mr. Shan Baojie and Mr. Jiang Tianfan resigned
as executive Directors on November 25, 2016; Mr. Wang
Yin (Chairman), Mr. Wang Yan, Mr. He Xuan and Mr. Liang
Hongze were appointed as non-executive Directors on
November 25, 2016; Mr. Zhang Xiaodan was appointed
as the Chief Executive Officer and a member of the
Remuneration Committee on November 25, 2016, and
resigned as an executive Director, the Chief Executive
Officer and a member of the Remuneration Committee
on December 28, 2016; Mr. Wu Potao was appointed as
an executive Director, the Executive General Manager on
November 25, 2016, and resigned as the Executive General
Manager and was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer and a member of the Remuneration Committee
on December 28, 2016; Mr. Xu Zechang resigned as an
executive Director on November 25, 2016, and was re-
appointed as an executive Director and the Executive
General Manager on December 28, 2016.
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Any other appointment, resignation, removal or re-
designation of Directors will be timely disclosed to the
Shareholders by announcement and shall include in such
announcement, the reasons given by the Director for his
resignation.

Mr. Wang Yin, Mr. Wang Yan, Mr. He Xuan and Mr. Liang
Hongze have been appointed as non-executive Directors
for a term of 2 years commencing from November
25, 2016. Mr. Cheng Libing has been appointed as an
executive Director for a term of 2 years commencing from
February 1, 2016. Mr. Wu Potao has been appointed as an
executive Director for a term of 2 years commencing from
November 25, 2016. Mr. Xu Zechang has been appointed
as an executive Director for a term of 2 years commencing
December 28, 2016. The term of 3 years of Mr. Kwong
Kwok Kong, Ms. Cheng Hong and Mr. Sun Jianhua, as
independent non-executive Directors, expired on August
31, 2016 and their appointments have been renewed up to
December 31, 2017. The term of 1 year of Mr. Lee Kar Chung
Felix as independent non-executive Director expired on
August 20, 2016 and his appointment has been renewed
up to December 31, 2017.

In accordance with articles 87(1) and 87(2) of the Articles
of Association, Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong and Mr. Sun Jianhua
will retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting. Mr.
Liang Hongze who has been redesignated as non-executive
Director by the Board on November 25, 2016 shall hold
office until the Annual General Meeting pursuant to article
86(3) of the Articles of Association. In addition, Mr. Wang
Yin (appointed as non-executive Director on November
25, 2016), Mr. Wang Yan (appointed as non-executive
Director on November 25, 2016), Mr. Wu Potao (appointed
as executive Director on November 25, 2016) and Mr. Xu
Zechang (re-appointed as executive Director on December
28, 2016) who have been appointed by the Board shall
hold office until the Annual General Meeting pursuant
to article 86(3) of the Articles of Association. All of the
retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the Annual General Meeting.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Group has established a formal and transparent
procedure for formulating policies on remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Group. Details
of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year
ended December 31, 2016 are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management
of the Company, comprising all Directors and the Chief
Financial Officer, by band for the year ended December 31,
2016 are set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB’000)

HFMgEE (AR TT)

3,001 to 4,000
2,001 to 3,000
1,001 to 2,000
Nil to 1,000

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
FOR DIRECTORS

On appointment to the Board, each Director receives
a comprehensive induction package to ensure that
he/she has a proper understanding of the business
and operations of the Group and is fully aware of the
responsibilities and obligations as being a Director as well
as the compliance practice under the Listing Rules and
other relevant regulatory requirements.

3,001£4,000
2,001£3,000
1,001£2,000
#&%1,000

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. Directors are kept updated on the
statutory and regulatory development and changes in the
business and the market so as to facilitate the discharge
of their responsibilities. All Directors have participated in
the courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of
a director of a listed company or further enhanced their
professional development by the way of attending training
courses or reading relevant materials for the year ended
December 31, 2016.
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A summary of the training received by the Directors for the
year ended December 31, 2016 according to the records
provided by the Directors is as follows:

Name of the Directors

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wang Yin
(appointed on November 25, 2016)

Mr. Wang Yan

(appointed on November 25, 2016)
Mr. He Xuan

(appointed on November 25, 2016)
Mr. Liang Hongze

(resigned as executive Director and

redesignated as non-executive Director

on November 25, 2016)

Executive Directors:
Mr. Cheng Libing
(appointed on February 1, 2016)
Mr. Wu Potao
(appointed on November 25, 2016)
Mr. Xu Zechang
(resigned on November 25, 2016 and
re-appointed on December 28, 2016)
Ms. Xu Jie
(resigned on November 25, 2016)
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Mr. Zhang Xiaodan RESEE
(resigned on December 28, 2016) (2016512528 H B E1E)
Mr. Jiang Tianfan TR EE
(resigned on November 25, 2016) (2016511525 H B EE)
Mr. Shan Baojie BEEfLE
(appointed on February 1, 2016 and (201625 1 HBEZE I H
resigned on November 25, 2016) 2016411525 EFF)
Independent Non-executive Directors: BYFHTES !
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BEXTE

Ms. Cheng Hong B Azt
Mr. Sun Jianhua BEERL
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix ZRERE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Nomination Committee
on November 4, 2013 which currently comprises three
Directors, with Ms. Cheng Hong (independent non-
executive Director) as the chairperson, Mr. Liang Hongze
(non-executive Director) and Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix
(independent non-executive Director) being its committee
members. Majority of the members are independent non-
executive Directors.

The role and function of the Nomination Committee
are set out in its terms of reference. Its primary
responsibilities include reviewing the structure, size
and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board, identifying appropriate and
qualified individuals to become Board members and
selecting or making recommendations to the Board on
the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships,
assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors, making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and succession planning for Directors, in particular the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
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To comply with the provisions in the CG Code on board
diversity which became effective on September 1, 2013,
the Board has adopted a policy concerning diversity of
Board members (the “Board Diversity Policy”) setting out
a number of factors which the Nomination Committee
would consider in reviewing and assessing the Board
composition.

According to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination
Committee reviews and assesses the Board composition
and makes recommendations of changes to the
composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee
would consider the benefits of all aspects of diversity
set out in the Board Diversity Policy, including but not
limited to gender, age, ethnicity, cultural and educational
background, communication styles, interpersonal skills,
functional expertise, problem solving skills, professional
qualifications, knowledge and industry and regional
experience and other qualities in reviewing and assessing
the composition of the Board and all appointments to the
Board will be based on merits and will take into account
of factors based on the Group’s own business model and
specific needs from time to time.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy on a regular basis (which will include a review on
the effectiveness of the policy), discuss any required
changes with the Board and make recommendation of
revision to the Board Diversity Policy for consideration
and approval. The Nomination Committee has been
provided with sufficient resources to perform its duty.
When necessary, the Nomination Committee will seek
independent professional advice, at the Company’s
expense, to perform its responsibilities.
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During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Nomination
Committee has convened three meetings to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board and the
committees and the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors, considering the qualifications
of the retiring Directors standing for re-election at the
annual general meeting and making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment of Directors. The particulars
of the attendance of the Nomination Committee are set
forth as follows:

Name of the members of the

Nomination Committee

Chairperson: xE:
Ms. Cheng Hong B At
Members: HE :
Mr. Liang Hongze RHERSE
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix TREXE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Remuneration Committee
on November 4, 2013 which currently comprises three
Directors, with Mr. Sun Jianhua (independent non-
executive Director) as the chairman, Mr. Wu Potao
(executive Director) and Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix
(independent non-executive Director) being its committee
members. Majority of the members are independent non-
executive Directors.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
are set out in its terms of reference. Its primary
responsibilities include reviewing and formulating policies
in respect of remuneration structure for all Directors and
senior management and making recommendations to the
Board for its consideration.

Corporate Governance Report
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During the year ended December 31, 2016, the
Remuneration Committee has convened three meetings to
review the remuneration policy for all Directors and senior
management and service contracts of newly appointed
Directors. The particulars of the attendance of the
Remuneration Committee are set forth as follows:

Name of the members of the
Remuneration Committee

HZE2016F1283MBLFE  FMEE
SEEAEZAEE  UBHNE2EEERS
REBAENFHBERIFZEESHR
Be# FHNEZESHEFHBHINOT ¢

Number of meetings

attended/convened

SEME S BRRH

Chairman: FE

Mr. Sun Jianhua BEELSE 3/3

Members: RE :

Mr. Wu Potao RIBEE 11
(appointed on December 28, 2016) (R20164 12528 HEZ(F)

Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix TREXEE 3/3

Mr. Zhang Xiaodan RES L 2/2
(resigned on December 28, 2016) (R2016%E 12528 H B 1E)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

On November 4, 2013, the Board has established the
Audit Committee currently comprising four Directors,
with Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong (independent non-executive
Director) as the chairman, Mr. Wang Yan (non-executive
Director), Ms. Cheng Hong (independent non-executive
Director) and Mr. Sun Jianhua (independent non-executive
Director) being its committee members. Majority of the
members are independent non-executive Directors.
The Board considered that the members of the Audit
Committee possess sufficient professional knowledge and
experience of accounting and financial management for
the performance of their responsibilities.

BEREES
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The roles and functions of the Audit Committee are
set out in its terms of reference. In view of the recent
amendments to the CG Code effective for the accounting
period beginning on January 1, 2016, the Group has
adopted a revised terms of reference of the Audit
Committee on January 18, 2016 in order to comply with
certain changes relating to the risk management and
internal control section of the CG Code. Its primary
responsibilities include serving as a focal point for
communication among other Directors, the external
auditor and the internal auditor (where an internal
audit function exists) as regards their duties relating
to financial and other reporting, risk management and
internal controls, external and internal audits and such
other financial and accounting matters as the Board
determines from time to time, assisting the Board in
providing an independent review on the effectiveness
of the financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and overseeing
the audit procedure, reviewing the Group’s financial and
accounting policies and practices and performing other
duties and responsibilities as designated by the Board.

The Audit Committee and independent non-executive
Directors communicated with the auditor on the audit plan
of the Company’s 2016 annual results, working highlights
and material matters on August 25, 2016, December 31,
2016 and January 19, 2017, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Audit
Committee held four meetings to discharge its
responsibilities and review the Group’s annual and interim
results, continuing connected transactions, reporting and
compliance procedures, reports from the management
on the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
function and procedures and also the re-appointment of
the external auditor. The particulars of the attendance of
the Audit Committee are set forth as follows:

Corporate Governance Report
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Number of meetings

Name of the members of attended/convened

the Audit Committee SREE BRERE
Chairman: FE

Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB 4/4
Members: RE :

Mr. Wang Yan F Bi&

(appointed on December 28, 2016) (R2016% 12528 H EZ(F) 0/0

Ms. Cheng Hong B Axt 4/4

Mr. Sun Jianhua BEESSE 4/4

APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF
EXTERNAL AUDITOR

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the total fee
paid/payable to the external auditor of the Group in
respect of audit and non-audit services is set out below:

Items of auditor’s services

Annual audit service:

2B AN AR A5 18 B

FEEZRE

INERBE N EENMNES

BZE2016F 12831 LEE  SiEZK
FEZRBEC I A ARERINERZ
HENERAEENNT

Amount
EREH
(RMB)
(AR¥TT)

3,350,000

The Audit Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board as to the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor. Such
appointment, re-appointment and removal are subject to
the approval by the Board and the general meetings of the
Company by the Shareholders.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Group
about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group is set out in the
independent auditor’s report from pages 144 to 150 of this
annual report.

BEREZESRENMNERHANEE &
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Group for the
year ended December 31, 2016 which give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as well as the
results and cash flow during that year.

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group ensures statutory requirements are
met and applies appropriate accounting policies that are
consistently adopted and makes judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that proper
accounting records are kept so that the Group could
prepare financial statements in accordance with statutory
requirements and the Group’s accounting policies. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities
within the Group.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The risk management and internal control systems have
been designed to safeguard the assets of the Group, to
assure proper maintenance of accounting records, and
to ensure the compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations.

The Board’s annual review has ensured the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions.

Corporate Governance Report
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The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a
sound and effective risk management and internal control
systems throughout the Group which includes a defined
management structure with limits of authority, and is
designed to ensure the proper application of accounting
standard and the provision of reliable financial data for
internal use and for publication, as well as to secure
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.
The system is developed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
omission and to manage, but not fully eliminate, the risks
of operational systems failure and the risks of the Group’s
failure in meeting the standards. The Board will review the
risk management and internal control systems on an on-
going basis.

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
losses.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing their design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems. The management has reported and
confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control.

The Company’s risk management and internal control
systems have been developed with the following content,
features and processes:

Content

Risk management of the Company mainly includes control
of environment, risk assessments, control of activities,
information and communication, and supervision.
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Control of environment establishes the Company’s risk
management philosophy and overall attitude in risk
management, influencing staff’s risk awareness. It
serves as the basis of other elements and safeguards
the effectiveness of risk management. Control of
environment includes control of professional ethics, staff
competence, management philosophy and business style,
organizational structure, distribution of authority and
responsibilities, human resources policies, the Board and
the Audit Committee as well as anti-fraud.

Risk assessments refer to the process of identifying and
analyzing risks that may affect the achievement of goals,
including four basic processes namely goal development,
risk identification, risk analysis and risk response.

Control of activities represents the necessary measures
to enable consistent execution of the directives of
the Company’s management in order to prevent and
circumvent risks, including approval, authorization,
investigation, verification, evaluation of operating
results, asset preservation measures and division of
responsibilities.

Information and communication refers to internal and
external information required for risk management which
shall be identified, obtained and conveyed timely in a
certain form such that staff can perform their duties.

Supervision is the process of ongoing inspection and
evaluation on the effectiveness of risk management.

Features

The Company established a sound system for reporting
risk management defects, which specifies the department
responsibilities, contents, processes and follow-
up measures regarding defect reporting. For the risk
management defects identified, the Company’s business
management department, internal audit department,
supervision department and risk management
department at all levels shall report and give advices or
recommendations to the relevant department according
to the prescribed procedures, and the relevant unit shall
take measures in a timely manner to ensure the risk
management defects are promptly addressed.
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Processes

Risk assessments mainly covers four basic processes,
namely goal development, risk identification, risk analysis
and risk response. Goal development is the prerequisite
for risk identification and risk analysis. The Company
first determines the strategic goals as they represent the
Company’s overall goal and embody the direction of its
long-term development. On this basis, the Company then
determines the underlying goals for the strategic goals,
being business goals, compliance goals and financial
reporting goals.

The Group identifies risks through three levels, being
risk identification at company level, business level and
financial reporting.

After risk identification and analysis, the Company will
classify the importance level of risks into low, medium and
high with reference to the underlying goals, the reason
for occurrence of risks and the importance level of risks.
Coupling with the actual situation, the Company will make
proper risk response and adopt different risk response
plans:

1) Risk aversion: to withdraw from all activities
posing risks, including the disposal of subsidiaries
or production lines, not to take part in the
implementation of new initiatives or activities that
would lead to underlying risks.

2) Risk mitigation: to take actions to lower the likelihood
of occurrence of risks or mitigate the extent of risk
impact or both, including developing or improving
business procedure and enhancing related control
measures.

3) Risk sharing: to mitigate the likelihood and impact
of risks by transferring risks or sharing part of the
risks, including insurance for accidental damage,
outsourcing business and hedging.

4) Risk acceptance: not to take any actions to influence
the likelihood or impact of the risks, including not to
take actions but to accept risks in line with the risk
tolerance level.
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For company level risks and business level risks so
identified, the Company’s internal control management
department documents in a uniform format and forms
the “Guide Sheet of Company Level Risk Database and
Countermeasure” ((ARIEEHRBEBEER T KRIESIRK))
and the “Business Level Risk Database” ({(¥ #& & &
[E ™ B B # ¥ E)), providing organizational guarantee
and institutional constraints for the Company’s
risk management and creating satisfactory internal
environment for risk management.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Board,
as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings,
has performed an annual review on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems in different aspects of the Group such as
financial, operation, compliance and risk management,
and has also assessed the accounting and financial
reporting functions of the Group, estimated the resources
and budgets for training programmes and appraised the
staff members’ qualifications and experience. In respect
of continuing connected transactions, the Group has
implemented a series of general management policies
controlled by multiple departments to improve corporate
governance structure and monitor the implementation
of internal control policies, including financial control
system, anti-fraud and legal monitoring system,
operations and compliance management system, risk
management and assessment policies and internal audit
rules.

The Board considered that the abovementioned systems
are effective and adequate.
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The internal audit department is responsible for
conducting comprehensive audits of each department,
subsidiary and member of the Group to facilitate the
management’s control on the assets of the Group.
In addition, it offers consulting services in respect
of internal control to each department of the Group
to assist them in optimizing and enhancing the risk
management and internal control systems and the
operating processes. As authorized by the management,
the internal audit department conducts an investigation
on internal corruption. For the year ended December
31, 2016, the internal audit department did not discover
any circumstances involving fraud, non-compliance
or violation against laws, regulations and rules or any
material incidents due to lack of internal control.

The Board considers that the current risk management
and internal control systems cover the existing businesses
of the Group, and will continue to be optimized in line with
the business development of the Group.

In particular, the Board will devote efforts to complying
with the Listing Rules, ensuring compliance with the
relevant laws and regulation and safeguarding the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which
provides a general guide to the Company’s Directors,
officers, senior management and relevant employees in
handling confidential information, monitoring information
disclosure and responding to enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that
unauthorized access and use of inside information are
strictly prohibited.

The Board of the Company assesses the likely impact
of any unexpected significant event that may impact
the price of the Shares or their trading volume and
decides whether the relevant information is considered
as inside information and needs to be disclosed as soon
as practicable pursuant to Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the
Listing Rules and the Inside Information Provisions under
Part XIVA of the SFO. Executive Directors and the joint
company secretaries are also responsible for approving
certain announcements and/or circulars to be issued by
the Company under powers delegated by the Board from
time to time.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ngai Kit Fong of Tricor Services Limited, an external
service provider, has been engaged by the Company as the
company secretary and an authorized representative with
effect from March 1, 2016.

Her primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Li
Zhiyue, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Group has not
made any changes to its Memorandum and Articles of
Association other than the change of company name with
effect from November 2, 2016.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate
issue at general meetings, including the re-election of
retiring individual Directors. Except where the chairman,
in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates
purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be
voted on by a show of hands, all resolutions tabled at the
general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the
Listing Rules. Poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange after each general
meeting.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting and other general meetings
of the Company are primary forums for communication
between the Company and its Shareholders. The Company
shall provide Shareholders with relevant information
on the resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a
timely manner in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
information provided shall be reasonably necessary to
enable Shareholders to make an informed decision on the
proposed resolution(s).

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association
or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for
Shareholders to propose new resolutions at general
meetings. Shareholders who wish to propose a resolution
may request the Company to convene a general meeting in
accordance with the procedures set out in the paragraph
below.
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CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING BY SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association, any
one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board believes that effective communication
with investors is essential for establishing investors’
confidence and attracting new investors. The Company
also recognizes the importance of transparency and
timely disclosure of corporate information which enables
investors to make the best investment decision.

The Company has disclosed all necessary information to
the Shareholders in compliance with the Listing Rules.
Updated and key information of the Company is also
available on the Company’s website at www.crphoenix.hk.
The Company also replied the enquiries from Shareholders
timely, if any. The general meetings of the Company
provide an important channel for communications
between the Board and the Shareholders. The Chairman,
as well as the chairman of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or, in their
absence, other members of the respective committee and
where appropriate, the chairman of the independent Board
Committee, will be available to answer questions at the
general meetings.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board,
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or
anonymous enquiries.
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CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as
mentioned above to the following:

Address: E-825, No. 6 Taiping Street, Xicheng District,
Beijing 100050, PRC

Email: ir@crphoenix.hk

GENERAL MEETINGS

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company
has convened and held one annual general meeting
(“AGM”) and two extraordinary general meetings (“EGM”).
Attendance records of the Directors at the general
meetings are set out as follows:
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BRAE
HZE2016F12831BLEEE » A2 TE
BERBIT-RBRRBERE ([REK
Z)) MARRESIAE [REZHK
gl EFCHECHIIAOT :

Number of meetings

attended/convened
Name of the Directors SRLE EEERK
AGM EGM
BRRBAF BREHFEH
g N
Non-executive Directors: FHITESE :
Mr. Wang Yin T BE&E
(appointed on November 25, 2016) (E2016%11H25HEEZT) 0/0 0/0
Mr. Wang Yan T Bi&
(appointed on November 25, 2016) (E2016%11H25HEEZEE) 0/0 0/0
Mr. He Xuan E OEEE
(appointed on November 25, 2016) (B2016%11425HEEZE) 0/0 0/0
Mr. Liang Hongze RHUERSE
(resigned as executive Director and (E2016%F 11525 H BB ITHITESE -
redesignated as non-executive WEFERFHBHITESE)
Director on November 25, 2016) 1/1 2/2
Executive Directors: HITESE
Mr. Cheng Libing R ERE
(appointed on February 1, 2016) (E2016%251HEEZF) 11 2/2
Mr. Wu Potao RELE
(appointed on November 25, 2016) (B2016%F11H25HEEZE) 0/0 0/0
Mr. Xu Zechang HEERE
(resigned on November 25,2016 and ~ (JR20164 11525 A#EFHF - I H
re-appointed on December 28, 2016) 2016412528 H HEEE#HZ1F) 11 2/2
Ms. Xu Jie ® Lt
(resigned on November 25, 2016) (R2016F 11525 HBEHE) 1/1 0/0
Mr. Zhang Xiaodan RES L
(resigned on December 28, 2016) (R20164F 12528 A # B E) 1/1 2/2
Mr. Jiang Tianfan ST RINFEAE
(resigned on November 25, 2016) (R20164 11525 AL E1E) 1/1 2/2
Mr. Shan Baojie BEEHEE
(appointed on February 1, 2016 and (E2016%F281HEEZEF LR
resigned on November 25, 2016) 20164115254 #EHF) 1/1 2/2
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Name of the Directors

Independent Non-executive Directors: B FHTES :

Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB e S
Ms. Cheng Hong B Azt
Mr. Sun Jianhua BEERL
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix TREEE

The 2017 annual general meeting of the Company will be
held on Friday, June 16, 2017. The notice of the annual
general meeting will be sent to the Shareholders at least
20 clear business days before the annual general meeting.

Number of meetings

attended/convened
SRLE EEHERE
AGM EGM
RRAF KRER&S5H
N N1

1/1 2/2

1/1 2/2

1/1 2/2

1/1 2/2

RAF017FERRBF KRG HENR2017F
68160 (EHH) BT - BRREFEXE
BEBABRREEREA &L B220EE
EHTFRTRE -
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Directors and Senior Management

HONORARY CHAIRMAN

Mr. Fu Yuning, aged 60, has been appointed as the
honorary chairman of the Group from November 25,
2016. Mr. Fu will not be entitled to remuneration from
the Group in respect of his appointment as the honorary
chairman. Mr. Fu serves as the chairman of CR Holdings,
a member of the 12th session of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, a member and vice
chairman of APEC China Business Council, a member
of the Economic Development Commission of the
government of Hong Kong, the honorary chairman of the
Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association and a member
of the General Committee of the Hong Kong General
Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Fu has nearly 30 years of
experience in corporate management. He served as the
chairman of the board and a director of China Resources
Pharmaceutical Group Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 3320) since December 2014,
a director of China Merchants Holdings (International)
Company Limited (currently known as China Merchants
Port Holdings Company Limited), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 0144) from January 1999 to
May 2014 and the chairman thereof from February 2000
to May 2014, an independent non-executive director of
CapitaLand Limited (currently known as CapitalLand), a
company listed on the Singapore Exchange Limited (stock
code: C31) from July 2009 to April 2012, the chairman of
China Merchants Group Limited from August 2010 to April
2014, the chairman of China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd., a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 600036) and the Stock Exchange (stock code: 03968)
from October 2010 to July 2014 and an independent
non-executive director of Li & Fung Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0494) from
November 2011 to December 2014. Mr. Fu joined CR
Holdings as the chairman of the board in April 2014. Mr.
Fu obtained a doctorate degree from Brunel University in
London, the United Kingdom in 1987.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENRSREEAE

DIRECTORS
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Yin, aged 61, has been appointed as a
non-executive Director and the Chairman from November
25, 2016. He joined CR Holdings in 1984. Mr. Wang had
been an executive director and served in various positions
of China Resources Land Limited (stock code: 1109)
(“China Resources Land”) including general manager and
chairman of the board from August 2001 to June 2013.
He was responsible for the overall business development
and strategic planning while working in China Resources
Land. He has been appointed as the vice chairman of CR
Holdings. since November 2011. Mr. Wang has also been
a director of China Resources National Corporation (a
controlling shareholder of the Company) since 2002. Mr.
Wang obtained a Bachelor’s degree in economics from
Shandong University in China in July 1983 and a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from the University of
San Francisco in the United States in June 1993.

Mr. Wang Yan, aged 45, has been appointed as a
non-executive Director from November 25, 2016 and
a member of the Audit Committee from December 28,
2016. He joined China Resources National Corporation
in July 1994. From February 2016, Mr. Wang has been
appointed as the chief internal auditor of Internal Audit
& Supervision Department of CR Holdings. Since August
2014, Mr. Wang has been appointed as the non-executive
director of China Resources Cement Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1313), China Resources Gas Group Limited
(stock code: 1193), China Resources Land Limited (stock
code: 1109) and China Resources Power Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 836). From August 2014 to April 2016,
Mr. Wang was a non-executive director of China Resources
Beer (Holdings) Company Limited (stock code: 291). He
was a deputy chief internal auditor of Internal Audit &
Supervision Department of CR Holdings between April
2012 and February 2016. Mr. Wang was a deputy general
manager of China Resources Gas (Holdings) Limited from
September 2007 to April 2012. Mr. Wang was appointed as
a director of China Resources Gas Limited in November
2005. He worked for China Resources Petrochems (Group)
Company Limited (currently known as Sinopec (Hong
Kong) Petroleum Holding Company Limited) from 2000 to
2007. Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor’s degree in economics
from the Finance and Accounting Department, Capital
University of Economics and Business and obtained a
Master’s degree in Business Administration from the
University of South Australia. Mr. Wang is a qualified PRC
Certified Accountant.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. He Xuan, aged 56, has been appointed as a
non-executive Director from November 25, 2016. Mr. He
obtained a Bachelor’s degree in chemical engineering
from Tianjin University with a major in chemical catalysis
in 1983. Mr. He had worked as the deputy manager of
Beijing Chemical & Industry Group Import and Export
Company Limited* (dt {t TEE# &+ O A 7)), a director
and the general manager of Beijing Pharmaceutical
Group Company Limited* (It RBEZEEBEREEQF) and
the senior deputy general manager of China Resources
Pharmaceutical Group Limited. Mr. He has been appointed
as the chairman of the board of CR Healthcare Group since
July 2014.

Mr. Liang Hongze, aged 45, has been redesignated as a
non-executive Director from November 25, 2016. He is also
a member of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Liang has
been appointed as the general manager of CR Healthcare
Group since December 2016. Mr. Liang joined Phoenix
Hospital Management (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (currently known
as Beijing Wantong) in March 2004. Since March 2004,
Mr. Liang has served in various positions in the Group,
including investment director, chief financial officer and
general manager of the Group. Mr. Liang was the Chairman
from February 2013 to April 2016 and an executive
Director and the Chief Executive Officer from February
2013 to November 2016. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Liang worked in the finance and investment management
field for over 10 years. Mr. Liang served as an investment
director in Shanghai Chunda Investment Management Co.,
Ltd. (EEERIREEEBRAE]) from March 2002 to July
2004, a senior manager in the investment banking division
of Industrial Securities Co., Ltd. (¥ ZF 5B M AR A7)
from September 2000 to February 2002 and an accountant
in China Financial Computerization Corp (FEI€®@E ¥t
A7) from July 1993 to August 1997. Mr. Liang received a
Master’s degree in Finance from the Graduate School of
the People’s Bank of China (FE A RIRITHIT &I
ZR4EB) in Beijing in October 2000 and a Bachelor’s degree
in Investment Management from Dongbei University of
Finance and Economics (R1tE1& K E) in Dalian in July
1993.

*  For identification purposes only
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Directors and Senior Management

EENRSREEAE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Libing, aged 52, is an executive Director and the
vice Chairman. Mr. Cheng joined the Group in September
2010 and is primarily responsible for daily operations of
the Group. He has been appointed as an executive Director
and the vice Chairman since February 2016. Mr. Cheng
served as the deputy general manager of Beijing Huaren
Intech Hospital Management Consulting Co., Ltd. (t3ZE
CREBREBZEHABMRADE) from 2006 to 2008 and the
deputy general manager of Beijing Huaren Intech Hospital
Management Consulting Co., Ltd., Beijing Intech Eye
Hospital Co., Ltd. (At HEERRIEFE AR D F) and Intech
Medical Chain (3% B & EHMEME) from 2008 to 2010. From
1999 to 2002, Mr. Cheng has served various positions at
Beijing Kangchen Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (dt R ER/REE %
R AR AF), including general manager assistant. Mr.
Cheng also worked as a resident doctor at Dongzhimen
Hospital Affiliated to Beijing University of Chinese
Medicine (It A B ZE KEHBREPEPF) from 1988 to
1998. Mr. Cheng received a Bachelor’s degree in Traditional
Chinese Medicine from Beijing University of Chinese
Medicine (Jt IR EEZE X&) in Beijing in July 1988.

Mr. Wu Potao, aged 48, was appointed as an executive
Director and the Executive General Manager on November
25, 2016 and was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer
and a member of the Remuneration Committee on December
28,2016. Mr. Wu was the Executive General Manager and vice
Chairman during the period from February 2006 to October
2012. He rejoined the Group as a deputy general manager in
October 2016. During the period from July 2014 to September
2016, Mr. Wu was the director and general manager of CITIC
Private Equity Beijing HongCi Healthcare Co., Ltd* (F{5E
¥ES I FLRBERERREEEBMR A A), responsible for the
management and operation. Mr. Wu was a director and the
executive deputy general manager of Beijing Shougang
Healthcare Investment Company Limited* (bR & e &R
EABMRAT]) from November 2012 to June 2014, responsible
for the management and operation. Mr. Wu obtained a
Bachelor’s degree in Engineering from the Chinese People’s
Police University in July 1991, and received an EMBA degree
from Tsinghua University in January 2012.

*  For identification purposes only
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Xu Zechang, aged 54, an executive Director and the
Executive General Manager. Mr. Xu joined Phoenix Hospital
Management (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (currently known as Beijing
Phoenix Wantong Investment Management Co., Ltd.) in
March 2004 and has served as the executive administrator
of Mentougou Hospital (P 88 /& & & PFx) since October
2011. Mr. Xu also served as an executive Director from
September 2013 to November 2016 and was re-appointed
as an executive Director on December 28, 2016. He also
served as the executive administrator of Yan Hua Hospital
(At 1L EEBR) from May 2007 to December 2010, the vice
administrator of Beijing Jian Gong Hospital Co., Ltd. (3t
EHREERAEMRAT) from May 2005 to May 2007, and
the executive administrator of Wuxi New District Hospital
(EHH EEPR) from May 2004 to May 2005. Mr. Xu has
experience as an attending doctor, vice director doctor,
vice director of a Cardiology Department and an acting
director of Cardiology Department at the General Hospital
of China PLA Beijing Military Region (Bl A R R E 4t
HEE#EPR), a Grade lll general hospital, from 1991 to
2003, and a resident doctor at the General Hospital of the
People’s Liberation Army of China (TE A RMBHE #AEE
B%), the largest Grade Il general hospital affiliated to the
People’s Liberation Army of China, from 1984 to 1991.

Mr. Xu attended the Military Medical School of People’s
Liberation Army of China (PEIARMHMEEEHEIEZLM) in
Beijing in July 2006 and July 1991 respectively to study
medicine and he obtained his bachelor degree in military
surgeon from Southern Medical University (F375 BRI KE)
(formerly known as First Military Medical University of
People’s Liberation Army of China (FEIARMBHEELE —FE
RE) in Guangzhou in July 1984.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENRSREEAE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong, aged 69, is an independent
non-executive Director and also the chairman of the Audit
Committee. He currently serves as the chief executive
officer of Pok Oi Hospital, a well-known non-profit making
hospital in Hong Kong. As the chief executive officer,
Mr. Kwong has been providing corporate governance
and management support to the board of directors for
development, management and supervision of these units
for the past 10 years. He initially joined Pok Oi Hospital as
an internal audit manager in 2003. Before joining Pok Oi
Hospital, Mr. Kwong served as the principal auditor of the
Audit Commission of the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. Mr. Kwong served in the
Audit Commission of the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region since 1980. Mr. Kwong has
been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since 1982.

Ms. Cheng Hong, aged 47, is an independent non-executive
Director and also the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee. Ms.
Cheng has been the marketing director and the general
manager of market management department of CITIC Trust
Co., Ltd. (FEE-EBREELQF) since May 2010. Prior to
joining CITIC Trust Co., Ltd., she had held various positions,
including chairman of the board of supervisors and
general manager of Orient Fund Management Co., Ltd. (3
FESEEEMRETLT) from June 2004 to May 2010. From
October 2000 to June 2004, Ms. Cheng worked in Northeast
Securities Co., Ltd. (RFHFBEREMEAE) as the general
manager of its Beijing branch and as an assistant to the
chief executive officer. Between December 1999 and
October 2000, Ms. Cheng was the deputy general manager
of Changchun Jiefang Road Branch of Northeast Securities
Co., Ltd. (REBHEREE AR RFMMALR) (the former
Changchun Jiefang Road Branch of Jilin Province Trust Co.,
Ltd. (EMEEFEREQXTRFBMAIR)). Ms. Cheng served
as a credit staff at the real estate credit department of
Jilin Branch of China Construction Bank ((Z:RIR{TEME
247) between July 1999 and December 1999, and a credit
staff at the real estate credit department of Hebei Branch
of China Construction Bank (&R 17501t & 2 17) from July
1992 to July 1999.
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Ms. Cheng had been a visiting scholar at the Wharton
School of the University of Pennsylvania in the United
States from March 2009 to June 2009. She received
an MBA degree from Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business in Beijing in March 2006, a Master’s degree in
Accounting from Research Institute for Fiscal Science
of the Ministry of Finance in Beijing in October 2003,
and a bachelor degree in Engineering from Agricultural
University of Hebei (it 22 KX Z8) in Baoding in July 1992.

Mr. Sun Jianhua, aged 41, is an independent non-executive
Director and also a member of the Audit Committee and
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Sun has
joined Guosen Securities Co., Ltd. (R{EEHRMHERRDF)
since August 2005 and is currently a managing director of
the investment banking division of Guosen Securities Co.,
Ltd.. Prior to joining Guosen Securities Co., Ltd., Mr. Sun
had served in various investment banks and securities
companies, including Daton Securities Co., Ltd. (K &%
HRMEBR2AT) from April 2003 to July 2005, Industrial
Securities Co., Ltd. (BZEZFF R AR E]) from January
2001 to March 2003, and CITIC Securities Co., Ltd. (F{55%
HRMAEBRAT) from March 1999 to December 2000. Mr.
Sun received a master’s degree in International Finance
from the Graduate School of PBOC in Beijing in April 1999
and a bachelor degree in Transportation Economics from
Beijing Jiaotong University (1t ;= X #® K £) (the former
Northern Jiaotong University (k77 REAKE)) in Beijing in
July 1996.

Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix, aged 34, is an independent
non-executive Director and also a member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Lee is currently a senior vice president of Chow Tai
Fook Enterprises Limited (“Chow Tai Fook Enterprises”),
responsible for making investments in the healthcare
sector in Asia and globally. He is also a director of
Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of CTFE and substantial shareholder of UMP
Healthcare Holdings. Mr. Lee is also an executive director
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of UMP Healthcare Holdings (Stock Code: 722), a leading
corporate healthcare solutions provider in Hong Kong,
where he is responsible for corporate development,
international operations and merger and acquisitions.
The Group, through Pinyu, owns 15% of UMP Healthcare
Holdings as at the date of this annual report. Mr. Lee has
over ten years of experience in law and finance. He was
an associate with the law firm Freshfields Bruckhaus
Deringer before he left in February 2008 to join UBS
AG, Hong Kong branch as an analyst in the investment
banking department until January 2009. He then joined
the investment banking department of Deutsche Bank AG,
Hong Kong branch and last held the position of Director
in the Corporate Advisory Group, where he worked from
January 2009 to August 2014.

Mr. Lee obtained his bachelor degree in Laws from the
London School of Economics and Political Sciences and
his Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from The University of
Hong Kong in July 2003 and June 2004, respectively. He is
a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since September
2007 and a solicitor (non-practising) in the Senior Courts
of England and Wales since February 2013.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Zhiyue, aged 39, is the Chief Financial Officer. Mr.
Li joined the Group and served as the current position in
November 2016.

Mr. Li joined CR Holdings in May 2011, and has been the
chief financial officer of CR Healthcare Group since June
2014. Prior to joining CR Holdings, Mr. Li worked in Bank
of China, Hong Kong Monetary Authority, Shinhan Asia
Limited and Credit Agricole Corporate and Investment
Bank. Mr. Li has been a Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA)
charterholder since September 2006. Mr. Li obtained a
Master’s degree in Finance from London Business School
in September 2005 and a Bachelor’s degree in Economics
from Renmin University of China in July 2001.
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In 2016, the Group continued to refine the environmental,
social and governance system in accordance with the
relevant PRC laws and regulations and the requirements
of the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules. Under the
guidance of the national policies on further deepening
the medical and health system reform and speeding
up the divest of auxiliary hospitals in the state-owned
enterprises, the Group has become the largest general
hospital group in China through the asset reorganization
with CR Healthcare Group. With the enhancement of the
Group’s strengths, we will offer more quality healthcare
services, continue to strictly fulfill the regulatory
requirements on environmental, social, governance and
establish an industrial development paradigm.

The Board takes on full responsibilities for the Company’s
ESG strategies and reporting. In line with the CG Code,
the Board is responsible for evaluating and determining
the Company’s ESG-related risks, and ensuring that
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and
internal control systems are in place. The management
of the Company acknowledges the effectiveness of these
systems.

As the largest general hospital group in China, we are
committed to providing quality and safe healthcare
services to the public and managing the environmental,
economic and social aspects under the principle of
sustainable development. The Group incorporates
the idea of environmental protection, energy saving,
caring for staff and public healthcare services into its
operation and development to create values for staff,
customers and shareholders while pursuing the unified
economic and social benefits. The achievement of the
above commitments is a significant objective on the
management front, as well as the joint responsibility
sharing among all employees of the Company.

The Group incorporates international standards, national
requirements and industry standards into healthcare
services, procurement and management activities. The
ESG works strive to comply and exceed the minimum legal
standards, which applies to all Directors, officers and staff
of the Group.
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The Board is the highest decision-making organisation for
ESG works. The specific works are handled by the Group’s
Operation and Development Committee and the functional
departments of the Group. The Group has established the
three-tier ESG system in the headquarters, subsidiaries,
in-network hospitals and related departments, providing
protection for the implementation of ESG works.

The Group’s functional departments conduct regular
research and analysis on the ESG works of each in-
network hospitals and report to the Operation and
Development Committee, which directly reports to the
Board in respect of the meetings. Our subsidiaries and
in-network hospitals are the executor of ESG works with
specific departments docking with the Group for each ESG
work. The Group’s functional departments and in-network
hospitals perform the Group’s general obligations for ESG
to ensure the compliance of daily operations with ESG-
related requirements.
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A. ENVIRONMENT A. RIE
A1.Emissions A1.BEDL
The Group has formulated the “Safety AEBZB(REARLANEIR
Administration Plan for Harmful Substances” RREL) HEER > EREBKR
(BEEMEZE2EEE) and the “Clinical Waste FET(EENEZR2EE
Management System” (B & B ¥ & £ & E) in E) (BEBEYEEFE) L
each hospital in accordance with the relevant MFEEREREEYE (Bt
requirements of the “Environmental Protection mRkBEREY) NWE]E  BiEfF

Law of the People’s Republic of China” The
abovementioned system or plan emphasizes

= B 3 ik D 2
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the management of harmful substances (i.e.
hazardous chemicals and clinical waste),
including the location of storage, container labels
as well as the protection, anti-leakage treatment
and waste treatment in the use of harmful
substances. In particular, the hospitals perform
supervision and inspection of the storage and
labels of hazardous chemicals, and would prepare
a quarterly summary analysis on the results.

Treatments of clinical sewage and clinical waste
emissions are as follows:

@D Disposed chemical reagents and heavy
metal waste are delivered to Beijing
BBMG Hongshulin Environment Protection
Technology Co., Ltd. (dt IX & BB AL #&f M IR R
® #lr B PR & /£ 2 7)), which is qualified for
treatment, transportation and handling of
hazardous waste, for transit and innocuous
treatment.

@ Clinical waste is collected from its source
and put into containers with related proper
labels. Afterwards, the labeled clinical waste
is delivered to clinical waste storage facilities
by means of exclusive-use collection
vehicles, pending further transit and
innocuous treatment by Beijing Environment
Sanitation Group Co., Ltd (It HERBEFHFETRE
EARA A).

® Damaged thermometers and sphygmomanometers
which contain mercury are delivered to Beijing
Hazardous Waste Materials Treatment Centre

(=M EBEYEE ).

@ Sewage discharged by hospitals would
undergo chlorination treatment and tests
by designated staff to meet the relevant
requirements of “Discharge Standard of
Water Pollutants for Medical Organization
(GB18466-2005)" (B BB A TRMBEMIEE
(GB18466-2005)). The governmental authority
conducts regular random testing on sewage
(testing bases: HJ586-2010 and HJ/T347-
2007). In case of any test failure of samples,
the governmental authority would present a
testing report to the relevant hospitals.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016
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A2.Use of Resources A2. & R{EA

The Group has formulated the “Optimizing System
of Resources Decision Making” (& /& iR &k 8 12
# E) in each hospital in accordance with the
requirements of the “Resources Conservation
Law of the People’s Republic of China”. The
system focuses on regulating the management
of the resources decision making process, under
which definite requirements for the quality,
rational allocation and use of newly purchased
resources are proposed. Upon implementation
of the decisions, we would monitor the outcome
and assess the effectiveness and safety of the
decisions based on the relevant information
in order to revise the decisions. Accordingly,
the abovementioned policies are ensured to be
effectively put into practice.

Meanwhile, we have formulated the
“Administration Plan on the Safety of Public
Utilities” (R R EZ = EE5T2E)), “Administration
Plan for Safety Protection”™ (&% & 7 # & I &t
Zl) and “Administration Plan on the Safety of
Medical Technology” (BE K ii X2 EE 5t &). In
addition, we implemented the “Administration
Plan on the Safety of Utilities” (Rt Z 2 EE 5t
2l) to ensure the abovementioned plans are put
into practice effectively. The “Administration
Plan on the Safety of Utilities” emphasizes the
management of public utilities such as water,
electricity, gas and buildings, as well as medical
equipment in the hospitals. It has also imposed
definite requirements for the daily use, repair and
maintenance of resources. We conduct annual
risk assessment on the use and management of
those resources such as equipment and utilities,
and formulated the relevant plans based on the
assessment results. Quarterly summary analysis
will be made on the implementation of plans.
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A3.Environmental and Natural A3.IRIB R RKAER

Resources

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group
recognizes the importance of good environmental
stewardship. In this connection, the Group strictly
adopted and implemented certain policies and
procedures to ensure environmental protection
up to a standard which is not less stringent
than the prevailing environmental laws and
regulations of the PRC. We are of the view that
we were in compliance with all the relevant PRC
laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection in all material respects during the
year ended December 31, 2016 and as of the date
of this annual report. No environmental claims,
lawsuits, penalties or administrative sanctions
were reported to our management. During the
Reporting Period, there was no environmental
incidents occurred in the Group.

We have formulated the “Administration Plan
for Radiation Safety” (B 4 & & & ¥ 5t &) and
“Emergency Radiation Plan” (¥ 5f /& & 78 %) in
each hospital. These policies emphasize the
safety management of radiation, under which
definite requirements for radiographic equipment,
protection, and the treatment of the relevant
radioactive waste are imposed. Every year,
qualified testing and assessment institutions
are designated by the hospitals to monitor and
inspect the radiographic devices and radioactivity
level in the workplace. We also conduct radiation
emergency drills, review the emergency response
and make summary analysis accordingly.
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In order to regulate employment and specify
the basic rights of employees, CR Phoenix
formulated and strictly implemented the
relevant management systems and rules in
strict compliance with the relevant PRC laws,
regulations and administrative rules, including

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016
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“CR Phoenix Staff Handbook (Revised)” (¥
HEEBEE& I F M UEE), “Regulations for the
Administration on Resignation of Employees of
CR Phoenix (Revised)” (EEBEEITHBEERTE
(18%7) ), “Regulations for the Administration on
Staff Attendance of CR Phoenix (Revised)” (ZEEE
BEETITZ#HEEHE (1E5])) and “Regulations for
the Administration on the Middle Management
of CR Phoenix (Revised)” (EBBE+TERDEER
TE (18%]) ), which set out definite requirements
for various aspects, such as compensation and
disposal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunities,
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits
and welfare, while strictly regulating the staff
allocation, social security management and code
of conduct for employees in order to protect the
legitimate rights of employees to the maximum
extent.

B2.Health and Safety

Safeguarding a healthy and safe working
environment for our employees is not only
the core value of the Company, but also the
most essential part of the Company’s social
responsibility. The Company has strictly carried
on its social responsibility of maintaining health
and safety for employees, which helps to persist
in the principle of the priority of prevention and
combining prevention with control. On one hand,

R - HERERME

BHRE B -(EHBREBEE
IZEHEERTE (B (FE
BEEFEHBEERE (B
AN E HBENEE - B
FEH - T KERKE - 5
e 2t RERAREAM
FEMEBERNELEIME 7 HE
WRE  UARATL  2RE
B BTTAEABREMUR
g BARENEELRIFET
Ve LR ©

B2.[@FREL &

REETWRENZS - RAD
AEEWRA  BRADT—H
BTNREBNUGELE A2
AR ERE SRR
HTLBTEERTRENZS
WUBEE  BEEBAE B
ABANER - —HERALE
WES - BRI Z 2 RIEH

EPEEBRERARAT —F—7

)
7

B
i
53d

131



132

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - B RERIRE

the Company has invested sufficient financial
resources in order to improve and manage the
fire safety equipment. On the other hand, the
Company sends warning notices and alerts
regarding health and work safety to employees
through internal and external documents, emails,
WeChat and video clips during working days so
as to raise employees’ awareness of work safety.
Meanwhile, health and work safety standards are
included in staff performance appraisal to ensure
they are being implemented precisely. During the
year of 2016, there was no incidents occurred in
the Group.

According to various risk grades in different
workplaces, the Group has formulated “Employee
Health Check Program” (E T EBE &t 2)) and
“Employee Immunization Program” (& I & &xt2l)
in each hospital. These are complied with various
requirements including “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases” (% A K+ 71 E B 2 5 Bh
JAE), “Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Treatment of Infectious Diseases”
(P A RBEMBELIEMAEE), “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Radioactive Pollution” (FFE A BB K 14553
Bi3a3%E), as well as “Infection Control Measures for
Hospitals” (&P B R E B ##’E) and “Regulations
on Technology for Quarantine and lIsolation in
Hospitals” (& Bx Fm B +% li &% %5) promulgated by
NHFPC. The Group conducts health checks for
employees in all hospitals concerned and provide
the employees who are identified as poor physical
condition with diagnosis and medical advice
each year. We have also formulated “Individual
Protection Procedures for Employees” (& T{E A
##RE) and contingency plans and equipped our
staff with adequate equipment for protection and
emergency use. Moreover, the Group conducts
inspections using relevant equipment on a
regular basis to ensure the effectiveness and
availability. Coupled with training programs and
drills for various protection contingency plans,
the Group strives to ensure safety and health of
its employees to the maximum extent.
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B3.Development and Training

The human resources department of CR Phoenix
provides development and training program with
employees which include pre-employment and
management trainings. The Group is committed
to develop a sound career development
mechanism by providing internal and external
employees with a broad range of development
opportunities, which helps to attract and retain
talents and enhance their personal expertise. In
particular, the Company sets up a Youth Working
Committee, providing professional young talents
with training programs and promotion channel.
The Clinical Working Committee of the Company
(“Clinical Working Committee”), human resources
department and the subsidiaries of the Group
worked together to organize a series of practical
trainings, aiming to improve professional skills of
the employees.

— Each of the subsidiaries collaborates with
the Clinical Working Committee to introduce
external expert information, which helps to
develop training programs at corporate level.
During the year of 2016, the Group organized
more than 100 clinical and pharmaceutical
academic events, with approximately 3,600
trainees.

Regarding the collection of statistics of
clinical training, a database was set up,
containing information such as the types,
names, scopes of training programs,
participants’ names, related companies
and telephone numbers etc. The Company
allocated the quality training resources
reasonably to various laboratories of each
hospitals according to the survey conducted
on the key departments of each hospitals.

Examples of training include: (1) training
programs of new clinical technologies
and innovative businesses. Yang Haifeng,
head of Jian Gong Hospital, attended “the
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Second Seminar on Microsurgical Carotid
Endarterectomy for Carotid Stenosis in
China” (5 = & B 88 14 58 B Ak 0 AR 4] BR F i
# B ) and learned the new technology
of Microsurgical Carotid Endarterectomy
for Carotid Stenosis. (2) Fan Yufei, head of
oncology of Yan Hua Hospital, attended the
“Training Class on Standardized Treatment
of Tumor Ablation” (JE & & &l iR & {k )& &
& 3 ) and was granted the certificate
of Standardized Treatment of Tumor
Ablation by Chinese Medical Association.
(3) Specialized training programs for the
nursing departments of each hospital. We
established standard operating procedure
(SOP) standards for blood sampling, and
enhanced concept of standardized nursing
practices in order to improve the nursing care
standards of hospitals.

The Clinical Committee has established
professional clinical committees covering 13
disciplines to develop lateral communication
across disciplines, giving effect to the sharing
of academic resources among the relevant
disciplines among hospitals. Through specific
training and case sharing conducted by
various professional committees, the synergy
among various disciplines was gradually
demonstrated. In 2016, the Company
organized 55 academic workshops with
approximately 1,600 beneficial attendees,
of which Emergency Ultrasonography
Workshop, Digestive Endoscopy Workshop,
Respiration Workshop and Chronic Endocrine
Diseases Workshop have become a series of
training programs. The Professional Clinical
Committees have achieved better effect
regarding professional development and
vocational training of clinical staff in the
Group’s hospitals.

The Clinical Committee and the information
department of the Company jointly launched
a WeChat subscription account named
“Phoenix Healthcare College PHC” (Bl &
B 2 JPHC), which integrates the training

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016
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resources of the Company and conduct
online management over each and every
procedure of the training programs. The
official account integrates online and offline
training resources within the Company and
provides multi-dimensional assessments
on the effectiveness of training. Meanwhile,
the Company will gradually offer individual
training programs for its employees so as to
develop and enhance individual occupational
skills and abilities. Since its introduction
in January, 2016, the WeChat subscription
account has carried out 326 training
sessions, published 348 training materials,
with 556 registered lecturers and 4,259
registered trainees. In addition, 86 training
demands were collected, in which several
specialized training programs were held in
order to address specific demands.

In respect of hospitals, the Company strictly
carries out relevant system of standardized
training for resident physicians and
encourages qualified staff to participate
in these trainings. The Company insists on
providing on-going education for doctors
and nurses and ensure that each of them
will complete 25 credits per year. Monthly
professional trainings are provided for
clinical laboratories. Specialized training
programs in JCI| are also organized.
Employees are encouraged to participate in
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the internal and external training programs
and academic exchange organized by
the Company. Pre-employment trainings
are provided for each staff while special
training programs are designed for special
positions so as to ensure employment with
certification.

B4.Labor Standards

In accordance with the requirements under “Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China” ((FFEARHL
MEIL L)), “Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Protection of Minors” ({# % A K 3t 1 Bl K B
F AfR# L)) and “Provisions on the Prohibition of
Using Child Labor” ((ZIERETIHRE)), the Group
expressly prohibits the employment of child labor
and forced labor in its employment policies. All
employees of the Group have entered into the labor
contracts with the Company in compliance with the
Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, entitling
to the leave provided by the national regulations. The
Company is gradually establishing and improving the
mechanism of occupational development for internal
and external staff, striving to provide further room
for staff development and help them improve their
professional skills and management skills so as to
attract and retain talents. In addition, the Company
has held and organized a series of practical training
programs, in particular for the development of young
staff. The Company especially established the Youth
Working Committee to attract young elites to join
and provide them with professional trainings and
promotion paths. Coupled with the training, the Youth
Working Committee acts as a platform for trainings
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and promotions, encouraging the young staff to
experience each position so as to enhance their sense
of belonging and recognition of the Company, thereby
motivating them to realize their potential and achieve
self-development.

The Youth Working Committee is an organization
established by the Group for young staff, serving as a
school for nurturing their growth, the communication
link and hub between senior management and
youngsters, the host of Phoenix culture, one of
the key pillars of the robust growth of the Group’s
business and the talent bank for all levels of the
Group’s management team. In 2016, the Youth Working
Committee organized a number of outdoor activities
for the young staff to strengthen their team spirit.

Pursuing an open and communication-oriented
corporate culture, the Company encourages
its staff at all levels to express their views and
recommendations by ways of meetings, phone
conversations, mails, WeChat and etc.

B5.Supply chain management

Business overview

The Group centralizes the procurement functions
of all the Group’s hospitals and clinics, and
coordinates and manages the procurement
and logistics of pharmaceuticals, medical
devices, medical consumables and equipment
at the Group level. Under the terms of the
IOT agreements, we are entitled to manage
the relevant hospitals. As a result, we are
able to control, consolidate and manage the
procurement of these hospitals and clinics,
including arranging these hospitals and clinics
to procure pharmaceuticals, medical devices and
medical consumables from our GPO business.
Our procurement services also include arranging
for the Group’s hospitals and clinics to purchase
products directly from suppliers chosen by us.
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Standardized procurement procedures

The Group adopts a standardized procurement
procedure for all the Group’s hospitals at the
Group level. Each of the Group’s hospitals
consolidates and regularly reports its
pharmaceuticals, medical devices and medical
consumables and equipment needs to our
centralized procurement management team. The
hospital makes its own independent judgment
as to what types of pharmaceuticals, medical
devices and medical consumables, or equipment
to procure. After reviewing the requests, the
hospital procurement manager submits the
request to our procurement management
team. The procurement management team
consolidates the relevant information from each
hospital and develops a master procurement
list for all the Group’s hospitals. Consolidating
the procurement requests of all the Group’s
hospitals and clinics makes the procurement
process more efficient, cost-effective and simple.
The standardized procurement procedures are
also easier to be implemented compared to
the ad hoc procurement practices employed
by each of the Group’s hospitals before we
started managing them. We have particularly
established a centralized procurement
management department at the Group level,
whereas professional procurement staff will
manage each stage of the procurement process,
including contracting, purchasing, distribution
and inventory management.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016

BELFBEF

REEEEBRAKRERE
SEEARARERBRE &
BEREERASRERMEMHNE
FERBEEEBREREER - B
B EEREMNREERE
e BRABITRAERBAESR
BEm - BERMNERZEN
HRE o  BEMBRFER Bk
RELESRHRMNRBEER
BIZX A - RfINWKBEEREE
BESXRARBRNEREES -
RITEBRARGIE —NRRE
BE - BRBRND TR&NK
BHRESERBARESN &
BERANmREEE - BEER
PREEIRMNEE ZARA
BRI ERAE T ARLL - BB ER
BREFEZRINT - RS EF
R TERERENETREBEE
P HEEXRBABNERA
TEERBRAENSERR &
BHEESR - KRB BENER

B



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Group specific purchases

In respect of purchases, for specific purchases,
we either purchase pharmaceuticals, medical
devices and medical consumables on the behalf
and resell the same to the Group’s hospitals, or
have the Group’s hospitals purchase directly from
suppliers arranged by us. Generally, if we are not
licensed to sell certain products (such as toxic
pharmaceuticals, anesthetics, psychotropic drugs
and radiopharmaceuticals), we generally arrange
for the Group’s hospitals and clinics to purchase
such products directly from the suppliers. Our
ability to negotiate volume discounts with
suppliers is usually effective when we negotiate
for the purchase of high-value items, such as
medical equipment. We normally arrange for the
Group’s hospitals to purchase medical equipment
directly from suppliers after we have negotiated
volume discounts for them.

Purchase price control

In respect of the pricing of pharmaceuticals,
medical devices and medical consumables,
the PRC government issued pricing policy of
pharmaceuticals, medical devices and medical
consumables. Most pharmaceuticals, medical
devices and medical consumables sold in China,
primarily those included in the National Drug
Catalog for the Basic Medical Insurance, Work-
related Injury Insurance and Maternity Insurance
(“Reimbursed Drug List”, or “RDL”) and other
catalogs promulgated by the governmental
authorities, are subject to price controls mainly in
the form of “retail price ceiling”, being the price
ceilings on pharmaceuticals, medical devices
and medical consumables sold to patients, and
in the form of “bidding price”, being the price
ceilings on pharmaceuticals, medical devices
and medical consumables sold to hospitals. The
retail prices of most pharmaceuticals sold by
medical institutions to patients must adhere to
a fixed 15% profit margin ceiling set by the PRC
government. As a result, the retail price shall
not exceed 115% of the “bidding price” for most
pharmaceuticals. At present, local governments
gradually cancelled the 15% mark-up retail policy.
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B6.Major suppliers

B7.

Selection of suppliers

The Group procures pharmaceuticals, medical
devices and medical consumables that will be
used by the in-network medical institutions. The
Group’s pharmaceuticals, medical devices and
medical consumables are sourced from China,
and our medical equipment is primarily sourced
from Germany, the United States, Japan, the
Netherlands and other foreign countries through
their distributors in China. The Group selects
pharmaceuticals, medical devices and medical
consumables suppliers based on their pricing,
reputation, service quality and medical product
offering. The Group maintains a list of suppliers,
reviews and assesses their performance for
the past year at the beginning of each year. The
Group checks the qualifications of its suppliers
to ensure their legality and quality, as well as
updates the supplier list accordingly. As of
December 31, 2016, the five largest suppliers were
Hong Hui, Sinopharm Group Beijing Kangchen
Bio-medicine Co., Ltd, Sinopharm Group Beijing
Huahong Co., Ltd, Beijing Dongnan Yueda Medical
Equipment Co., Ltd. and Beijing Jin Chong Guang
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Existing Risks and Risk Management

As a significant portion of revenue of the Group
is derived from the supply chain business, if the
PRC government exercises further price control
on pharmaceuticals, medical devices and medical
consumables, the profitability of the Group’s
supply chain business might be reduced.

If the “bidding prices” of pharmaceuticals,
medical devices and medical consumables are
further reduced, the room for bargaining between
the Group and suppliers will be reduced, which
will affect the probability of obtaining higher
gross profit. In addition, due to the reduction of
sales price, the revenue generated by the Group
might still be decreased despite same or higher
amount of the identical pharmaceutical sold.
The financial position and operating result of the
Group might be adversely affected accordingly.

B6.

B7.
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B8.Product Liability

In accordance with the Regulations on the Urgent
Handling of Public Health Emergencies (3% At
EEEHES1EH), Regulations on the Handling
of Medical Incidents (EBESHEEFAF]) and Plan
for Handling Public Health Emergencies in the
PRC (BIREBHAHLFEEHESZTEER), the Group
has formulated the Contingency Plan for Public
Health Emergencies (REAHRFEEHESER)
and Contingency Plan for Information System
Emergencies ({5 L BIFEESZTEZR) on the hospital
basis. The system emphasizes the management
of public health emergencies and information
system breakdown so as to provide definite
solution plans for various situations, such as
medical rescue and treatment, logistic support,
media and public relations and information
system breakdown. Meanwhile, through the
Safety Management Plan on Emergencies (B&
EHZ2EEFE), the above plans are ensured
to be implemented effectively. In particular,
integrating with the Standards of Assessment on
Hospitals (B&PX ¥ & 12 %) issued by NHFPC and
the JCI Management Standards introduced by the
U.S.A., the Group conducts a Hazard Vulnerability
Assessment (HVA) on all possible emergencies
to be occurred in hospitals, prioritizes cases
ranked with high risks and organizes emergency
drills and training programs so as to formulate
an optimized solution based on the results.
In addition, the Group has established a risk
management system which focuses on the
risk management on issues relating to medical
quality and patient safety and imposed definite
prospective management plan in relation to the
prevention and control on medical incidents.
Besides, Administrative Measures on Content
Release of Official Website and its Update and
Maintenance (E 48 A & 2 7 B 58 37 45 3 5 12 P %)
is developed, which focuses on the management
of information release by hospitals through
their respective websites, thereby imposing a
definite requirement on collection, updating and
censorship of information release.
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B9.Anti-corruption

According to the relevant requirements of Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Medical
Practitioner (FZEARLMEIH X EMHE), Law of
the People’s Republic of China Against Unfair
Competition (FEARAEMBE R T E E & F %)
and the Provisions on the Establishment of
Commercial Bribery Records in the Purchase and
Sale of Medicines (BREBEBHEEYEER
B N R i 8k 838 ), the Group has developed a
series of policies, such as the Opinion regarding
the Implementation of “One Harmony and Three
Common Goals” Campaign (B W B B"— M =
E"E B K E & R), Working Rules on Medical
Ethics and Practices (8 & 8 & T 1F {%& #5), the
Opinion regarding the Implementation of Pilot
Work on Anti-corruption Risk Management (G
R B EEAM THEERZR) and Regulations
of Consolidating the Implementation of “Nine
Prohibitions” for Proper Medical and Healthcare
Industry Practices (B8 R 0 98 #1 1T B E & £ 17
E 2 &”h T E"H B E), covering the various
requirements on medical ethics, integrity and
proper medical practices, punishment and
prevention of corruption, bribery, extortion and
fraud. Coupled with performance appraisal, the
above policies are ensured to be implemented
effectively with a solid control on the bribery
and corruption in various levels of hospitals.
Eventually, the relevant policies of PRC and the
industry can be well accommodated in the daily
operation of the Company.

B10.Investment as Contribution to the

Community

Regarding our community services for patients,
general dissemination of health knowledge and
medical consultation for community patient,
the Company has formulated a reform plan on
the community medical and healthcare services
institutions and their services. Through improving the
service procedures of the community medical service
institutions, upgrading the staff skills, hardware
and facilities, as well as using the “Internet+”
approach, incorporating with guidance from positive
performance policies, the scheme can be executed
effectively.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016
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In June 2016, a subsidiary of the Group Beijing
Phoenix Kuaijie General Clinic Management Co.
Ltd *(t REEREZNDPEEERAT) (hereinafter
referred as “UCC Company”) was established,
which aims to develop into the largest clinical chain
management group in the country, UCC Company
is committed to creating an innovative health
service institution to satisfy the needs of patients
from the grassroot community, as well as strives to
practice the national policy of multi-level diagnostic
and treatment. By providing excellent service and
outstanding diagnosis, UCC Company expects to
attract the grassroot patients in order to seek medical
consultations from preliminary healthcare services.
This then enhances the accessibility of group medical
practices by community patients.

UCC Company emphasizes on the management of
patient service, and imposes definite requirements
to enhance the patient experience. As for the
operation, the Company exercises stringent
control on the service procedures and practices in
preliminary healthcare services institutions, aiming
to overcome the difficulties faced by patients in
seeking medical consultations which helps to push
forward the implementation of the preliminary
diagnosis and treatment.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

ﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁi
Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF

CHINA RESOURCES PHOENIX HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS
COMPANY LIMITED

(formerly known as Phoenix Healthcare Group Co. Ltd)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Company
Limited (formerly known as Phoenix Healthcare Group
Co. Ltd) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 151 to 295,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS ERFXEIE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our EREBEZXBERBRBEETSZ2EEHE R
professional judgment, were of most significance in AHULHEEUBRRZEREREEZ
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of HIH - ZEBHRETEEERERGFESHME
the current period. These matters were addressed in HERHAZRRBELHER  TZE18YH
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial ZEBERHERZER -

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BREZEE EEERNMEEBRELEIR

Determination of fair value of intangible assets acquired in the acquisition of subsidiaries

EEZBWBWBAREBSZEBLEEZAAEE

We identified the determination of fair Our procedures in relation to the determination of fair
value of intangible assets acquired in value of intangible assets acquired in the acquisition of
the acquisition of subsidiaries as a key subsidiaries included:

audit matter due to its significance to the EENECBBUBENBARES B EEZ AREBERN

consolidated financial statements and the BITRFERE

significant management estimate involved in

determining the fair value of the intangible e Evaluating the external valuers’ competence,
assets. objectivity and qualifications;
TERETEBNENBLARERSEFLERE: -« MENMLEMZBERED  TBUERERE |
RABERNABERERSE  REAHHES

BEHERMEEEEARRE  BEES&FEESL -+ Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation

REESREXREEREMRS - methodology and assumption of discount rate, with
the assistance of our internal valuation specialists;

As disclosed in Note 18 and 34 to the and

consolidated financial statements, the fair . ERABEEZERZHET  FEGBEFERBEREZENR

value of the intangible assets acquired B2hEN R

in the acquisition of subsidiaries is

RMB1,728,026,000. « Evaluating the appropriateness of other key

MU IS MR 18R4T E - BB assumptions and inputs, including financial

BERNEARESZEBFEEZARABEAARY forecast, by comparing to historical performance

1,728,026,0007T ° and industry data.

. BBHLHEBERARTREEE  FEHMIZHRREE
Details of significant judgments and AEZRE - BRMEEA -
assumptions in estimating the fair value of
intangible assets are disclosed in Note 4 to

the consolidated financial statements.
R EEEEAABERACERHERBERF
BIRER GRS SRR T4 o
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Key audit matter

HAEEZSE

As disclosed in Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements, the fair value of the
intangible assets acquired is estimated

on a provisional basis. Valuation report
was prepared by external valuer to assist
management’s estimates in relation to the
fair value of the intangible assets at the
acquisition date.

BANGRE M MARMFL4FIRE - BRI E
ENQAREEREEEEME o (MERSIOHEN
BEEMER - UHBEEEHETLEERIE
AHM D R EEETMAE -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEEERNNEERRERSE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

BERAERITEAFH BT EE ZRERNG

We identified impairment assessment of
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives as a key audit matter due to its
significance to the consolidated financial
statements and the significant management

estimate involved in assessing the impairment

of goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives.
EEKBERAERUERFHZEFLEEZR
EMEER ARREERSEE  RRAHHGESH
BHREAMEAFEAESR ERERAERAIE
RER B EE2REMEIRERNEEE R
B

Details of significant judgments and
assumptions in the impairment assessment
are disclosed in Notes 4 and 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BTG ZERHAE R BREFBHERGES TS
WRMEFLAR21 ©

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives included:

SN ERAEERAERAFH BT EE ZRENEIE
TRFERE

Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology and assumption of discount rate
used in estimating the recoverable amount, with
the assistance of our internal valuation specialists;
and

EAEESER2HET @ FHERES ER A AW
EEHEARACERENBRZBEL . &

Evaluating the appropriateness of other key
assumptions and inputs, including financial
forecast, by comparing to historical performance
and industry data.

ZBLBBARBARTERE  FEEMEIERELE
ANEZREMY  BIEVETEAR -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
VR 73 EE o

Hff5 2
EAAESAHHBELEE - HER
BEFRNZES  BTEEFAUER
RREZZRBHRE -

EEHREUBBRRCBRL TREHM
FE  BEETAHZASHMERRREM
R zERE® -
HEETSHEEYBBRR2ESR  B%:
SERBBEHMES > EHBEF  ZE
LiE R R EG S ERRAEEESH
BT T HNBERFEEEERE
UFFHEERERRANER - ERES
BT MRESAAEMERRF
HEEAERRL - EEFBREZEE -
EEHBBEMRS o

i

\

ESREEERGRMBR
RAEFEZEME

BENREEARSREBEERMHEREEL
REBLAAKI2BERAERUEEM
DMAZBEUHHREKR  UAHHRBRER
BUBHR 2 METFERN TR R
MEH 2 EAHRBIMLAE 2 ARPEHE

Bo

ERAGEUBHERRE EXE8EF
b BREFESEZED  WEBRAK
RTHEBERBESERE2EE  URE
REBKERSTER BRIEEEER
1 BEREFRIFLEE  HBIEHM
BR2ERATR -

EHERAAREEE BREZHBRES
2o

1
W
i
53d

EPERBRERARAT —2—

147



148

Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M % B AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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« Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Mak Chi Lung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

24 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

nger Comprehensive Income

SERRREMEERAREK

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z£2016F 12 A31HLLFE
For the year ended
31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2016 2015
20164 20154
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
izt AR®TT ARBT T
Revenue Uz 5 1,532,831 1,372,267
Cost of sales and services HE K RIS B A (1,126,198) (1,042,686)
Gross profit EF 406,633 329,581
Other income =R PN 8 93,184 99,090
Other gains and losses HithH R EE 9 (1,728,693) 1,394
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHE M (24,128) (10,605)
Administrative expenses 1THEH (147,934) (139,316)
Finance costs Bt E 10 (342) (27,375)
Other expenses Hth&ER 11 (35,625) (3,000)
Share of (loss) profit of an associate  E{E—REZE AT (FHE)
A (241) 1,008

Share of loss of joint ventures EihEE AREER (15,335) (2,809)
(Loss) profit before tax AT (E58) FE (1,452,481) 247,968
Income tax expense FREHAX 12 (47,331) (75,554)
(Loss) profit for the year FE (HB) AE 13 (1,499,812) 172,414
Other comprehensive income FEHM2EKRA (%)

(expense) for the year
Items that may not be reclassified ABER BB THRE 72

subsequently to profit or loss: EFEmZEE -
Remeasurement of defined benefit EREEFRAKEETEZ

pension plans (Note 32) BT E (MEE32) (20,332) -
Items that may be reclassified ARERBE R EN 7

subsequently to profit or loss: ZEm2IHA
Share of exchange differences of L —EBE QTR

an associate and a joint venture —BeERaZELELE 10,220 6,759

EREREBFEERBRAR —FT—7
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FeBEmkEMEERAREK

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

For the year ended
31 December
BZ12B31HLEFE
2016 AONES)
20164 2015%

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M ARBTR ARBTT

Total comprehensive (expense) income FE2MH (Bix) WAL
for the year (1,509,924) 179,173

(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: FE{GEE (E5E) A5E :

Equity holders of the Company RATERFEA (1,506,964) 167,045
Non-controlling interests R R 7,152 5,369
(1,499,812) 172,414

Total comprehensive (expense) income EE2E (%) WAL

attributable to: 55
Equity holders of the Company RATEREFEA (1,513,010) 173,804
Non-controlling interests IR 3,086 5,369
(1,509,924) 179,173
(Loss) earnings per share Bk (&8 2R
- basic (RMB yuan per share) - HX (BERAR®TT) 15 (1.67) 0.20
- diluted (RMB yuan per share) — 88 (BRAR®IT) 15 (1.67) 0.20
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Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

B AR R R

At 31 December 2016 7420165128311

an\

2016 2015
20164 20154
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mizx AR¥TT ARMT T
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BENRE 17 264,292 145,223
Intangible assets B EE 18 2,132,362 404,569
Receivables from invest-operate- RERE -EE
transfer (“I0T”) hospitals —#% ([10T)) Bk
Z BRI 19 113,004 103,059
Lease prepayments for land use right L ih{f AERETEN 20 143,720 147,095
Goodwill (5K 21 1,463,611 -
Interest in an associate R—EBE QT 2ER 22 163,338 154,995
Interests in joint ventures REEQTZER 23 513,648 -
Loan to a joint venture B—REA% ATEH% 23 - 6,361
Deferred tax assets BEERERE 24 - 300
4,793,975 961,602
Current assets nBEE
Inventories FE 25 50,241 42,322
Loan to a Sponsored Hospital o — R R EEpR
RHEMNER 7(ii) 47,761 -
Trade receivables EWE ZRIE 26 255,924 137,620
Prepayments and other receivables FENFEREMERRE 27 43,533 42,887
Amounts due from related parties FE Uk BA B 5 708 40 68,228 57,500
Short-term investments EEHRE 28 66,400 74,990
Certificate of deposit FRE 29 52,806 116,684
Cash and cash equivalents HERBEEEY 29 1,069,468 821,864
1,654,361 1,293,867
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables BB ZFE 30 242,757 209,543
Other payables HitE B 31 120,655 59,567
Amounts due to related parties PEAS R 5 FRIE 40 6,914 -
Payables to hospitals sponsored by FESAEBE Y 2 Bk
the Group (the “Sponsored Hospitals) ([ Z23}#8&85k |) FIE 7(iii) 369,344 -
Tax payables E#He 12,678 36,880
Dividends payable FEARE - 83,823
752,348 389,813
Net current assets REBEEFE 902,013 904,054
ZHEEBEZERERA ZE—RNEFR



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SR SO €

At 31 December 2016 jA2016512 8318

2016 2015
20165 20154

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M ARBTR AREBTT

Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 5,695,988 1,865,656
Non-current liabilities FREBERB
Retirement benefit obligations RUKEFEE 32 19,578 2,924
Deferred tax liability EIEREE 24 318,880 -
338,458 2,924
Net assets EEFE 5,357,530 1,862,732
Capital and reserves PR AR 1
Capital &N 36 267 166
Share premium RApEE 6,365,946 1,382,736
Reserves 4] (1,127,834) 364,976

Equity attributable to equity holders ~ ZARQ TR IFHE ABEER

of the Company 5,238,379 1,747,878
Non-controlling interests B 119,151 114,854
Total equity B 5,357,530 1,862,732

The consolidated financial statements on pages 151 to 515122958 24 & M MR MN20175F
295 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board 3H24HEEZESSHERFETZE  ¥H

on 24 March 2017 and is signed on their behalf by: THEERKEE
Wu Potao Cheng Libing
RIPE R
Director Director
EE EE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
=i

W 2 %S0 E R
HIRTEY - YHYRZ TR RUEEHY Y
EHHMB R BB - IWAHALT - T
YU0SZ Y HYREFAHRISE - BT HEL
S H %0 RIL SN Z E 12169 (512 B B
HEHE S HHT TR R (BT 2T B
A ROYTHEY (Eh)) B Y &y

o BEHHCCEI Bl 4 —F
o U X B M (27 EH000' VYL CE B T LU H ([[2
LD IEEERYHIFRIELHLBYI004 (85
E)ESEELETHEYT - EBELH (2L000°768°€C
STV (¥ EBY) LL000'8L20ER X (TRE) [
VHEBEEGFEEYGHERETY - HLHIL0CH

‘1eided
poJoisidel 8yl JO 9%GZ JO WNWIUIW B 1B paulelulBW SI pun} yons eyl papiaocid
‘saiueduwlod asay) Jo 1e11ded palelsidel 8seaIoUl 01 JO S8SSO] POIBINWNIOE 18S}J0 03
‘Sel1lu0ylne 1ueAslal 8yl Jo 1eAaoldde uodn ‘pesiiiin 8gq ued sAlesal snjdins Aloiniels
oy "1exldeo pauslsi8al 8yl JO 9%0G Seydoeal 80UB|eq 9AI9Sal BY] |13UN 8AJasal snydins
AJ01n3e}S 9y} 01 ‘suoiyeindes pue SPJEPUE}S SUIUN0DDE DYd @Yl YllM 80UBPI0OJE
Ul pe1eIndled ‘syijold Xel-uelje oA1l08dsel Jloyl JO 9% (0| Jejsuedy 03 padinbeu aJe
soluedwod 9S8y} ‘salieIpISqNs s} pue Auedwo) 8yil JO UOIIBID0SSY JO S81011lY
Y1 pue meT Auedwo) (,04d, 9Ul) euly) 4o angndey so1doad ayiy 03 Suiploody

'©€ 910N
Ul paso]osIp ale sllelsp Jayning (.pJeog, ayl) Auedwo) syl JO SI01084Ip JO pJeoq
oYy Aq #10z AInp £ U0 epeW (,8W8YDS, 8Yl) swWseydsg piemy aJeys ayl 03 yuensind
19YJEW 8yl U0 000‘%#LZ 40 sadeys Sunsixe sAuedwo) ayi eseyoind o3y (,891snJ],
a43) payiwi] searsni] 3uoy uoH aJeysiaindwo) 01 (000°Z68€ZaINy Alorewixoidde
0} JueleAInbs) 000‘8LZ0E$MH 40 Junowe ue pied Auedwod eyy ‘GLoz Adenuer uj

:S810N

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016

156



Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/T\/\IE» M7 /JILE-EE&%E

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE2016F 12 A31H L FE

For the year ended
31 December

HZ12ANALEE
2016 2015
20165 20154
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M ARETR ARET T
(Loss) profit before tax Bial (&18) FE (1,452,481) 247,968
Adjustments for: HE
Share of (loss) profit of an associate FE4E— R AT (B5E)
Bl 241 (1,008)
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate  BHEHE—BKLE D FWE - (5,163)
Share of loss of joint ventures i N ) =] 15,335 2,809
Depreciation of property, plant and M  BMERREINE
equipment 28,495 23,873
Amortisation of lease prepayments for T AR SR AR
land use right 3,375 3,375
Amortisation of intangible assets BREEEE 19,146 17,389
Interest and investment income FERREBRA (35,582) (44,134)
Finance costs B E R 342 27,375
Expense recognised on equity-settled MREREFEURMAR
share based payments BR2EH 23,298 41,762
Loss on disposal of property, plant and EENE  BERREN
equipment, net BEREE 565 216
Fair value changes of mutual funds HEEEDAABEZED 2,645 156
Foreign exchange (gain) loss ER (kz) B (2,016) 3,397
Impairment loss on goodwill BERESE 1,727,499 -
Operating cash flows before movements  &EE B EF 2 KL
in working capital BeRhE 330,862 318,015
Movements in working capital EEESEH
Increase in inventories FEEM (7,693) (8,490)
Increase in trade receivables FEuk & 5 5 IEE N (91,895) (43,885)
Decrease (increase) in prepayments and T84 718 & H b FE UL 718
other receivables WA (3Em) 201 (10,248)
(Increase) decrease in amount due FE Uk — R R
from a related party (&2 md (8,770) 10,338
Increase in trade payables FEAS B 5 FRIB AN 32,522 37,669
Increase in other payables H A FEA FRIBIE N 33,470 8,886
Increase in amounts due to related parties FE{TBAEE 5 51 IEHE N 6,533 -
Cash generated from operations KEEBES 295,230 312,285
Income taxes paid EERRZEEL (71,442) (80,583)
#=HE R B EZERBRA = "FH 157
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
an\AIE: S7 /)Ib%éﬁi%‘%

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2016 #Z2016F12831H L EE

For the year ended
31 December
BZ12B31BLEE

2016 2015
20165 2015%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
aE ARETR N
Net cash generated from KRETBMERESFHE
operating activities 223,788 231,702
Cash flows from investing activities REZBFBRERE
Investment income received from ERERMBRERA
financial products 21,951 33,828
Purchase of financial products BESRER (3,732,622) (4,674,667)
Proceeds from disposal of EESRERMERIE
financial products 3,696,212 4,721,977
Purchase of certificate of deposit BEFNE (831,084) (2,388,691)
Proceeds from certificate of deposit EREEHE 894,962 2,656,034
Purchases of property, plant and ﬂ%,ﬁ%% - BERRE
equipment (42,451) (32,169)
Payments to |OT Hospitals under RIBIOTHZE M IOTER I
I0T agreements (32,000) (100,000)
Repayment from 10T Hospitals IOTE R EERE 14,808 9,808
Proceeds from disposal of property, BREWE BER
plant and equipment RIEBRE 308 37
Payment to Yan Hua Hospital 1) 4L B8 B A X 40.3 - (10,000)
Repayment from Yan Hua Hospital AL BIREM 40.3 - 10,000
Purchase of mutual funds BELAERES (459,996) (95,000)
Proceeds from mutual funds HEELMERIE 502,351 49,844
Acquisition of investment in an associate LI&%E" BEEARIZRE 22 - (141,985)
Dividends received from an associate ft—EHE A TREZRE 1,963 -
Shareholder loan to a joint venture m—EEE A RRMEN
BRERE 23 (15,000) (9,250)
Cash inflow on acquisition of subsidiaries WEBHMBARZBEERA 34 101,003 -
Net cash generated from REZHMEREFH
investing activities 120,405 29,766
Cash flows from financing activities MEZHMERERE
Transaction cost paid for syndicated loan SEEERZX 5 KA 10 - (27,375)
Payment for repurchase of BREBRMAR
ordinary shares - (23,892)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company X FAATHEBAZRE 16 (83,112) (32,506)
Repayments to the Sponsored Hospitals 22 HEEFIRF (15,955) -
Proceeds from grant of Award Shares RIB R D SR B 819R H 5RB
under Share Award Scheme W12 2 P8 FI8 462 41,896
Payment for acquisition of KU I R 2 FIE
the non-controlling interests - (7115)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GmEREREHRE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2016 HZ£2016F 12831 AL FE

For the year ended
31 December

HZ12ANALEE
2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Net cash used in financing activities METHMARE FH (98,605) (48,992)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BRERFEEEYILINFLE 245,588 212,476
Cash and cash equivalents FURERBELZEEY
at the beginning of the year 821,864 611,536
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes =~ EZEEFE 2,016 (2,148)
Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year FRESRESZEY 29 1,069,468 821,864
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH BeRESEEBNESRIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash RITEBERS 29 1,069,468 821,864
EHERBEZERBR AR —ZT—NFEW
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Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements

fre TS R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ20165F12831HILEE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings
Company Limited (formerly known as Phoenix
Healthcare Group Co. Ltd) (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands on 28 February 2013. Its

shares have been listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) from 29 November 2013. The registered
office of the Company is 4th Floor, Harbour Place,
103 South Church Street, Grand Cayman KY1-1002,
Cayman lIslands, and its principal place of business
is located at Beijing, the PRC. The Company is an
investment holding company.

On 31 October 2016(the “Acquisition Date”), Pinyu
Limited (“Pinyu”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, acquired the entire share capital
of Ample Mighty Limited (“Ample Mighty”) and its
subsidiaries from China Resources Healthcare Group
Limited (“CR Healthcare Group”). Upon completion of
the acquisition of Ample Mighty and its subsidiaries
(the “Acquisition”), the name of the Company has been
changed from “Phoenix Healthcare Group Co. Ltd” (“/&l
EEEEEASR LD A" to “China Resources Phoenix
Healthcare Holdings Company Limited” (“Z Bl EE&E
ERBRAR”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
mainly engaged in provision of general healthcare
services, provision of hospital management and
consulting services, group purchasing organization
(“GP0O”) business and other hospital-derived services
in Mainland China.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

—RER
EHERBREZRBERLT (A
BEEEEERRAR) ([AAF])
M2013F2H28B RIBEHAEFS A
REAEHEREAMRLARRR
BREEQAE - HRH BE20135F11
B2OHERBEBHEXRZMBERA
B (TBEXPr]) EMRE™ o RAFFE
M= E it H4th Floor,Harbour
Place, 103 South Church Street,
Grand Cayman KY1-1002, Cayman
Islands * T EE X UK P EI
R o AQNARBIREZR AT °

720165108318 (Wi HHER ) -
Pinyu Limited ([Pinyul  Z&RAFH
BE2EMBAR) tEHEEEE
ERAR ((EHEEREE] WEE
HERAR (Bl REME AR
IR o TR EHE R EHHE A TR
BB & XAREBEEER
BEEEERAREFEAEHEEE
BIERERAT °

ApraREMBLAR (AKE]D £

ZEEPERNERERHEGSERR

% RUBEREERBARE - £H

REBAS (TGPOJ) XHURHAME
BROTHEARAS o

REMBHRRUARE TARED
25 ARBTRBARFAZUREE
HE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSS”)

Amendments to IFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current

year

The Group has applied for the first time in the current

year the following amendments to IFRSs issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

Amendments to
IFRS 11

Amendments to
IAS 1

Amendments to
IAS 16 and IAS 38

Amendments to
IAS 16 and IAS 41

Amendments to
IAS 27

Amendments to
IFRS 10, IFRS 12
and IAS 28

Amendments to
IFRSs

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations
Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statement

Investment Entities:
Applying the Consolidation
Exception

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2012- 2014 Cycle

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the

Group’s financial performance and positions for the

current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set

out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

an\ =2 jﬁ%#&%ﬂzﬁ?

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSS”)
(continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards and interpretation that have been
issued but are not yet effective.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’

IFRS 16 Leases?

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration’

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions’

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Amendments to
IFRS 2

Amendments to
IFRS 4

Amendments to Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue

IFRS 15 from Contracts with Customers'’
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
IFRS 10 and

IAS 28

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?®

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative*

IAS 7
Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax
IAS 12 Assets for Unrealised

Losses*

Amendments to Transfers of Investment

IAS 40 Property’
Amendments to Annual Improvements to IFRS
IFRSs Standards 2014-2016 Cycle®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSS”)
(continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

N

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 2017

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate

RN

N

RN

Except as described below, the directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) do not anticipate that the
application of the above mentioned new and revised
standards and interpretation issued but not yet
effective will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. IFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010
to include requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include
the new requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of IFRS 9 was issued in 2014
mainly to include a) impairment requirements for
financial assets and b) limited amendments to the
classification and measurement requirements by
introducing a “fair value through other comprehensive
income” (“FVTOCI”) measurement category for certain
simple debt instruments.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSS”)

(continued)
New and revised IFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Key requirements of IFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement are subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are generally measured
at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liabilities’ credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the
fair value of the financial liability designated as fair
value through profit or loss was presented in profit or
loss.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSS”)
(continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under IAS
39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity
to account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting
mechanisms currently available in IAS 39. Under
IFRS 9, greater flexibility has been introduced to the
types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are eligible
for hedge accounting. In addition, retrospective
quantitative effectiveness test has been removed.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s
risk management activities have also been introduced.

Except for the potential early recognition of credit
losses based on the expected loss model in relation
to the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised
costs, the Directors anticipate that the adoption of
IFRS 9 in the future may not have other significant
impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities based on an
analysis of the Group’s financial instruments as at 31
December 2016.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSS”)
(continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

IFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including IAS 18 Revenue,
IAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: ldentify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has
been added in IFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
IFRS 15.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSS”)
(continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)

In April 2016, the IASB issued Clarifications to IFRS
15 in relation to the identification of performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as
well as licensing application guidance.

The Group has performed a review of the existing
contractual arrangement with its customers and
the Directors do not expect the adoption of IFRS 15
would result in significant impact on the revenue
recognition of its sales and services businesses and
the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the
application of IFRS 15 in the future may result in more
disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. IFRS
16 will supersede IAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled
by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and
is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSS”)
(continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured
at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the
impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the
classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents
upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows
in relation to leasehold lands for owned use while other
operating lease payments are presented as operating
cash flows. Under the IFRS 16, lease payments in relation
to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an
interest portion which will be presented as financing and
financing/operating cash flows as appropriate.

Under IAS 17, the Group has already recognised
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where
the Group is a lessee. The application of IFRS 16 may
result in potential changes in classification of these
assets depending on whether the Group presents
right-of-use assets separately or within the same line
item at which the corresponding underlying assets
would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, IFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
IAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a
lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
IFRS 16.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSS”)
(continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As disclosed in Note 37, total operating lease commitments
for the Group as at 31 December 2016 amounted to
RMB3,798,000, the Directors do not expect the applicable
of IFRS 16 would result in significant impact on the Group’s
results but it is expected that certain of these lease
commitments will be required to be recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities unless they qualify for low
value or short-term leases upon the application of IFRS 16.
In addition, the application of new requirements may result
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above.

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure
Initiative

The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes. Specially, the amendments
require the following changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities to be disclosed: (i) changes from
financing cash flows; (ii) changes arising from obtaining
or losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses;
(iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates: (iv)
changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

The Directors anticipate that the application of the
amendments will result in additional disclosures on the
Group’s financing activities, specifically reconciliation
between the opening and closing balances in the
consolidated statement of financial position for liabilities
arising from financing activities will be provided on
application.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs issued by
the IASB. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”)and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in |AS 36
Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participants ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level
1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e« Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

« Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

« Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporates
the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

(i) has power over the investee;

(ii) is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

(iii) has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the equity
holders of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the equity holders of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition- related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
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e B R R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at
their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognized and measured in
accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and |IAS 19
Employee Benefits respectively;

« liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with IFRS 2 Employee Benefits at the
acquisition date; and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net
of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non- controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)
Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liguidation may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the non- controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non- controlling
interests are measured at their fair value.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date), and additional
assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date that, if known,
would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting policy
above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes and
not larger than an operating segment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit (or groups of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other
assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or groups of
cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate and joint ventures is
described below.

Investments in associates and joint
ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement.
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or
joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of associates
and joint ventures used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share
of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds
the Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes an associate or a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures (continued)

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an
associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to
use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit
or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership
interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a
joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to
the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and
other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at
which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

i) the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

ii) the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold;

iii) the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
iv) it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the

Group; and

v) the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Service income is recognised when the related
services are rendered and when it is probable that
the economic benefits from the service rendered will
flow to the Group and such benefit could be reliably
measured.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification
of each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leasing (continued)

Leasehold land and building (continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “lease prepayments for land use right” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) using
exchange rate prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of exchange reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the
cost of providing benefits is determined using
the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period.

Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the
period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated
by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the
period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Retirement benefit costs (continued)
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and
losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling
(if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding
interest), is reflected immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a charge or
credit recognised in other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reflected immediately in actuarial changes reserve
and will not be reclassified to profit or loss.

Share-based payment arrangements
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share award scheme

For Award Shares granted that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value
of services received is determined by reference to
the fair value of Award Shares granted at the date
of grant, net of any initial grant price received,
without taking into account any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions. The fair
value of services is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of Award Shares that will eventually vest
with a corresponding increase in equity (share-
based payment reserve). For Award Shares that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of
the Award Shares granted is expensed immediately
to profit or loss, unless qualified for recognition as
assets.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises
its estimate of the number of Award Shares that are
expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the
estimates is recognised in profit or loss, such that the
cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate
with a corresponding adjustment to share-based
payment reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Share-based payment arrangements
(continued)

Share award scheme (continued)

When the Award Shares are vested, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to treasury share reserve. The
difference between the amount previously recognised
in share-based payment reserve and the cost for
repurchasing the award shares will be transferred
from treasury share reserve to capital reserve.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
tax as reported in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates and interests in
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting periods and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at
the end of the reporting periods, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment other than construction
in progress as described below are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress is carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Construction in progress is
classified to the appropriate categories of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property, plant and equipment,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis. Intangible asset with indefinite
useful life is not amortized and carried at cost less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and
are initially recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite
useful lives are reported at cost less subsequent
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately.

Alternatively, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset are measured at
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised
in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there
is an indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a weighted-average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)
and loans and receivables. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and
is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
periods. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

3. FESFHHBE @

G =
CEBEEERMNATIESNETIZTY
B ERLREERSHES -

TREENSBMEBBENSREAIAER
TR - WEIRBTEMEERERE
& (UAREBEFEAEZEHTAE
HweEREERNTHMEAMGERIN) B
B ZRZRARDSEARRIGE
B ABHREZEREESEHE
Bz EE - WELAREENE
BEZHF AERSREENEH
BEEERGEZRZBANKRER
W o

TREE
rEBEzeREEDBAUQIAEE
FFERHZBHABENERMERE
(TFVTPL)) RER K B FRIE - &
BEAREREMEEMERAR X
RAIGERFEE -

ERANZADRERSBBTEERT
BECBERARSBANEWRAZA
E o BEANRNDNERMEE ZTETE
Higk (anE ) REHER - ERRL
BT ARRBESWA (BIEEREE
ERFNZz—JIEAHEREA
2 XERAREMBERITE) 2
HYamRREFE 2R

)
B
i
53d

EPERBRERARAT —2—7

189



190

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method (continued)

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL of which interest income
is included in other income.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL represent financial assets
held for trading and financial assets designated as at
FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

i) it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

ii) on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

iii) it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset (including short-term investments)
other than a financial asset held for trading may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

i) such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

ii) the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the
grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

iii) it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gain or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets and is included
in the “other gains and losses” line item. The dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets is included
in the “other income” line item.

Fair value is determined in the manner described in
Note 42.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, other receivables, receivables from 10T
Hospitals, loan to a sponsored hospital, amounts
due from related parties, certificate of deposit and
cash and cash equivalents) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets other than those at FVTPL are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

« breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, as well as observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables and other
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When a
trade receivable or other receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

3. FEFTEE &)

ERMTE @)
TREE (&)
SHEERE (&)
FEZREETEE

BITASEF LS HBEERUKRE
%

. EREH  PINMESHIEXIER
T8 ;=

. BERABUREBRENMBE
Mo

HRETE2EMERE (HIMEW
BZRE) CHAERLEEFRE
MEEBTRENERE - —ARNK
RERENEREETEEAREN
BEWFGCHE ZASBHTFEEE
MBI RBE M - ARERR
77 BN W R BB FRES
EARYEREE R L -

ERANEEESHENEHNEERD
EREMEFARRERERZEERE
RN RBE R EZENESR -

FBETREEZRESESEEZERS
BMEEZREETRE  HERREZRK
AR EMBEWIAERN - HIREES
EBERBBRITA - BKRESFE
o H b FE WK IR AR 2 A AT Ui (2] B
AR B EREE - HRWEHBHE
BEERIEATTARS - BER2IRE
EEBRIEHET -

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

If in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the financial
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own
equity instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
instruments (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
periods. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest
expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables, amounts due to related parties and
payables to the Sponsored Hospitals are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the management of
the Group are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and the future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying
accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimation, that the management of
the Group have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Control over the hospitals under 10T
agreements

The Group entered into a series of 10T agreements
with the not-for-profit hospitals and their
contributors which the Group agrees to make
investments to the hospitals or/and the contributors
to improve the medical facilities of the hospitals in
exchange for the right to manage and operate the
hospital and receive performance-based management
fees for periods ranging from 16 to 48 years. The
operating rights are expected to be transferred back
to the hospitals or their contributors after these
periods.
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4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying
accounting policies (continued)

Control over the hospitals under 10T
agreements (continued)

The management assessed whether or not the Group
has control over these not-for-profit hospitals through
the 10T agreements (the “IOT Hospitals”) based on
whether the Group has the practical ability to direct
the IOT Hospitals’ relevant activities unilaterally. In
making their judgement, the management considered
the composition of the internal governance bodies and
also certain committees which oversee the operations
of the hospitals. After assessment, the management
concluded that the Group does not obtain the decision
making power under these bodies and committees to
direct the relevant activities of the hospitals, so the
Group does not control and thus does not consolidate
those hospitals. Instead, these IOT agreements are
considered as management contracts to generate
management service income. Details of the 10T
agreements are set out in Note 7.

Control over the hospitals under the
sponsorship rights and consulting
agreements

The Group acquired the sponsorship rights from
other parties and became the sponsor of certain not-
for-profit hospitals. The Group also entered into a
series of consulting agreements with those not-for-
profit hospitals which the Group agrees to provide
consulting services to the hospitals and receive
performance-based consulting fees.

4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying
accounting policies (continued)

Control over the hospitals under the
sponsorship rights and consulting
agreements (continued)

The management assessed whether or not the
Group has control over these not-for-profit hospitals
through the sponsorship rights and consulting
agreements based on whether the Group has the
practical ability to direct the hospitals’ relevant
activities unilaterally. In making their judgement,
the management considered the composition of
the internal governance bodies and also certain
committees which oversee the operations of the
hospitals. After assessment, the management
concluded that the Group does not obtain the decision
making power under these bodies and committees to
direct the relevant activities of the hospitals, so the
Group does not control and thus does not consolidate
those hospitals. Instead, these consulting agreements
are considered to generate consulting service income.
Details of the sponsorship rights and consulting
agreements are set out in Note 7.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and the future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of each of the reporting period
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year from the end
of each reporting period.
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4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated,
which is the higher of the value in use or fair value
less costs of disposal. The calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which
results in downward revision of future cash, a material
impairment loss/further impairment loss may arise. As
at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of goodwill
is RMB1,463,611,000 (net of accumulated impairment
loss of RMB1,727,499,000). Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are disclosed in Note 21.

Provisional fair value of net assets on
date of acquisition of subsidiaries

The business combination was related to the Group’s
acquisition of the entire share capital of Ample Mighty
and its subsidiaries from CR Healthcare Group by
the issue of 462,913,516 consideration shares by the
Company. However, since the initial accounting for
these business combinations is incomplete by the end
of the reporting period, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the initial accounting
for business combinations is incomplete.

Those provisional amounts may be adjusted during
the measurement period (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date), and additional assets
or liabilities recognised, to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at
the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the sum of the acquisition-date fair value of the assets
transferred to the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group and the goodwill arising on acquisition recognised
on the date of acquisition. The Group’s acquisition of
Ample Mighty and its subsidiaries were accounted for
on a provisional basis as set out in Note 34.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Provisional fair value of net assets
on date of acquisition of subsidiaries
(continued)

The provisional fair value of net assets acquired
on the date of acquisition, i.e. as at 31 October
2016, of Ample Mighty and its subsidiaries was
RMB1,791,490,000 and the goodwill arising on the
acquisition of Ample Mighty and its subsidiaries was
RMB3,191,110,000, determined on a provisional basis.

The acquisition method of accounting for business
combinations requires the Group to estimate the fair
value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. This requires the use of management’s
assumptions and judgement, based on the useful life
of the sponsorship rights and consulting services
contracts, financial forecast and discount rate
for intangible assets valuation. The sponsorship
rights and consulting services contracts recognised
provisionally in the business combination amounted
to RMB1,728,026,000 as disclosed in Notes 18 and 34.

Estimated useful lives and impairment
of sponsorship rights and consulting
services contracts

The Group’s management estimates the useful lives
of the sponsorship rights and consulting services
contracts of the hospitals are indefinite. This estimate
is based on an analysis of all of the relevant factors,
such as the expected useful life of similar nature and
functions, the period of control over the right and legal
or similar limits on the use of the rights (including
the ability to renew the consulting service contracts
upon their maturity through the sponsorship rights to
appoint representatives in the board of trustees of the
Sponsored Hospitals), and the useful life is dependent
on the useful life of other assets of the hospitals.
Based on this analysis, the Group’s management
considers there is no foreseeable limit to the period
over which the right is expected to generate net cash
inflows for the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Estimated useful lives and impairment
of sponsorship rights and consulting
services contracts (continued)

The carrying amounts of the sponsorship rights and
consulting services contracts are reviewed to assess
whether their recoverable amounts have declined
below their carrying amounts annually. The recoverable
amount is determined based on the value in use of the
cash-generating unit to which the sponsorship rights
and consulting services contracts have been allocated,
which is the higher of the value in use or fair value less
costs of disposals. The impairment calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit, which has
been taken into account of the estimation of expected
future cash flow of consulting services contracts, and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the recoverable amount is less than its
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized to
write the assets down to its recoverable amount.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts of
the sponsorship rights and consulting services
contracts and the details of the recoverable amounts
calculation are disclosed in Note 18.

Impairment of loan to a sponsored
hospital, receivables from 10T
Hospitals, trade receivables and other
receivables

In determining whether there is objective evidence of
impairment loss, the Group takes into consideration
the financial strength of the sponsored hospital and
the IOT Hospitals, the credit history of the customers
and the current market condition. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
Management reassesses the adequacy of impairment
on a regular basis. Where the actual cash flows are
less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. The carrying amount of loan to a sponsored
hospital, receivables from 10T Hospitals, trade
receivables and other receivables are disclosed in
Notes 7, 19, 26 and 27, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12331 HILFE

5. REVENUE 5. Wz
Revenue represents income from general healthcare WEEFREEERYE BREERE
services, hospital management and consulting ARBEUARIEGPOXEBSHIHEER »
services, and sale of pharmaceuticals, medical BEEEWMNEEREN  REMERIT
devices and medical consumables under the GPO EEBTNEXEBRZLARBAEE
business, and professional medical consultation LA °

services under other hospital-derived services.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as TEBFRNKREIMAOT ¢
follows:

For the year ended
31 December
BEZ12A31BLEE
2016 2015
20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT  ARBTT

General healthcare services REBERE 600,892 575,634

Hospital management and B EE R EHARE
consulting services 116,386 72,112
GPO business GPOZET% 810,510 724,521
Other hospital-derived services H A E& B 07 4 IR 5,043 -
1,532,831 1,372,267
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Board is identified as the chief operating decision
maker (the “CODM”) of the Group for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment.
The CODM reviews operating results and financial
information for each operating company separately.
Accordingly, each operating company is identified as
an operating segment. Certain operating companies
are aggregated for segment reporting purpose after
taking into account that those operating companies
are operating in similar business model with similar
target group of customers, similar methods used
to distribute their products and under the same
regulatory environment.

Before the completion of the Acquisition, the Group
presented its reportable segments based on its
internal organisations as follows,

(i) General hospital services
Revenue from this segment is mainly derived from
hospital services provided at Beijing Jian Gong
Hospital Co., Ltd (tRHRZERERAT) (Yian
Gong Hospital”).

(ii) Hospital management services
The Group provides comprehensive management
services to hospitals under 10T agreements and
receives from each 10T Hospital an annual fee.
(iii) Supply chain business
The Group derives revenue from sales of
pharmaceuticals, medical devices and medical
consumables to Jian Gong Hospital, the |0T
Hospitals and external customers.

Upon the completion of the Acquisition in the
current year, the Company restructured its internal
organisations. The fee income from Hong Hui
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (Al EEE#HFR 2 7)) (“Hong
Hui”) and other suppliers arranged by Hong Hui was
grouped as part of the hospital management services
under hospital management and consulting services
segment, which was previously grouped under the
supply chain business segment. In addition, “general
hospital services” segment, “hospital management
services” segment and “supply chain business”
segment were renamed as “general healthcare
services” segment, “hospital management and
consulting services” segment and “GPO business”
segment, respectively. The reportable segments are
changed as follows:
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

General healthcare services

Revenue from this segment is mainly derived from
hospital services provided at Jian Gong Hospital
and 999 Medical Clinic (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“999
Clinic”) (“= N EEFZMORYNBREMFERT”).

Hospital management and consulting services
The Group provides comprehensive management
and consulting services to I0T Hospitals and
Sponsored Hospitals and receives from each I0T
Hospital and each Sponsored Hospital an annual
fee. The Group also receives fee income from
Hong Hui and other suppliers arranged by Hong
Hui.

GPO business

The Group derives revenue from sales of
pharmaceuticals, medical devices and medical
consumables to Jian Gong Hospital, the 10T
Hospitals and external customers.

Other hospital-derived services
[t mainly represented professional medical
consultation service provided to third parties.

In preparation of the consolidated financial

statements, the segment information for the year
ended 31 December 2015 has been restated to
confirm with the current year presentation.

6. DEEHR &)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment information about the Group’s reportable
segment is presented below.

DEER )
ﬁ@ﬁ%l?ﬁ% D ERHY o B E KL 2
BIEIT o

Segment revenue, results, assets and JJ;-E‘ iz (& -BERE
liabilities E
Hospital Other
General ~ management hospital-
healthcare and consulting GPO derived
services services business services Total
ne BhER . Hftgh X
BERE REARE  GPOEX TR Sl
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR ARETRT ARETRT ARETR

For year ended H22016%F

31 December 2016 12A3ALEE
External revenues Ihipugs 600,892 116,386 810,510 5,043 1,532,831
Inter-segment revenue 2 ERE W - - 200,824 - 200,824
Segment revenue VAR G 600,892 116,386 1,011,334 5,043 1,733,655
Eliminations F3F:] (200,824)
Consolidated revenue FekE 1,532,831
Segment results PEEE 39,241 116,797 177,553 946 334,537
Share of loss of an associate FEfh—BlE N RER (241)
Unallocated share of loss of ROBELE -

ajoint venture RELNTEE (13,547)
Unallocated interest and AAEFIERRE U

investment income 25,004
Impairment loss on goodwill HEHEEE (1,727,499)
Share-based payment expense URAARZER (23,298)
Finance cost BBER (342)
Foreign exchange gain e 2,016
Other unallocated expense Hitt R D B (49,111)
Loss before tax RAER (1,452,481)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

Segment revenue, results, assets and AElE - XE - AERE
liabilities (continued) & @)

Hospital
General  management hospital-
healthcare and consulting ~ GPO derived
services services business services Total
Fa BhheR HitnEk
BRRYE REARE  GPOXE  fTARE A%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTRT ARETR ARB®TRT ARETR
As at 31 December 2016 20165128318
Segment assets NHEE 557226 2,980,420 257,642 2,457 3,797,745
Goodwill HE 1,463,611
Cash and cash equivalent BeRBLZEY
and certificate of deposit REFE 1,122,274
Unallocated short-term investment &2 EEEHRE 66,400
Interest in an associate R—BBENE 2R 163,338
Unallocated interest in a joint venture  A—RA&ERF
AOEER 7487
Other unallocated assets Hitn kA EEE 1,279
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 7 B 8 (173,798)
Consolidated assets REEE 6,448,336
Segment liabilities AEHEE 149,010 828,706 268,825 1,300 1,247,931
Other unallocated liabilities Hitt kA BEE 16,673
Elimination of inter-segment payables 2 &8FEfE{T B 84 (173,798)
Consolidated liabilities REEfE 1,090,806
Other segment information Rt &R
Amounts included in the measure of &7 &R 74
segment results or segment assets: ~ BEBIAZEH
Addition to non-current assets REFRBEE
(Note) (MaE) 130,644 1,757,753 6,979 - 1,895,376
Depreciation and amortisation TEREE 28,538 21,710 768 - 51,016
Loss on disposal of property, EEN%  BER
plant and equipment, net REZFEE 437 - 128 - 565
Interest income FIEWA - (13,631) - - (13,631)
Amounts regularly provided to the EHEEEREE
CODM but not included in the AT A
measure of segment results or Vi Ly
segment assets: BEENEH
Interest in an associate R-BEEAT B NATER NATER NATER NATER 163,338
Interest in a joint venture R-BEAENmzEE NATER NATER NATER NATEA 7487
Share of loss of an associate EE-MEeAFEE NATER NATER NATER NATER 241
Share of loss of a joint venture BE-BaeAmEBE NATER NATEE NATER NATER 13,547
Share-based payment expense URAARZER NA TEA NATER NATER NAFTER 23,298
Finance cost B%ER NA.FEBA NAFER NATER NAFEAR 342
Foreign exchange gain B 5 NA FEA NATER NATER NATER (2,016)
Income tax expense FiEmAx 2,044 1,165 43,788 334 47,331

Note: Non-current assets consist of property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets.

it : SERBEEBRREYE  BEK
REANELEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 7EWEF @)
Segment revenue, results, assets and DEME C EE - EERE
liabilities (continued) & @)

Hospital
General management
healthcare and consulting GPO
services services business Total

BREER
GEBERE  BHRE GPOZH aat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT  ARBTT  ARETT  ARET:R

For year ended 31 December 2015  #Z2015F12A31H

(restated) LLEE (Eif)
External revenues i Es 575,634 72,112 724,521 1,372,267
Inter-segment revenue DEHE WS - - 200,921 200,921
Segment revenue DEUE 575,634 72,112 925,442 1,573,188
Eliminations 5 (200,921)
Consolidated revenue SElE 1,372,267
Segment results PEEE 40,204 95,500 159,549 295,253
Share of profit of an associate FE{L — R
ARHH 1,008
Gain on deemed disposal of BAHE—MH
an associate B NF 5,163
Unallocated share of loss of a AR —
joint venture N (2,809)
Unallocated interest and FABFER
investment income PE 38.257
Share-based payment expense DB AEZBE (41,762)
Finance cost B A (27,375)
Foreign exchange loss EHigk (3,397)
Other unallocated expense B Ao REY (16,370)
Profit before tax FATFE 247,968
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. Z7ER @)
Segment revenue, results, assets and DENE - FE - EBEENRE
liabilities (continued) 1§ (#8)

As at 31 December 2015 (restated)

Segment assets PEEE 488,232 619,566 275,665 1,383,463
Cash and cash equivalent and certificate RERALEEY

of deposit Kk 938,548
Unallocated short-term investments FRORIEHIRE 29,990
Interest in an associate il NG 154,995
Unallocated interest in a joint venture R-BaERrF

Ko EER -

Loan to a joint venture H-EA%ATEE 6,361
Other unallocated assets Hitn kA EEE 5,022
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 7 PR E S 85 (262,910)
Consolidated assets BEEE 2,255,469
Segment liabilities HHEE 16015 225751 22923 571,000
Other unallocated liabilities AR EEE 84,647
Elimination of inter-segment payables A EEEAFIESE (262,910)
Consolidated liabilities SAEfE 392,737
Other segment information Rt &R
Amounts included in the measure of STESHEEL S

segment results or segment assets: BERAZEH

Addition to non-current assets (Note) REXRBEE (M) 26,909 64,945 1,131 92,985

Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 25,076 18,977 584 44,637

Loss on disposal of property, REEWE  BER

plant and equipment, net REZFEE 200 16 - 216

Interest income FIBWA - (10,306) - (10,306)
Amounts regularly provided to the CODM EHEEERFEEEM

but not included in the measure of BTFA S Sz

segment results or segment assets: HHEETENEE -

Interest in an associate R-EEEAEzER  NATER NATER NATEAR 154,995

Interest in a joint venture R-BaERREE NATER NATER NATEAR 3

Loan to a joint venture H-BEEAFER NA FEA NATER NATER 6,361

Share of profit of an associate Eie-BEeNa M8  NATER NATER NATER (1,008)

Share of loss of a joint venture Eit—EaeNmEE NATER NATER NATER 2,809

Share-based payment expense URGBHHZER NA FEA NATER NATER 41,762

Finance cost BKEA NAFER NATEAR NATER 27,375

Foreign exchange loss RV NA TEA NATEA NATER 3,397

Income tax expense Frig®is 11,362 10,929 53,263 75,554

R2015512A318 (E4)

General

healthcare

services

RaBRRSE
RMB'000
ARETT

Hospital

management
and consulting

services

BREER

AR
RMB'000

ARBT T

GPO
business

GPO¥7
RMB’000

ARBT T

Total

2t

RMB'000
ARBTT

it : JERBEEBRYE  BEK
REAN B EE

Note: Non-current assets consist of property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue, results, assets and
liabilities (continued)

Segment revenue reported above represents
revenue generated from both external and inter-
segment customers. The inter-segment transactions
are charged at regulated price for the sales of
pharmaceutical, medical devices and medical
consumables.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in Note 3. Segment results represent the (loss) profit
before tax earned by each segment, without allocation
of impairment loss on goodwill, share of (profit)
loss of an associate, gain on deemed disposal of an
associate, unallocated share of loss of a joint venture,
certain interest and investment income, finance cost,
share-based payment expense, foreign exchange gain
(loss) and corporate expenses not directly related
to the respective segment, which represents the
internally generated financial information regularly
reviewed by the CODM. This is the measure reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments, all
assets are allocated to operating segments other than
goodwill, cash and cash equivalents, certificate of
deposit, unallocated short-term investments, interest
in an associate, unallocated interest in a joint venture
and certain assets of the Company and overseas
subsidiaries. All liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than liabilities of the Company and
overseas subsidiaries.

Income tax expenses have been allocated among the
segments as additional information regularly provided
to the management but not included in the measure
of segment result while the relevant tax payables
have been allocated into the segment liabilities.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

6. 7EBER &)

A

TEHWE - FE -EBEERE
& (&)
LR > Uk g AN R 5 0 RS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

No geographical information is presented as all of
the Group’s revenue is derived from activities in the
PRC. The Group’s operations and non-current assets
are located in the PRC, except for interest in an
associate with carrying amount of RMB163,338,000 as
at 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB154,995,000), which
principal place of business is in Hong Kong.

Information about major customers
Revenue from the customers, including revenue from
hospital management and consulting services and
GPO business (details of the major customers’ revenue
by segment are disclosed in Note 7), contributing over
10% of the total revenue of the Group during both
years is as follows:

Beijing Jing Mei Hospital Group

6.

R EERER

DEER @)

ih & & &

BN AREBN B WRESRNEPE
HRMNER  FIUTESFREMAHE
ERl e AEBENEENERDEE
NP E - HR20165F12831H
BR {8 A R %5163,338,0007T (2015
F . AR%154,995,0007T) A —
BHEQAR (FELEMBURE
) ZRERBRI ©

TBEFEH

R 7 2 P 0 3 4 A S 4 g 3
BIB1O%IEF 2 W (BERAE
B & TR % A AR IS B2 G PO RS Y W ik
(ZAREADNREEBES W
BERIETHE)) T

For the year ended
31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2016
20164

2015
20155
RMB’000
ARET T

RMB’000
ARETT

(AtRREEERER) ([ R EERx 1)

(‘Jing Mei Hospital”) 344,073 300,908
Beijing Yan Hua Hospital R ER

(R EALERR) (E-314- 1)

(“Yan Hua Hospital”) 313,872 280,368
Beijing Mentougou Hospital tERMMEEEER

(EAERMMEEEER) (TMEEREERR )

(“Mentougou Hospital”) 164,373 139,791

EHERBEZERBR AR —ZT—NFEW
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

7. 10T ARRANGEMENTS/CONSULTING
SERVICES ARRANGEMENT WITH
SPONSORED HOSPITALS

The Group entered into IOT agreements with the
contributors of 10T Hospitals, including Yan Hua
Hospital, Jing Mei Hospital, Mentougou Hospital, Beijing
Mentougou Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital (it
EHmMEEBEPREERR) (“Mentougou TCM Hospital”),
Beijing Mentougou Hospital for Women and Children
(At =T FIEEE R 4 R #Bx) (“Mentougou Hospital for
Women and Children”) Airport Hospital of Shunyi District
(tEmIEREZEBERR) (“Airport Hospital”) and Shunyi
District No.2 Hospital (3t IR M JE & & 55 = & Bx) (the
“No.2 Hospital”) (collectively referred to as the “Shunyi
Hospital”), Third Center Hospital of Baoding City (ff
E T =F 0B PFt) (“Third Center Hospital”) and First
Center Hospital of Baoding City (ff i 58 — F /0 B&BR)
(“First Center Hospital”) (collectively referred to as the
“Baoding Hospital”). Pursuant to the IOT agreements,
the Group is committed to provide (i) investment
amounts to the IOT Hospitals that will be repaid back
to the Group (the “Repayable Investment Amounts”) or
(ii) investment amounts to the contributors of the 10T
Hospitals that will not be returned to the Group in return
for the operating rights of the 10T Hospitals over periods
ranging from 16 to 48 years, subject to other conditions
set out in the 10T agreements. Under the IOT agreements,
the Group operates and provides management services
to the I0T Hospitals and derive management fee based
on pre-set formulas set out in the IOT agreements.

Upon completion of the Acquisition as disclosed in Note
1, the Group owns 100% equity interests in (i) China
Resources Hospital Holding Company (“CR Hospital
Holding”, “Z B ERR AR A 8)”), which is the sponsor
for Huaibei Miner General Hospital Group (“Huaikuang
Hospital Group”, “J# 4t #& T #2 8 fx & [E”) and Xuzhou
Mining Hospital (“Xukuang Hospital”, “i& # ™ #& 1L B
Bx”), (ii) Shenzhen Yukangrun Hospital Management Co.
Ltd (“Shenzhen Yukangrun”, “;®YmH R BEREEER
A7]"), which is the sponsor for Guangdong 999 Brain
Hospital (“Brain Hospital”, “BE R = 1L &I E&Px”). Such
Sponsored Hospitals entered into consulting service
contracts with China Resources Hospital Investment
(China) Co., Ltd (“CR Hospital Investment”, “Z=H I8 E
(PE)AEPFR2DE") as disclosed in Note 7(vi). Pursuant to
the consulting service contracts, the Group commits to
provide consulting services to the Sponsored Hospitals.
In return, the Group charges the Sponsored Hospitals
service fees based on pre-set formulas set out in the
consulting services contracts.

7. 10T2 5 B B 5 9

FE 8 B 7% &
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FEEER - MEBESER - tEH
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BT BEEp ([=/880k]) Bt
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F—FhLER ([E—0ER] (&
BIREER])) WHEEFETZIOTH
& o RIBIOTHZE » AEBEAEG)D
IOTERRHERERNEENKRES
H(AEERESEE]D R(i)@moT
BRNHERRHEISRETFAEE
WiRE SR UIRBUOTERR T F16
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O HREHEERE - WUWEUIRIOTH
BAEVNEELARNTENEEE -

MEIREZWBERE  A5HE
ERGELEIABREE ([HEE
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= NBERIERE ([RaRI S ) 2 B
FRIITHEREREEARLF
(DRYIFEEE ) Z100%RH#E - %%F
LEmEEEFERRE (TR A
FROF ([FEHEKRIRE ] FT L REME
RIEERE - 7 (vi) TR E - RI5
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B R R R AR TS - MASKEERER
RIS Bz TR E D30 R
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

7. 10T ARRANGEMENTS/CONSULTING 7. I0TZ 62 £2 3} B B 1Y

SERVICES ARRANGEMENT WITH BEEBERE o

SPONSORED HOSPITALS (continued)

(I) The amount of management fee and consulting (|) PREEERNEFRD W E
services fee received/receivable by the Group from WIOTEKR R BB RERMNERS
the 10T hospitals and the Sponsored Hospitals EERRIEE N OIOTETIZ {4
and revenue derived from GPO business to the I0T GPOEMFIBWNEIT -

Hospitals during both years are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z2016F 12531 HILFE

Hospital
management
and consulting GPO
services business Total

BRrEER

o o AR GPO%*7% BF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT  AR®TT  AR®TRT

IOT Hospitals IOTE&RR 94,817 806,037 900,854

The Sponsored Hospitals 2 ER 21,569 - 21,569
116,386 806,037 922,423

For the year ended 31 December 2015 B ZE2015F12531HIFF/E

Hospital
management
and consulting GPO
services business Total

BREER

w4 o AR GPO%7#% &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT  AR®TT  ARETT

IOT Hospitals IOTE R 72,112 719,561 791,673

EPERBRERARAT —F—7
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

7. 10T ARRANGEMENTS/CONSULTING 7. IOTZ H "HERERH

SERVICES ARRANGEMENT WITH B RIS =5 ()

SPONSORED HOSPITALS (continued)

(1i) The amount of trade receivables with the 10T () RS ME KRR EI0TE R R 22
Hospitals and the Sponsored Hospitals (including MBERNVEWRE ZFIE (BEE
amounts due from related parties), receivables U BB S FIE) - REIOTEEPT 2
from 10T Hospitals and loan to a sponsored FEUR SR IE R o) — R SRt BE P R (4
hospital at the end of the reporting period are as HWEFRWMT :
follows:

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2016 2015
20164 201545

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT  ARETT

Trade receivables: U E S RIE ¢
IOT Hospitals IOTE R 271,627 179,796
The Sponsored Hospitals S EERR 26,749 -
298,376 179,796
Receivables from the |0T Hospitals: B I0TEEk: < FEWFRIE :
IOT Hospitals |OTEERR 127,842 116,400
Less: current portion included in W ETATERRIER
prepayments and other Htn e FIg 2
receivables (Note 27) BIEAER > (BfIEE27) (14,838) (13,341)
Non-current portion (Note 19) FEBNERER D (B¥E£19) 113,004 103,059

As at
31 December 2016

72016512H831H

RMB’000
ARBTT
Loan to a sponsored hospital (Note) [6]— RSB IR ENERR (FFEE) 47,761
Note: In November 2014, CR Hospital Investment and BIEE - 2014118 > EHER
Xukuang Hospital entered into a three-year B RIGTEERE I — 1 =
loan agreement. Pursuant to the agreement, the EEIE - RS - %

loan bears the prevailing three-year bank loan gy 2 — A AR £ B 2
interest rate plus 2%. The interest will be paid B EETT = FARITER

on its maturity. H@?ﬁj}éﬁ?ﬁ;i BEEF B
SYUNESELESSSE NG
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

IOT ARRANGEMENTS/CONSULTING 7. IOTZ #E BHE R EIT K

SERVICES ARRANGEMENT WITH BERBZH @

SPONSORED HOSPITALS (continued)

(III) The amount of payables to the Sponsored (III) FA20165F F 7R FE 15 22 3t B8 Bx =X
Hospitals at the end of 2016 are as follows: HT -

As at
31 December

A2016512H831H
RMB’000
AREF T

Loans from the Sponsored Hospitals REZHHERNER (Fiata)

(Note a) 109,344

Amounts due to the Sponsored PEATER M ER B 7R IR (Ff5ED)

Hospitals (Note b) 260,000
369,344

Notes: BaE -

a. Loans from the Sponsored Hospitals are a. REBWBREHERSEE
unsecured, bearing interest at 0.35% per annum R RFEFE0.35%T B REA
and repayable on demand. JEEREE -

b. The balances are non-trade in nature, unsecured, b. HHRRIFEHTHE EIE
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. R RERBRERER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

7. 10T ARRANGEMENTS/CONSULTING 7. IOTZ H "HERERH

SERVICES ARRANGEMENT WITH RS BRAE 2B ()

SPONSORED HOSPITALS (continued)

(iv) The carrying amount of operating rights and (ivV) RREIAR D EREREE (1
the sponsorship rights and consulting services FE18) HYAS & RE I SR 1 % RE
contracts, classified as intangible assets (Note REESEMRMENT :

18) at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
The carrying amount of operating rights: KERREEMT ¢

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2016 2015
20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT

IOT Hospitals IOTE&FR 404,336 404,569
The carrying amount of the sponsorship rights ERERBEERESRE (M
and consulting services contracts (Note 34): 34) WEREMEWT :

As at
31 December

M2016%12A31H
RMB’000
AR T T

The Sponsored Hospitals B ER 1,728,026
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

IOT ARRANGEMENTS/CONSULTING

SERVICES ARRANGEMENT WITH

SPONSORED HOSPITALS (continued)

(v) Details of the IOT agreements
Shunyi Hospital
On 28 May 2015, the Group entered into an IOT
agreement with Shunyi District Government
of Beijing (it X ™ JE & & B AY), which is the
contributor of Airport Hospital & the No.2
Hospital, and obtained the operating right of
Airport Hospital and the No.2 Hospital with a
period of 20 years from 2016 to 2035. Under
the IOT agreement, the Group made Repayable
Investment Amounts of RMB100 million to
Airport Hospital and the No.2 Hospital in 2015,
which will be repaid to the Group in equal
annual instalments during the tenure of the I0OT
arrangement.

Baoding Hospital

On 15 September 2015, the Group entered into
IOT agreement with the People’s Government of
Baoding, Hebei Province (Al it R & ™ A B BT)
(“Baoding Government”), which is the contributor
of Third Center Hospital, and obtained the
operating right of Third Center Hospital with
a period of 20 years from 2016 to 2035. Under
the 10T agreement, the Group commits to make
Repayable Investment Amounts of RMB70 million
to Third Center Hospital in 2016, which will be
repaid to the Group in equal annual instalments
during the tenure of the I0T arrangement. In
the meantime, the Group intends to establish
a special purpose charity fund of RMB20
million subject to the investment progress of
Third Centre Hospital in order to support the
commencement of provision of Huimin (beneficial
to the people) healthcare services by Third
Center Hospital. During 2016, the Group had
contributed RMB3 million to the fund which has
been established this year and made Repayable
Investment Amounts of RMB32 million to Third
Center Hospital. In addition, in 2015, the group
entered into another IOT agreement with Baoding
Government regarding First Center Hospital. As at
31 December 2016, the relevant investment had
not been made.

EREREBFEERARAR —F—7

I0TZ BF  Ed 52 3} B fx 1Y
BE R AR 7% = B (@)

(v) |0TT5;’JE%§E¥'%
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

7. 10T ARRANGEMENTS/CONSULTING 7.
SERVICES ARRANGEMENT WITH
SPONSORED HOSPITALS (continued)

(vi Details of the Consulting Services (vi) £

Arrangement with the Sponsored
Hospitals

Xukuang Hospital

Xukuang Hospital is a not-for-profit hospital
organised in Jiangsu Province, the PRC. In
September 2015, CR Hospital Investment, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Ample Mighty
entered into a service contract with Xukuang
Hospital which has been terminated and replaced
by a new consulting service contract which took
effect from 24 December 2015.

Huaikuang Hospital Group

Huaikuang Hospital Group is a not-for-profit
hospital organised in Jiangsu Province. CR
Hospital Investment entered into a consulting
services contract with Huaikuang Hospital Group
which took effect as from 1 May 2016.

Brain Hospital

Brain Hospital is a not-for-profit hospital
organised in Guangdong Province, the PRC. CR
Hospital Investment entered into a consulting
services contract with Brain Hospital, which took
effect as from 1 May 2016.

All the consulting services contracts have an
initial term of 20 years and are on largely the
same terms and conditions, save for contracting
parties and effective dates.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hilk A

For the year ended
31 December
HZ12A31HILLEE

2016 2015
20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T
Fee income from suppliers (Note) REMERZWEBWA (HE) 50,399 48,640

Interest and investment income on: FERKREUWE :

financial products SRER 21,951 33,828
receivables from 10T Hospitals REIOTER 2 FEWFIE 13,163 10,306
bank deposits RITER 3,053 4,429
loan to a sponsored hospital b —E R RERIREENER 468 -
Government grant BT %5 B 40 4
Others HAity 4,110 1,883
93,184 99,090

Note: On 10 January 2012, the Group entered into a one- BIFE - M2012F1 108 » AN & E

year supply agreement with its supplier, Hong Hui,
for the supply of pharmaceuticals to Jian Gong
Hospital, Yan Hua Hospital and Jing Mei Hospital.
The agreement was renewed annually from then on.
Under the supply agreement, Hong Hui arranged
itself or other suppliers to supply pharmaceuticals
to Jian Gong Hospital, Yan Hua Hospital and Jing
Mei Hospital through the subsidiaries of the Group
or directly to these three hospitals. In consideration
of granting to Hong Hui the priority to supply
pharmaceuticals to these three hospitals, Hong
Hui agrees to pay the Group an amount calculated
based on a percentage of the total pharmaceutical
purchases made by Jian Gong Hospital, Yan Hua
Hospital and Jing Mei Hospital (the “Minimum
Economic Benefit”). The fee income represents the
difference between the amount of the Minimum
Economic Benefit and the gross profit generated
by the Group from the sale of pharmaceuticals to
the three hospitals. The fee income was received/
receivable from Hong Hui or from other suppliers as
arranged by Hong Hui.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HtRBE R EE

For the year ended

31 December
BZE12A31BHLEFE
2016 2015

20164 2015%F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT

Foreign exchange gain (loss) EH U (BK) 2,016 (3,397)
Impairment losses on goodwill REREEE (FFE21)

(Note 21) (1,727,499) -
Fair value changes of mutual funds HEESAAREBEZEE (2,645) (156)
Loss on disposal of property, plant EEYE BER

and equipment HEZEE (565) (216)
Gain on deemed disposal of HAEHE-—BEE AT

an associate (Note 22) Wi (MisE22) - 5,163

(1,728,693) 1,394
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. i i5 & B

For the year ended
31 December
BEZ12A31BLEE
2016 2015
20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT  ARBTT

Transaction cost of the syndicated ~ SREER2ZXZ A (KfaE)

loan (Note) - 27,375
Interests on payables to FEASTERYER PR FRIB 2 FI 2
the Sponsored Hospitals 342 -
342 27,375
Note: On 4 February 2015, the Company as borrower BIFE © 2015 2H48 « A2 7 (1F
entered into the syndicated loan agreement under REBRT) FTLREE R
which the Company was granted a facility in the B ARRER T HE150
aggregate sum of US$150 million, with a repayment BEETRE  BERHRIF
term of 3 years (which is extendable for another 2 (AT R ¥EA3F EARR fE M 18 R 17
years after the initial 3-year term), the interest rate IER2F) K iR3E A B fm BUR
of which is determined with reference to the three- 1TRIZEHF B N3.15% .2 F F| &
month LIBOR plus 3.15% per annum (“Syndicated PR (TREERBZE]) - iRE
Loan Agreement”). The syndicate under the ERHREBETZREARESL
Syndicated Loan Agreement is led by Deutsche Bank RITESE - AEMRITEESR
AG, with participation from a consortium of other B([ExA])  ZEMERA
banks (the “Lenders”). The facility will be guaranteed AARREBMEWNBE AR KA
by existing offshore subsidiaries and future offshore BB B A RIRE - WLAYE
subsidiaries of the Company and secured by first RRE (REEFAN) AZEA
priority perfected security interests over 100% of B EABI100%RMHAIE—E
the shares of the subsidiaries and etc. in favour of TIPS FER - FH20155F
the security agent on behalf of the Lenders. Due SNETIHTNIBTE  EFARES
to the instability of the foreign exchange market BRI B EERFTRAK L
in 2015, the Directors decided to terminate the REERGE  ZEERKRE
Syndicated Loan Agreement with the Lenders by a R - BEARBER IR ZHK
friendly negotiation in advance. The loan has never RNAERM27,375,0007T B R &
been drawn down. Transaction cost in relation to F2015F12A3MBILEFEZE
the syndicated loan amounting to RMB27,375,000 miER  ARNIREERH=RD
has been recognised in the profit or loss for the k- R AR RER 2
year ended 31 December 2015. As the Syndicated FEBN2016FTEM °

Loan Agreement was terminated, the procedures
for discharging the above charges and pledges were
completed in 2016.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

11. OTHER EXPENSES 1. EMEHR

For the year ended
31 December
BE12A31BLEEE
2016 2015
201645 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT  ARBTT

Transaction cost in relation to BREERFZATZRFHAN
major transactions 30,063 -
Medical disputes expenditure BERUGEX 199 933
Donation =L 5,000 2,030
Others Hih 363 37
35,625 3,000
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. Fif8 BB X
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss: RERERAZAERBEX :

For the year ended
31 December
BZ12ANALEE
2016 2015
2016%F 2015

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT

Current tax: BNHEABIIA :

PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT”) R {2 AT B R

(ME2EPrEHE D) 47,240 74,508

Deferred tax (Note 24) B (MiaE24) 91 1,046
Total income tax recognised in RIERER 2 SN ERE

profit or loss 47,331 75,554
The PRC subsidiaries of the Group are subject to EIT AEEZHEHRBEARRMEEERN
at 25% during both years. Y EIR25% MM EFTBH o
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made FR A 7S 5= [ 8] 7AW 18 57 P9 I 48 28 4 A
as the Group did not have assessable profits subject BEENEGH 2 EBRRFE > Hibit &
to Hong Kong Profits Tax during both years. FHREBFEHRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 12. FRIEHBAX
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the FEMBUHEASEAZREME2E
(loss) profit before tax per the consolidated statement WAREXZBA (BE) FEYH RN
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as T
follows:

For the year ended
31 December
BZE12A31BLEE
2016 2015
20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T

(Loss) profit before tax Al (E518) FE (1,452,481) 247,968

Tax calculated at statutory tax rates  #25% (20155 : 25%)

of 25% (2015: 25%) EEBEGE RS (363,120) 61,992
Tax effect of share of loss (profit) of {5 —REBE QX ABE

an associate (FB) 2BRBEE 60 (252)
Tax effect of share of loss of PTMEEELEFEIHBETE

joint ventures 3,834 702

Tax effect of different tax rates on FRKEHEBRQAGEIE
intra-group interest income/interest WA/ FIERX 2 BT E

expense - (2,745)
Tax effect of income not taxable for ~ NARBUWA 2 BHBHE

tax purpose (39,457) (1,291)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible FERHE B BT AIZRBLFH X

for tax purposes BB 436,807 10,933
Effect of different tax rates of SEIYNCIRNEE TR vd -2

overseas companies 14,669 6,215
Utilisation of tax losses previously B/ FAAREERZHEEER

not recognised (5,462) -
Income tax expense S 47,331 75,554

EHRARBIRERAR —T-AFEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

13. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. 5K (F8) FE
The Group’s (loss) profit for the year has been arrived AEBZEE (FB) FESNBRIU
at after charging: TRERSBE

For the year ended
31 December
BZ128318LLEE
2016 2015
20164 2015

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT

Depreciation of property, plant and Y% BERSEITE

equipment 28,495 23,873
Amortisation of lease prepayments T i AR ETa TR
for land use right 3,375 3,375
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERHE
(Included in cost of sales (G ASHE R BRAE AR )
and services)
19,146 17,389
Total depreciation and amortisation &K #5248 51,016 44,637
Cost of inventories recognised BREAEY 2EERA
as expense 947,386 884,112
Operating lease rentals in respect of FAEHEF-RKLAERS
rented premises 4,309 4,911
Directors’ emoluments (Note 14) EEME (FtsE14) 21,197 15,676
Other staff cost Hh & TR
Salaries and other allowances FremEHEqh2aL 182,075 149,541
Retirement benefit contributions RIREFERR 13,133 10,986
Equity-settled share-based RREREEUROARZ
payment expense gH 23,298 33,582
Total staff costs BT R AN4E%E 239,703 209,785
Auditor’s remuneration ZEETEN & 3,350 2,500
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF
EXECUTIVE AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS
141 Executive directors, chief

executive and non-executive
directors

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
seventeen (2015: twelve) directors and the chief
executive were as follows:

W HITES
FHITES

72 Bl B2 13 = E 178 (2015
F:128) EERTHRAH M
SWMTF -

ITHAER R

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BZ2016F12831BILEE
Salaries Retirement
Directors’ and benefit
fee allowances scheme Total
RIKEA
kA HeEEH SRR &%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T ARET T ARET T
Executive directors: HTES !
Mr. Liang Hongze (RH2% %) RHERE - 3,438 32 3,470
(Note i) (Note iii) (BtaEi) (Htatiii)
Ms. Xu Jie (ff#EZ 1) RELL - 2,607 32 2,639
(Note i) (Note iii) (PFEET) (P&EiD)
Mr. Xu Zechang (fR 28 %) #hEEEE - 2,576 32 2,608
(Note iii) (Note iv) (FFEiii) (HiEEiv)
Mr. Jiang Tianfan GIX#%4) (Note iii) TR %4 (Hizkiii) - 2,737 32 2,769
Mr. Zhang Xiaodan (RE:f % 4) REALE (Hiv) - 2,774 32 2,806
(Note iv)
Mr. Shan Baojie (BB % %) BEHLE - 2,358 32 2,390
(Note ii) (Note iii) (P=Fii) (PaEiii)
Mr. Cheng Libing (R Z5%4) (Note i) AR ZELE (Tl - 2,740 32 2,772
Mr. Wu Potao (RIFE54) (Note iii) SWERLE (M) - 617 6 623
Non-executive directors: FHTES !
Mr. Yang Huisheng (182 % 4) (Note i) #2184 4 (HfaEii) - - - -
Mr. Rui Wei (X182 4) (Note i) WEEAE (M) - - - -
Mr. Wang Yin (EE1%4) (Note iii) T4 (FiEEi) - - - -
Mr. Wang Yan (£ Z5%4) (Note iii) EBRE (M) - - - -
Mr. He Xuan (BHE% ) (Note iii) Bhek4E (i) - - - -
Mr Liang Hongze (RHZBE4) (Note i)  RHZER4E (MizEiii) - - - r
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTES :
Mr. Kwok Kong Kwong (BBEI % 4) BEXEE 400 - - 400
Ms. Cheng Hong (B4l Z L) Bzt 240 - - 240
Mr. Lee Kar Chung (ZERE8 % 4) FRPEE 240 - - 240
Mr. Sun Jianhua (JZEE % 4) BEELE 240 - - 240
1,120 19,847 230 21,197
ZHEEBEZERAERA AT ZZ—NFIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS,CHIEF 14 &% THREARRENE
EXECUTIVE AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EHFALTZHE @
INDIVIDUALS (continued)
141Executive directors, chief WIHITES s THARK

executive and non-executive FHITES (@)
directors (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE2015F12A31HLERE
Retirement Equity-

Salaries benefit settled
Directors’ and scheme share-based

fee allowances contributions  payment Total

BINEH  RRREER
ESHE  HESEEN  SHEfR URGGR &t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARETT ARBTR ARBTRT ARETR

Executive directors: HTES !
Mr. Liang Hongze (R % %) RHERE - 1,830 26 2,045 3,901
Ms. Xu Jie (L L) BhELT - 1,990 13 - 2,003
Mr. Xu Zechang (R & L 4) BESKE - 809 26 2,045 2,880
Mr. Jiang Tianfan CLRMR % 4) IR EE - 630 26 2,045 2,701
Mr. Zhang Xiaodan (RIS % 4) RESLE - 1,000 26 2,045 3,071
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr. Yang Huisheng (15184 % 4) BELEE - - - - -
Mr. Rui Wei (K185 %) WEERE - - - - -
Independent non-executive BAFHTES !
directors:
Mr. Kwok Kong Kwong (BREIESE4E) BEEAE 400 - - - 400
Ms. Cheng Hong (R4 % T) Bzt 240 - - - 240
Mr. Wang Bing (E7kL4) (Notev) kA4 (iztv) 154 - - - 154
Mr. Lee Kar Chung (ZRE%4) EREEE (HaEv) 86 - - - 86
(Note v)
Mr. Sun Jianhua (REE % 4) BEERE 240 - - - 240

1,120 6,259 117 8,180 15,676
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF
EXECUTIVE AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

141 Executive directors, chief
executive and non-executive
directors (continued)

Notes:

(i)  Mr. Liang Hongze is also the chief executive of
the Group and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the
chief executive.

On 25 April 2016, Mr. Liang Hongze resigned as
the Chairman of the Board and Ms. Xu Jie was
appointed as the Chairman of the Board.

On 25 November 2016, Ms. Xu Jie resigned as
the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Wang Yin was
appointed as the Chairman of the Board.

(i) On 1 February 2016, Mr. Yang Huisheng and Mr.
Rui Wei resigned as non-executive directors of
the Company and Mr. Shan Baojie and Mr. Cheng
Libing were appointed as the executive directors
of the Company.

(iii) On 25 November 2016, Ms. Xu Jie, Mr. Jiang
Tianfan, Mr. Shan Baojie, Mr Xu Zechang and Mr.
Liang Hongze resigned as executive directors of
the Company, Mr Wu Potao was appointed as the
executive director of the Company and Mr. Wang
Yin, Mr Wang Yan, Mr Liang Hongze and Mr He
Xuan were appointed as non-executive directors
of the Company.

(iv) On 28 December 2016, Mr. Zhang Xiaodan
resigned as the executive director of the
Company, Mr Xu Zechang was appointed as the
executive director of the Company.

(v)  On 21 August 2015, Mr. Wang Bing resigned as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
and Mr. Lee Kar Chung was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company.

WIHITES  THRIR
FEHITES (1)

GEE

(i) RAERERENBAKEITR
BE - EXTRERR 2 3
B EAERTTERA SR H
BR# 2 B o

MR2016F4H25H » 4=
EEBITESERE MERK
THZTARESEK -

M2016FE11A2650 » 5L
+HEHESEER MEHEL
EZIAREEER -

(i) R2016F2A1H - BEA L
ENRERERTARRFIE
WITESE MBEBHRLEER
Y B BRI ARARQA
WITESE -

(iii) 2016411 A258 » 18«
T T RMEE BEEHL
EBEERERBHIZL
ABIARNBNITESE M
RINBELEEZTAERRAR
MITEE ANTHLEE -
TERE  BHREBEERE
R EEZR T EARTIEHR
TE%E -

(iv) 720165128280 » KBS
REBERRABMITES
MxEELEBEERAR
AIBITES -

(v) H2015%F8A21H @ E K &
EBEARRRBNIERITE
= MERBEEEZRITA
NARBIIEMITES ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

14, EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF 14, &
=

EXECUTIVE AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

E-THERZRRENR
FALTZME @)

141Executive directors, chief BIHITES s THEZR

executive and non-executive
directors (continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company.

During both years, no directors waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments, and no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office.

EHITES (8)

EXFARHATESZMEEER
REBREEARARFEES
BRI 2

EXFRBALFMTESZME
FEABERELR R RAES 2
%o

MFEAR > BEESSHRJEER
ZEMNE  BAKEHEQE
EXNEAMESESEMATE
[ = 11 0 A A = B By Sz 22 R =
BE -

14,2 All five individuals with the highest emoluments 14,2 8 20165128318 K& 20155

in the Group are five directors of the Company
for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2015 whose emoluments are included
in the disclosures above.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

15. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)
earnings per share attributable to the equity holders
of the Group is based on the following data:

15. 8 (BE) B2F

rEEREHFEARGERERNRHE
g (58 BRNDETIIBETE

For the year ended
31 December
HZ12A31HILLEE

2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETF T ARET T
Earnings B
(Loss) profit for the purpose of basic ~ FA{EFTEARA T
and diluted (loss) earnings per share HEZEFEABLFEESR

for the year attributable to equity

EXREE (FER) 827

holders of the Company 2 (E518) F8 (1,506,964) 167,045
Number of shares R&GOEA
Weighted average number of REFTESRER (BE)

ordinary shares for the purpose of BRzELIEBRRER

basic (loss) earnings per share (FR)

(in thousands) 901,557 818,737
Effect of dilutive potential BEEEEER

ordinary shares:

Non-vested shares under Share B 0 R B BI1E T AR B N/A

Award Scheme (in thousands) 2B (FBR) i A 609

Weighted average number of ordinary F{EsTESREE (FE)

shares for the purpose of diluted BRI EREAR

(loss) earnings per share (in thousands) (T B%) 901,557 819,346

The weighted average number of shares used for the
purpose of calculating the basic (loss) earnings per
share for the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015 has been arrived at after adjusting the effect of
shares repurchased and held by the Company’s Share
Award Scheme.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the
year ended 31 December 2016 does not assume
the conversion of the Company’s outstanding non-
vested shares under Share Award Scheme since their
exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

ARTEH Z20165F K2015512A
STHLEFEESRERX (F5B) BAz
IEFHIRDEE » DEARALQT
R EBTEEERSZERD 2FE
BETESBE -

BZ2016F12A3MBILEESRE
SEET B MR A D AR B R 0 R B
SRl BT ER B IR (MO EER
RRERHITESESHE E£2016F12
A3MALFESREERD -

HHERERERERAT —T— A FR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

16. DIVIDENDS 16. R &

For the year ended
31 December
BE12A31BLEEE
2016 2015
201645 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

Dividends recognised as distributions FRBERAAEDRKZKRE. :
during the year:
2014 Final — HK$5 cents per share 2014FRER 2

ARBTT ARETT

(Note i) — BREEAMN (&) - 32,506
2015 special dividend (Note ii) 2015551 S (M) - 82,573
- 115,079
Notes: Bt
(i)  On 13 May 2015, the Board resolved that the proposed () #2015%58130 ' EE 23k

final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014
was revised to HK$0.05 per ordinary share of the
Company with total dividends of approximately
RMB32,904,000, instead of HK$0.17 per ordinary
share to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 12 June
2015. This proposed resolution was duly passed by
the shareholders of the Company by way of poll at
the annual general meeting of the Company held on
4 June 2015. The Trustee hold the dividends of the
treasury share of approximately RMB398,000.

(i) On 17 December 2015, the Company declared (ii)

the Special Dividend of HK$0.12 per share with
total dividends of approximately HK$100,051,560
(equivalent to approximately RMB82,573,000) to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on
8 January 2016. The special dividend was paid on 8
January 2016.
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1% M R2015F6 8128 25 AR
AREAM R REZRE &
Z2014F1283MB IEFE RS
KEHRSRLEBAKATELIER]
EFBRARQEEREA.05F T
f& B AR # A AR 32,904,000
TCe ZERERBAZREALRQT
RN AR RIE2015F6 40 £
TZBRRBAFRE EUREFR
EXEB - EERFBEETRG

I B # A R#E398,0007T °

M2015F12 /8178 » KRR @B
2016F 1 ASH X RHAEREA
PIRRFIREZMM 2 RESIRE
IR B R0.128 7T B EHE
#49/100,051,56078 7t (MBE R A
AR¥82 573,0007T) ° ;245 HIR%
BER2016%F1 A8HIR °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

16. DIVIDENDS (continued)

(iii) Subsequent to the end of the reporting period of

2015, final dividend of HK$0.119 per share in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2015 was proposed
by the directors and was subjected to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting. As
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 24
May 2016, the Board has resolved that the proposed
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015
be revised to HK$0 cent per ordinary share of the
Company, instead of HK$11.9 cents per ordinary share
of the Company as previously recommended.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
final dividend of HK$0.063 per share in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2016 was proposed
by the directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting.

16. R E (&)

(i) R2015F HEHERE  EFE
=% R % H 220159128318 1t
FE 2 RAKBEFR0.119E T -
HEFRENEERERNS it
Ao BINAR AR BEA20165F5A
26BZ ANEMBEE  EEE@R
SR EE2015F12831H
IFFERBREAZAEZRZE
BADRERI.IOBIETE
BIRARFE RO -

(ivy RBREBERE EEEHRE
HZE2016F12A31TBIEFEZ R
HARS B & M%0.06378 7T @ HEBFK
R EERE RS EHbAE -
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B
i
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

17. 9% - BMERKRE

Medical Motor Office

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Construction

Leasehold

Buildings  improvement equipment vehicles equipment  in progress IEL
BT HEEENR BERE HE WAK EEIR &%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETr AR®BTx AR%Tn ARETn AR%ETn ARETx
COST KA
At 1 January 2015 ®2015%1 810 69,832 40,270 88,091 3,093 11,204 11,015 223,505
Additions HE - 987 19,690 587 3,233 6,560 31,057
Transfer i - 31 1,303 - - (1,334) -
Disposals/write-off EE /s - - (461) - (247) - (708)
At 31 December 2015 1#2015%12A318 69,832 41,288 108,623 3,680 14,190 16,241 253,854
Acquisition of business (Note 34) UWEE%# (MizE34) 90,264 4,420 1,067 1,378 8,230 271 105,630
Additions AE - 290 21,473 617 3,569 16,858 42,807
Transfer B - 18,484 220 - - (18,704) -
Disposals/write-off EE,/ M - - (2,507) (756) (403) - (3,666)
At 31 December 2016 R2016%F128318 160,096 64,482 128,876 4,919 25,586 14,666 398,625
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ Z3f#7E
At 1 January 2015 #2015%181A 39,377 15,650 23,234 1,496 5,456 - 85,213
Charge for the year FEHE 3,756 4,963 12,628 413 2,113 - 23,873
Eliminated on REE/
disposals/write-off el o - - (226) - (229) - (455)
At 31 December 2015 ®2015%128318 43,133 20,613 35,636 1,909 7,340 - 108,631
Charge for the year EERE 4,624 5,398 14,837 487 3,149 - 28,495
Eliminated on REE/
disposals/write-off Gl - - (2,217) (359) (217) - (2,793)
At 31 December 2016 12016127318 47,757 26,011 48,256 2,037 10,272 - 134,333
CARRYING AMOUNT REE
At 31 December 2015 12015127318 26,699 20,675 72,987 1,771 6,850 16,241 145,223
At 31 December 2016 12016128318 112,339 38,471 80,620 2,882 15,314 14,666 264,292

The above items of property, plant and equipment
other than construction in progress are depreciated
over their useful lives, after taking into account the
estimated residual value, on a straight-line basis:

L - BERRBEE (FET
BRI Lt RS RIBREERNE
AOEEHTEAFHRTRITE -

Buildings 20 - 50 years BF 20E505

Leasehold improvement  Over the shorter of the HEEENR REHEGREI0OFEN
lease term and estimated st AR F PR
useful lives up to 10 years EE

Medical equipment 5 - 10 years BEXE 52105

Motor vehicles 5 - 10 years AE 52104

Office equipment 1 - 5years NS ] 1855

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts A20165F12A318 * & H 8 Ff

EREFEFCREAEBENAARY
8,165,0007T (20155 : A B ¥
9,545,0007T) °

230 China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016

of buildings without ownership certificates were
approximately RMB8,165,000 (2015: RMB9,545,000).



18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

The intangible assets of the Group represent operating
rights under IOT agreements and sponsorship rights
and consulting services contracts. Operating rights
under 10T agreements have finite useful lives, and are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the operating
period set out in the IOT agreements which ranged
from 16 to 48 years. Sponsorship rights and consulting
services contracts have indefinite useful lives. Details

of the operating rights and the sponsorship rights and
consulting services contracts are disclosed in Note 7.

18. B EE
AEBMEREERIOTHET 2 6%

ERBREREBRESE - I0TH
BT2REEEEERUFERESR
REGEEIOTHZEBEEZN F16E
LEF 2 REHA NG - HINERE
EREERAEERUFEHAEE - &
ERNERERERRESRFARERN
MZE74 5& ©

Sponsorship

Operating rights and
rights consulting
under 10T services
arrangements  contracts Total
IOTZHET BER
2R  BERREAE =5
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T
COST: B

At 1 January 2015 M2015F1818 408,702 - 408,702
Additions: wNE .

Fair value adjustments (Note i) AREEAZ (M) 61,928 - 61,928
At 31 December 2015 7A2015512831H 470,630 - 470,630
Additions: wNE .

Fair value adjustments (Note i) AREEAZ (M) 18,913 - 18,913

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 34) UGEEFT B A F)

(B&E34) - 1,728,026 1,728,026
At 31 December 2016 7A2016512831H 489,543 1,728,026 2,217,569
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION: Rty .

At 1 January 2015 M2015F1818 48,672 - 48,672

Charged for the year (Note ii) FEBE (MIEE) 17,389 - 17,389
At 31 December 2015 720155128318 66,061 - 66,061
Charged for the year FEEE 19,146 - 19,146
At 31 December 2016 7A2016512831H 85,207 - 85,207
CARRYING AMOUNT BRTEE
At 31 December 2015 720155 12831H 404,569 - 404,569
At 31 December 2016 7A2016512831H 404,336 1,728,026 2,132,362

EHRARBIRERAR —T-AFEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

18. |NTANG|BLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

Since the commitments to provide Repayable
Investment Amounts are part of the respective 10T
arrangements which the Group have been granted
the operating rights of the I0OT Hospitals in return, the
fair value adjustments are accounted for as part of
the 10T operating rights to the extent the additional
investments relate to upgrading the relevant 10T
Hospitals, rather than restoring to a specified
level of serviceability and subject to amortisation
charges (included in cost of sales and services in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income) over the operating period of
the respective 10T arrangements.

Sponsorship rights represent the legal rights
stipulated in the articles of associations of the
Sponsored Hospitals, including: (a) access to
the operation status and financial reports of
the Sponsored Hospitals; and (b) recommending
members to the executive committee which is the
highest authority of the Sponsored Hospitals. The
Sponsored Hospitals are not-for-profit hospitals and
do not have limit on the life of operation period.

The consulting services contracts are entered
between the Group and the Sponsored Hospitals. The
initial term is 20 years and the parties will negotiate
to renew the term every five years and the term of 20
years will recount after every renewal. The consulting
services fees are charged on a yearly basis and
represent certain percentages of the revenue of the
relevant hospitals, provided that the fees will not be
more than the audited net profit (before deduction of
the services fees) of the relevant hospitals. Details of
the contracts are set out in the circular issued by the
Company on 7 October 2016.

18. BEEE »
s

(i)

(i)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

18. |NTANG|BLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

The Group’s management considers there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the
sponsorship rights and consulting services contracts
are expected to generate net cash inflows for the
Group. The useful life of the sponsorship rights and
consulting services contracts is indefinite based
on an analysis of the factors, such as the life of the
sponsorship rights, life of operation of the Sponsored
Hospitals and the ability to renew the consulting
service contracts through the sponsorship rights
to appoint sufficient members to the executive
committee of the Sponsored Hospitals.

The carrying amounts of the sponsorship rights
and consulting services contracts are reviewed to
assess whether their recoverable amounts have
declined below their carrying amounts annually. For
the purpose of impairment testing, the sponsorship
rights and consulting services contracts have been
allocated to the group of cash-generating units
("CGU”) of Ample Mighty and its subsidiaries as
disclosed in Note 21. There is no impairment loss
recognised on the sponsorship rights and consulting
services contracts during the year.

EREREBFEERBRAR —FT—7

8. BILEE &
fi ()

AEEEEER SRR KERM
fREEREHANEEEEFIR
ERAZHBRIYEAGER 2R
fll o ERZRAZSHT (MBRPEF
H - RprBhrEETHRBASR
MERARRERRTEZESRE
FTRKEUNEBEEBREEG RN
RN BERERREARZ
A AR F BRPEEOE ©

NEBE G F TR LR R
BERZEmE  LFEE TR
e EREKERRER®T
B RTETRENR  SRPE
NEBRBE S RED EEEER
EWBARIzR@EXEAM (3R
T E A BAL]) (a0 Bt 721 P 4
B) - FRN - AERBHEENER
FER RIS & RAREEIE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

19. RECEIVABLES FROM IOT HOSPITALS 19. R BIOTEEfR 2 FE W FR 1B

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2016 2015
20164 2015

RMB’000
ARBTT

RMB’000
ARBTT

Receivables from the |OT Hospitals: 2 EH 0TSz 2 B FIE :
At beginning of the year REH]) 116,400 77,830
Payments to 10T Hospitals under RIZEIOTHZE B I0TEEPT

I0T agreements St 2 FIE 13,087 38,072
Repayment from 10T Hospitals KEIOTER ZER (14,808) (9,808)
Interest and investment income FEREBERA 13,163 10,306

At the end of the year RER 127,842 116,400
Less: current portion included in B ETATEARK

prepayments and other HittEWRIE Z

receivables (Note 27) BEAER > (FfFEE27) (14,838) (13,341)
Non-current portion JEENHEAER 113,004 103,059

Pursuant to the 10T agreements and arrangements as
disclosed in Note 7, the Group made the Repayable
Investment Amounts to the IOT Hospitals in return
for the operating rights of the IOT Hospitals over a
tenure ranging from 16 to 48 years. These Repayable
Investment Amounts are interest free and will be
repaid to the Group in equal annual instalments
during the tenure of the I0T arrangements. The
carrying amount of these interest free Repayable
Investment Amounts made by the Group to I0T
Hospitals that will be repaid back to the Group is
recorded as Receivables from I0T Hospitals and was
measured at fair value upon initial recognition and
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method at an average effective
interest rate of approximately 11% per annum over
the tenure of the respective 10T arrangements.

1R 95 MY 5E7F7 3% B 2 10THh & & &
B ARE@IOTER X AEER
B8 UBHIOTER RN F16E
LBFHAZEERE - ZSEAEER
BeHARERATIOTZHHRA
BELEHEIPOAEEEE - ~5H
BIOTER MR N E 2ZER
BABERESHEZIREEARCE
REBIOTERR 2 WA - AL HE
AREZAAEENE  HREAER
MERERN11% 2 FHERFERRR
BEAIOTZL B R A LU E R AN B B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

20. LEASE PREPAYMENTS FOR LAND 20. T #h{f /A EFETK
USE RIGHT

As at 31 December
M12831H
2016 2015
20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT

Cost: BN
At beginning of the year REHA 166,219 166,219
At the end of the year REXR 166,219 166,219
Accumulated amortisation: 25t -
At beginning of the year RED (15,749) (12,374)
Charge for the year FEHE (3,375) (3,375)
At the end of the year RER (19,124) (15,749)
Carrying amount at the end of the year R R Z BREI{E 147,095 150,470
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

20. LEASE PREPAYMENTS FOR LAND
USE RIGHT (continued)

Analyse for reporting purpose as:

STAEN IR E YRR

Current portion included in

0.t EHAEHEHERMNRK
(%)

EREZRANDTUT -

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2016
20165

2015
20154
RMB’000
AREET T

RMB’000
ARBT T

prepayments 2 BNERER
and other receivables (Note 27) (FffsE27) 3,375 3,375
Non-current portion JEENHEAER B 143,720 147,095
147,095 150,470
Notes: B & -
(i) In May 2011, the land use right was contributed by a (i) M201MEFL5H - ZttEAEmE

non-controlling shareholder of Jian Gong Hospital,
Beijing Construction Engineering Group, as a non-
cash capital injection and was amortised over the
remaining lease term of 49.3 years. The amount of
the land use right of RMB170,552,000 is determined
as the appraised value by a Chinese Certified Public
Valuer, Beijing Tengqgi Certified Public Valuators
Co., Ltd Jt m L E E T H MR 2 7A)), located at 81
Zizhuyuan Road, Haidian District, Beijing, PRC, with
the valuation report ‘Uing Teng Ping Bao Zi (REEFT
F) (2010) No. 020"

On 10 March 2014, Jian Gong Hospital, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
Compensation Agreement (the “Agreement”) with
Xicheng District government of Beijing (3t = M 7
¥ B X FY). Pursuant to the Agreement, Jian Gong
Hospital has received compensation from Xicheng
District government for the leasehold land adjacent
to the hospital. The disposal has resulted in a
reduction amounted to RMB4,333,000 in cost of lease
prepayments for land use right.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

21, GOODWILL

RMB’000
AR®T T

21. 8

Cost RS
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary Hu s —EME L RES

(Note 34) (BfaE34) 3,191,110
At 31 December 2016 R20165F12831H 3,191,110
Impairment WA
Impairment loss recognised in this year RERBAVRERE (1,727,499)
At 31 December 2016 720165F12H831H (1,727,499)
Carrying values BREE
At 31 December 2015 #2015 12H831H -
At 31 December 2016 M20165F12831H 1,463,611

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
and the sponsorship rights and consulting services
contracts (Note 18) have been allocated to Ample
Mighty and its subsidiaries, which are identified
to be a group of CGU, the recoverable amount of
which is determined based on fair value less cost of
disposal calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 9-year period. Cash flows
beyond the 9-year period are extrapolated using an
estimated weighted average growth rate of 2.89%. The
cash flows are discounted using a post-tax discount
rate of 10.16%. The discount rate reflects specific
risks relating to the business.

During the year, the Group recognised an impairment
loss of RMB1,727,499,000 in relation to the goodwill
arising on Acquisition which mainly arose from the
difference between the share price of HKD12.34 per
share on the Acquisition Date and the issue price of
HKD8.04 per share stated in the sale and purchase
agreement dated 30 August 2016 as announced by
the Company on the same date, on the 462,913,516
consideration shares.

BTETRENR B8 2iER
BEEREERE (M:E18) #HoBRERE
HREKMBAR - BERENBATR
BREARSEASEN  HOWEs
BLERAABEREERAFTE r‘-’*‘
ZE ° EEE n‘l' Tﬂtﬁﬁ}ﬁfuwgfi\h\u
EEREETIFEHAMEZMKER 3%

HAEo iﬁtﬂgiﬁﬁziﬁéu.éﬁﬁém
fa*mmgwﬁ%zz BONHEE
£RE 0. 16%2*&1&?)?:.%&753_1?
g - ZIERNMEEZEREH
ZASERBS ©

FR - ARERKBSEEENERZ
ﬁE:@;ﬁREEﬂEAEﬁM 727,499,000
 HEFEERKERHRESRK
12M%xﬁ$@1mﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
A2016F8H30H M ES H:EIME
#9462,913,516 RN ER 0 2 B 1TE
FR8.04BIT ZE%E -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

22.INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

22. A —

BEE QR 2B

As at 31 December

M12831H
2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ARET T
Cost of investment in an associate BE-—RBBE QAT ZHA 141,985 141,985
Share of post-acquisition (loss) profit FE/AGUREER (EE) RS
net of dividends received BRI 2 (1,196) 1,008
Gain on deemed disposal of RALHE—H ypsﬂaﬂﬂl%‘ﬁ
an associate 5,163 5,163
Exchange adjustment BE R AR 17,386 6,839
163,338 154,995
Fair value of the listed investment IHREZAREE 134,320 149,850
Details of the Group’s associate at the end of the RBERRAEKERE QAR ZFHEH
reporting period are as follow: T

Principal Proportion of
Country of place of ownership interest
Name of entity incorporation business held by the Group
AEEfR
£y £ AMEVER  TEERRE  FARERCHLA
2016 2015
2016F  2015%F
UMP Healthcare Holdings Cayman Islands Hong Kong 15% 15%
Limited (“UMP Healthcare
Holdings”)
(REREEERLT FeHE £ 15% 15%
(BeRBEE))

AREFHRRRLA

2016
20165

Proportion of
voting rights held by

the Group Principal activity

FTEER
2015
20155

15% 15% Provide healthcare
solutions and service
15% 15% REUBEERAZRRHE

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

22.INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

On 13 July 2015, Pinyu entered into an agreement
with True Point Holdings Limited (the “True Point”)
to acquire shares representing 20% of the then total
issued shares of UMP Healthcare Holdings for a total
consideration of HK$180,000,000. The consideration
for the share purchase was determined based on
arm’s length negotiations with regard to the UMP
Healthcare Holdings’s financial conditions and results
of operations.

On 27 November 2015, UMP Healthcare Holdings
completed its global offering and was listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange by issuing
184,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each. After
completion the global offering, the equity interest in
UMP Healthcare Holdings of Pinyu decreased to 15%.

The Directors consider the Group has been able to
participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of UMP Healthcare Holdings through the
Group’s voting power and a board representative
nominated by the Group.

The financial year end date for UMP Healthcare
Holdings is 30 June. For the purpose of applying
the equity method of accounting, the Group used
the interim financial statements of UMP Healthcare
Holdings for the six months ended 31 December 2016.

Summarised financial information of
an associate

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s associate is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts
shown in the associate’s financial statements
prepared in accordance with IFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

22. 7 —

EHMEAR2ER
(&)

72015 7H13H > PinyuETrue
Point Holdings Limited ([True
Pointl) R &% » WIBH S B E
BERE2EHCBITRG 220% @ BK
1€ 73180,000,000/8 7T ° WIE R 2
RENDSEHEBEREB ZHHEMRR
REEXE\ERNTIHEET ©

20156118278 B & B #%
EEEXERBE BBET
184,000,0008% & f20.0018 T 2 &
BRARERXFEMR LT - REIRBE
TRRE > PinyuREE BB EB 2K
RERBE15% o

EFZRNFEE-EARLEBERE

Ithﬁuﬁﬁﬁlk%Z =5

$éﬁ§/AWA%ﬁEIZ%ﬁ&
/R%

BEBKEBECUBFEEFLEHAG
A30H - AFERARREAR &K
ERABSEXEBREE20165F12
B31H1EAEA 2 P HIB Rk ©

FENTMBENEER

REBBE QAR EERBESHD
WMT o LT MEERBEEREBERR
B 75 3 15 22 Rl 4 2R 2 B 0 B B A 3R
ey p A -

MR PR

BENARZERS

3PN
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

22.INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 22. A — BB & AR 2 H
(#&)
Summarised financial information of BE N BRERRE (&
an associate (continued)
UMP Healthcare Holdings HeBKERE

As at 31 December

M12831H
2016 2015
20164 20155
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Current assets RBEE 241,300 381,046
Non-current assets ERBEE 203,694 55,847
Current liabilities REEE (88,892) (90,100)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (1,720) (1,687)

Period from
16 July 2015
For the year (date of
ended acquisition) to
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
201557816 H
B ZE2016%F (Wi B ER)
12H31H Z£2015%F
HFE 128318 8/
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Revenue &= 418,857 176,598
Profit for the year/period FE HERE 1,519 6,649
Other comprehensive income FE PHHEM4EZE
(expense) for the year/period WA (BER) 20,728 (281)
Profit and total comprehensive FEHEABR
income for the year/period ZHWALLE 22,247 6,368
Dividends received from the FEHEEREE QT
associate during the year/period ZRE 1,963 -

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

2. A—BHBHELNTZ2ER

(#&)

Summarised financial information of N BERRE @)
an associate (continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest
in UMP Healthcare Holdings recognised in the

HB B ERBERERS M BRE
hRRZEABBEEERS ZREE
HERWT :

consolidated financial statements:

As at 31 December
M12831H

2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Net assets of UMP Healthcare BeBREE2EERE

Holdings 354,382 345,106
Proportion of the Group’s ownership ZEBREESEXER 2

interest in UMP Healthcare FrE RERE 2= L Al

Holdings 15% 15%

53,157 51,766

Goodwill Gk 94,232 88,258
Effect of fair value adjustments WEBEHNAAEERRNTE

at acquisition 16,910 16,297
Unrecognised share of other RER D HE2EBAN

changes in equity outside of Hin s 2 B 750

comprehensive income (961) (1,326)
Carrying amount of the Group’s rEERBEBEEERER

interest in UMP Healthcare ZEREE

Holdings 163,338 154,995

ZHEEBEZERAERA AT ZZ—NFIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

23.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/ 23.R—RBE&a& aziEsm
LOAN TO A JOINT VENTURE m—EagARER
Details of the Group’s investments in joint ventures/ AEEBRER-—BEELT B —
loan to a joint venture are as follows: BEELNTERZHBUOT ¢

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2016 2015
20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT

Cost of investment in joint ventures R&E—EA & QAT ZHA 532,199 -
Loan to a joint venture B—EEEARREER - 9,250
Share of post-acquisition loss and FE{NEBEEER

other comprehensive expense Hitb 2 EX (18,144) (2,889)
Exchange adjustment ERAE (407) -

513,648 6,361

Details of each of the Group’s joint ventures at the HRBEHARAEFR AL QA ZE
end of the reporting period are as follow: wmT

Proportion of
Country of Principal ownership Proportion of
incorporation/ place of interest held voting rights held
Name of entity registration business by the Group by the Group Principal activity

EmAL/ AEEfE REBfE

BEE BRfEER  ITEENE  FERERZLA vEL P4l TEEK
2016 2015 2016 2015
2016%  2015%  2016F 20158

UMP Beijing Healthcare (Beijing)  BVI Hong Kong and 50% 50% 50% 50% Provide healthcare
Group Limited (“UMP Beijing”) Mainland solutions and service
(Note ) China

BEBH (13 REARAR ABEREE  BERTERL 50% 50% 50% 50% fRAEE
(A% (7)) (M) ESES I

CR Wugang Wuhan, PRC Wuhan, PRC 51% N/A 51% N/A Hospital consulting

service

EHRHE HEIEE HERE 51%  THEA 51%  TER BRBARE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12331 HILFE

23.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/
LOAN TO A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

Pursuant to the joint venture shareholders’ agreement
(the UV Shareholders Agreement”) on 16 July 2015,
UMP Beijing issued 1,000 number of shares to Pinyu
and UMP Healthcare China Limited (the “UMP China”)
at nominal value of USD0.01 each. Upon completion
of the issuance of shares, Pinyu held its 50%
ownership interest in UMP Beijing. According to the JV
Shareholders’ Agreement, UMP Beijing’s total capital
commitment is RMB100 million, with Pinyu and UMP
China contributing RMB50 million each, in the form
of interest-free shareholders loan. In addition, each
of Pinyu and UMP China has the right to appoint up to
three directors to the board of UMP Beijing.

On 14 October 2015, Pinyu injected RMB9,250,000
into UMP Beijing as the first instalment of the
shareholders loan.

On 29 February and 31 May 2016, Pinyu injected
RMB5,000,000 and RMB10,000,000 respectively
into UMP Beijing as the second instalment of the
shareholders loan.

On 30 August 2016, UMP Beijing issued 9,002 number
of shares to Pinyu and UMP China at nominal value of
USDO0.01 each to capitalise the loans.

Through the acquisition of Ample Mighty and its
subsidiaries as disclosed in Note 34, the Group
obtained the interest in a joint venture, China
Resources Wugang (Hubei) Hospital Co., Ltd (“CR
Wugang”, “Z R (L) B ERAR QA

3. R—ESEQR 2@
m—EEaERARER @)
GEE

EREREBFEERBRAR —F

R & )5/\2015$7H16EI EIRVAN:Y)
eEREIRRERHBE(TEERR
W&l “(:.\E"%ﬂ‘k(:lt,?\) ]
Pinyu& UMP Healthcare China
Limited ([Bt& BB E]) #&17
1,0000% & IR E {B0.013& 7T 2 IR
7 o RITKRMDEFHITE - Pinyuss
B e B (At =) M50%F B
R BEBESEREHE - B
B (bR) MEEXREERA
E%moa&%% Pinyu X Bt & &
BREDRARERRER 2
AHEARKS0BE T LI
PinyukBteBRETERSEBEE
FTHBBR=2EEEHEE8% (At
R)WEEE -

72015108148 * PinyulRlB&
B (Jbm) JF & ARK9,250,000
T ERBEHRERER

72016524298 &5A31H * Pinyu
SAlABEERUER) EE
A R #5,000,000 & A B #

10,000,0007T * fEAF —HIR =R
4&;7\ o
MR2016F8A30H @ BtA B (4t

) MIPinyu & B & B 7% R B 8¢ 17
9,002/% & X E 1E0.013E T 2 I%
m ABERNMEEBER -

AL LT E S AN
BHERENBAR  AEEES
REBRE CHiL) BREEER
AR ([FEBRE]) —HEEQR
R o

=
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

23.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/
LOAN TO A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(continued)

CR Wugang, which is the sponsor of China Resources
Wuhan Iron and Steel Hospital Group ("Wugang
Hospital Group”, “Z B BT & "), was established
by CR Hospital Investment and Wuhan Iron and Steel
(Group) Corporation (“Wugang Group’, “& /% i ) (% [F)
~a]") on 19 February 2013.

Although the Group holds 51% of the equity interest
of CR Wugang and has the power to appoint three out
of five directors of CR Wugang under the Articles of
Association, decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent. As such the Group does
not have right to direct the relevant activities of CR
Wugang and accounted for interest in CR Wugang as
a joint venture.

Summarised financial information of
joint ventures

Summarised financial information in respect of
the Group’s joint ventures is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs.

A

SENAYBERRE

=AM (AERRNERER
([RIMEEPTEE]) MEMA) B
EHEREEREZENE (£8)
~a (TR#E®E]) R2013F2A4
19H &L °

BEASEEAFEHRML%K
# TARRBASERZMANE
FTEFRMAREEPHN =2 "
BERBEBEEBNARRDES T —
HRE - Bt AEEEEES
EBRMAARES RSN ER
Bz s AR E R RIARK

REBEERA UM BERBHESRS
T o LT MBERRREREER
MBRELNRRENSE R AYHER
RFTRZEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

23.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/ 23.R4
LOAN TO A JOINT VENTURE (continued) @ — &
Summarised financial information of =
joint ventures (continued)

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity BENTRZEREMBREPER
method in these consolidated financial statements. REREANR
(i) UMP Beijing (i) Ba8% (dbx)

As at 31 December
M12831H
2016 2015
20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT

Current assets REBEE 36,004 20,611
Non-current assets ERBEE 21,598 148
Current liabilities REEE (42,099) (26,537)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (529) -
The above amounts of assets and liabilities e EEENTE
include the following: g :

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2016 2015
2016%F 201545

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T

Cash and cash equivalents ReERRELEEY 33,943 11,750

Current financial liabilities NS mas
(excluding trade and (TEEENE S FE
other payables and provisions) K H{th FE{+ 78 A K B48) (37,734) (26,518)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

23.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/ 23.A—R&& R RlziEzn
LOAN TO A JOINT VENTURE (continued) m—REEEATER &
Summarised financial information of EENTAVKERRBE @)
joint ventures (continued)
(i) UMP Beijing (continued) (i) Ba28% (dtR) @)

Period from
16 July 2015
(date of
For the year establishment)
ended to
31 December 31 December
2016 2015

2015%7H16R
BZE201645F (R BE)
12H831H Z£20155F
IEFE 12831 BHIRA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARMT T

Revenue Uk &% 4,706 -

Loss for the year/period FE HEEE (27,094) (5,618)

Other comprehensive expense FE HEHM
for the year/period 2HEAX (655) (160)

Loss and total comprehensive FEHEBER
expense for the year/period ZHEBXEE (27,749) (5,778)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

23.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/
LOAN TO A JOINT VENTURE (continued)
Summarised financial information of
joint ventures (continued)
(i) UMP Beijing (continued)

The above loss for the year/period includes the

. R—BEENE 2
B—EEEARER )
BELRIMBERRE 8

(i) Bta28% (dtR) @
L EE HESEEENLT

following: IHE :
Period from
16 July 2015
(date of
For the year establishment)
ended to
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
20157816 H
(RAZ B Ef)
HZ2016F Z2015%
12A31BLLFE 12A31BHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Depreciation and amortization 78 & #8H 2,368 4
Interest income F 2 WA 65 3

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest
in UMP Beijing recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:

LB BENRBRRERSUE
BERPHEANBSER (LX)
R 2 IREEHRAOT ¢

As at 31 December
M12831H

2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Net assets of UMP Beijing MeB® (tx) EEFE 14,974 (5,778)
Proportion of the Group’s REFBDNESE
ownership interest in UMP Beijing (dbt%) ZFrEfEz Ll 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group’s rEBEHSER (LX)
interest in UMP Beijing/Share of HEHEZEZMNIRESEE
post-acquisition loss of UMP DI EER (bR)
Beijing ik BB 12 5 18 7,487 (2,889)
EHERBEZERBR AR —ZT—NFEW
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

23.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/ 23.A—R&e¥ mziExn~
LOAN TO A JOINT VENTURE (continued) [ — e

Summarised financial information of EENRIMBERRE ()
joint ventures (continued)
(i) CR Wugang (ii) MR

As at 31
December 2016

20165128318

RMB’000
AR¥T T
Current assets REBEE 512,138
Non-current assets FEREEE 11,543
Current liabilities REEE (136,660)
The above amounts of assets and riEEHEESHEE
liabilities include the following: LUTIER
Cash and cash equivalents RERREZEY 9,243
Current financial liabilities s mes
(excluding trade and other payables (TBEENFEZRER
and provisions) HAih e FE L R B E) (132,664)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

23.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/ 23.A—RE&#®
LOAN TO A JOINT VENTURE (continued) m—EEEATER &
Summarised financial information of =
joint ventures (continued)
(ii) CR Wugang (continued) (i) = HERH (@

Period from
31 October
2016 (date of
acquisition)

to 31 December
2016
2016%10H31H
(Wi B ER)
201645
12H31HHIE
RMB’000
ARBTT

Revenue W= -

Loss for the period HAE &1 (3,505)

Other comprehensive expense for the period HiFHt 2 EH X -

Loss and total comprehensive expense HEBER

for the period ZHAXERE (3,505)
The above loss for the period includes L EEEEEEUTIER ¢

the following:
Depreciation and amortization EREE 138
Interest income FEWA 7

EHRARBIRERAR —T-AFEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

23.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/ 23.14
LOAN TO A JOINT VENTURE (continued) [
Summarised financial information of =
joint ventures (continued)

(ii) CR Wugang (continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest
in CR Wugang recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:

(i) FE=EEH (&)
LB E R BRI RS B
HEPEINEBRMES B
HEHENT

As at 31
December 2016

R20165%12831H

RMB’000
ARET T
Net assets of CR Wugang ZHRMEEFE 387,021
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEESEREBRE 2
interest in CR Wugang BBl 51%
197,381
Effect of fair value adjustment at acquisition WEEBHIBAABERARZHE 308,780
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEEEEFREATER
interest in CR Wugang ZERNERE SR 506,161
24. DEFERRED TAXATION 24 EFERIIE

The movement of the Group’s deferred tax assets
during the year is as follows:

FRAKEELEREE 2ZBNT :

Accrued expenses

FEETRAX
RMB’000
ARET T
At 1 January 2015 7201551810 1,346
Charge to profit or loss B8z MBR (1,046)
At 31 December 2015 M2015% 12831 300
Charge to profit or loss BESR (300)

At 31 December 2016

M20165F12831H -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12331 HILFE

24.DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 24 RERIE (5)
The movement of the Group’s deferred tax liability FRAREBELEHEE2SBHNT
during the year is as follows:

Fair value
adjustment on
acquisition of

business
PMUEB XA
ZAREBERAE
RMB’000
ARBETT
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 34) WESHIE AR (FiaE34) (319,089)
Credit to profit or loss FFABR 209
At 31 December 2016 R20165F12831H (318,880)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in BT EBRIEEREE

respect of the following items:

For the year ended
31 December
BIL12A31HLEFE
2016 2015
20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T

Tax losses BiEEE 145,742 -
Tax losses above were from PRC subsidiaries of Ample FRBEBEEIIREEWRBRMEBEN
Mighty, which are acquired in the Acquisition. No EiEREME AT o HRTEETERIE
deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to B8 B B B B AR R AR R A K]
those tax losses due to the unpredictability of future ""’.':Hﬁjiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%lﬁﬂ%?&iﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁ%ﬁ
profit streams of the relevant PRC subsidiaries and A BMARZEHBEREIIE

it is not probable that taxable profit will be available RIEEE -

against which the tax losses can be utilized.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

24.DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 24 EFEBIE ()

252

The tax losses will be expired as follow:

BBBEGRMT I HER

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2016 2015

20165 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARBT T
2017 20174 1,149 -
2018 20184 15,592 -
2019 20194 51,406 -
2020 20204 65,232 -
2021 20214 12,363 -
145,742 -

Under the PRC EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profit of the
PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB892,236,000 as
at 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB648,952,000) as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

RIEFBEEERESHE  RENEL
T H2008%1 818 #E 5 A BREL RS
BRI EWBHTERE - ARAE
EaE ST TR =R E R B
FHFERE AT A RARREE -
HID SR A AR S B S 3R 3R A B P B BT B
A ER20165F12H831H MW ESTFIE
A R #892,236,0005T (20154 : A
K #648,952,0007T) FiE4E 2 E B
ERTHRELERIRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

25.INVENTORIES 25.78

As at 31 December
M12831H
2016 2015
20164 20155

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT

Pharmaceuticals A 34,369 32,962
Medical devices and medical B R B A

consumables 15,872 9,360

50,241 42,322
26. TRADE RECEIVABLES 26. B E 5 7R

The Group allows a credit period of approximately 60 AEBEHRTTIEHRNEEHNOT :
days for the general healthcare service to the patients WAESHREBERKEABARER
which is due from medical insurance programs, 60 KeoX (HEERMITEXN) ; @
days to 120 days for the sales of pharmaceutical, IOTERHENER - BEB[MKRE
medical devices and medical consumables to the 10T BEREMAMAEZEZER60XRE120K ;
Hospital, and 90 days to 180 days for the hospital mI0OTE Br iR At Y B8 P B 32 AR 7% 2 )
management services to the 10T Hospitals and ERBEREHNERREAMARE
consulting services to the Sponsored Hospitals after FI0OKRE180K - TXHIIREEH
issuing the invoice. The following is an aged analysis HAFT 23RV B E 5 FORRER DT ©
of trade receivables presented based on the invoice
date.
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables TXEARREER BHR25IE
presented based on the revenue recognition date: WE ZFRIBRER DT

As at 31 December
M12831H
2016 2015
20164 2015%

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT

0 to 60 days 0Z60% 202,467 118,555
61 to 180 days 612 180K 15,461 6,396
>180 days 180K LAk 37,996 12,669

255,924 137,620
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts
(see below for aged analysis) which are past due at
the end of the reporting period for which the Group
has not recognised an allowance for doubtful debts
because there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the amounts are still considered
recoverable.

Ageing of trade receivables that are past due but not
impaired

26. EWE ZRIE @)
EXFREENERE S RERERE
S HRT RIS (BREER DT
ESETY) HAEEESLEN
BEAS(  BABSRENERAET
UGBl - A £ 3 SR SR BR A o

EEREARBEZ ERE S 7'

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥ET T
Overdue by: BHRE
91 to 180 days 912180k 37,996 12,669
Total s 37,996 12,669

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables,
the Group considers any change in the credit quality
of the trade receivables from the date that credit
were initially granted up to the end of each reporting
period. The Group’s exposure to the concentration of
credit risk is disclosed in Note 42.

REERKEZ KA ZTRETRE
B AREEZRAASRHEEEZ
REEERREPREBREZTEZE
EEENEMEE - AREHERNE
EEPEBNHEEL2IKE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

272 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 27 FAFNFERKHMEKRIIE

RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December
M12B31H
2016 2015
2016%F 201545

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T

R EI0TE R < BRI

Current portion of receivables

from 10T Hospitals BNHAER o 14,838 13,341
Prepaid value-added tax AT ER 13,171 11,231
Prepayment to suppliers R A FEA R 1,519 5,077

LU 7Rz TR R

Prepayment of share-based

payment (Note) (FEE) 1,279 3,628
Current portion of lease T RS TR RN

prepayment for land use right BEAER 3,375 3,375
Prepaid rental FENEE - 953
Fee income receivables FE Wit B W A 3,459 2,316
Prepaid maintenance expense FANHEERX 1,847 619
Public housing maintenance fund 2AHER#BES 1,110 1,106
Others Hit 2,935 1,241

43,533 42,887

FYRE + DARR I 3Rz TR SR8 2R R A 1
REHABMZ AR BEBLESR

Note: The prepayment of share-based payment represents
the excess of the fair value of the Award Shares

at the grant date over the grant price paid (the
“Excess”) by the Selected Participants (defined in
Note 33). The relevant employees bear the risks
and rewards of the shares upon acceptance of
the grant and payment of the grant price, and are
obliged to refund the Excess in cash to the Company
if the relevant employees terminate the services
before the end of the vesting period. This amount is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the periods
in which services are expected to be rendered by the
relevant employees. An amount of RMB2,349,000
was recognised as expense during the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: RMB2,009,000).

EPERBRERARAT —F—7

28E (F&RME33) B %
HERzZEZB (TE£58]) - HE#E
EEREMBR DL TR EER
FE AR (D BB RIERR B3R - M
WA EE NS B R ABk
B BIZAEMRESMAARREE
%o e RRAESENABERE
BEMREREHHREREE -
#H 220169128318 Ik F &

RHEBERAARE?2349,000
70 (20154 + A R #2,009,000
JL) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

28. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

28. EHAR &

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2016 2015
20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT

Mutual funds (Note i) HEES (KEE) - 45,000
Financial products (Note ii) TRiEm (MEEii) 66,400 29,990
66,400 74,990
Notes: B &
() The mutual funds were operated by financial () & CHERMBEEBIEREE
institutions as an investment portfolio of identified T B EIEE’J&é{iﬂ EIE o a?ﬁ
financial instruments. The mutual funds were non- REEAFRNFHRTE

principal protected with variable returns, which have
been classified as financial assets at FVTPL, and can
be redeemed by the Group any time at its discretion.
The fair values of the mutual funds were determined
based on the executable redemption prices provided
by the issuing financial institutions.

(i) The financial products were operated by banks, with
expected annual return ranging from 3% to 4% per
annum which have been designated at FVTPL. The
maturity of the financial products as at 31 December
2016 is in March 2017.

There were no significant changes in the counterparties’
credit risk and therefore there were no significant gains
or losses attributed to changes in credit risk for these
financial assets at FVTPL during both years.

DEAFVIPLA S REE Tﬁim
EEEHEPNEEDLD EXREe2 2
DA BEREEITSBMEENR
AT ITERERET

(i) ZeMERBRITEE  BHF
W RN FI3%EL% - IBE B
FVTPL » R2016%F12A318 & &t
Em201743 A 55 -

AEFHEERRTESAEL &
E’\\ﬁlﬁﬂiEWﬁIEm%%F\/TPLﬁE
BEZEERRESMEE 2ERK
MBI -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

29, CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT AND CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

29.%%7&%&@%%&%%%@

As at 31 December
M12831H
2016 2015
2016%F 201545

RMB’000
ARBT T

RMB’000
ARBT T

Bank balance and cash RITERRRS
(classified as cash and cash (PEABRER
equivalents) BEZEY) 1,069,468 821,864
Certificate of deposit TR 52,806 116,684
1,122,274 938,548

Cash and cash equivalents and

As at 31 December
M12831H
2016 2015
2016%F 201545

RMB’000
ARETT

RMB’000
ARBT T

BEekRESEMHEEFRE

certificate of deposit LUTHEHE -
denominated in:
- RMB - AR 1,081,180 847,643
- UsD -Ex 33,461 3,396
- HKD — BT 7,633 87,509
1,122,274 938,548

Bank balances carried interest at market rates which
range from 0.01% to 1.30% per annum over both years.
As at the 31 December 2016, the certificate of deposit
of RMB52,806,000 (2015: RMB116,684,000) carried
interest rate at 7.8% (2015: from 3.55% to 4.9%) per
annum, which will mature on 30 March 2017.

MEFENRITERENTEF
0.01%ZE1.30%M ™ & R X5 B °
M2016F12A831H A AR ¥
52,806,0007T (20155 : A K #
116,684,0007t) FRREMNEF XA
7.8% (20155 : 3.55%%4.9%) & #%
201793 H30H FHY o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

30. TRADE PAYABLES 30.

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are
normally granted on a credit term of 0 to 90 days. An
aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables, as at
the end of the year, based on the date of delivering of
goods, is as follows:

FE1S B 5 FRIE
EBNESZHERE » —RIZ0EIOX
MEEBRRE - RER » REBEEN
B RNERRE APELNERE DT
mT

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2016 2015
20165 201545

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT ARBET T

Within 60 days 60X A 201,380 189,768
61-180 days B61Z£180K 39,447 18,221
>180 days 180K L £ 1,930 1,554

242,757 209,543
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

31. OTHER PAYABLES

3. HENRIE

As at 31 December

M12831H
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Staff cost payables BB IR 43,607 23,152
Other PRC tax payable FEHEMEAS S 15,576 13,769
Deposits from suppliers HEBRES 13,112 11,860
Deposits from patients mARES 5,093 4,135
Retirement benefit obligations BIRENERE
(Note 32.2) (M#7£32.2) 2,446 1,706
Payable for purchase of property, HBEBEY¥% - MERRKEZ
plant and equipment EfRIE 953 597
Unpaid expense in relation to HEHBEARSHEN
major transactions RAMIBEEZ 17,635 -
Unpaid expense in relation to BB REEEN
professional services ESALE 8,593 1,200
Others Hith 13,640 3,148
120,655 59,567

EPERBRERARAT —F—7
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

32.RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
321Defined contribution plans

The PRC employees of the Group are members

of a state-managed retirement benefit plan

operated by the government of the PRC. The

PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required

to contribute a specified percentage of payroll

costs to the retirement benefit plan to fund the

employee benefits. The only obligation of the

Group with respect to the retirement benefit

plan is to make the specified contributions. The

retirement benefit cost charged to profit or loss

for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounts to
RMB13,363,000 (2015: RMB11,103,000).

32.2 Defined benefit plans

Total estimated benefit

32.RRKEFEE
IR EMKETE

AEBEBFEHEENAHPEK
RNEENEREEEMNREFR
ERE - ADTHEME QT
BREETIERATNIEEBT DL
EERRE AT B - X E
EEA - AEEEAERBRKEAE
EEENE -—STABMIEEN
o BE20165F12H318 1k
FE > BEZXRINKRIVEKRE
A B A K #13,363,0007T
(20155 : A R %11,103,000
JT) °

22 REBNETE

As at 31 December
M12HA31H
2016
20164

2015
20155
RMB’000
ARBT T

RMB’000
ARBT T

T RKA B RBRAREE

payable to retired staffs 22,024 4,630
Less: Amounts due within W AT AEMESRUEN
12 months included in 1218 B R B HAFR I8

other payable (Note 31) (MFEE31) (2,446) (1,706)

Amounts due after 12 months 1218 B & 2 B 7R 18 19,578 2,924

Pursuant to the agreement with Beijing
Construction Engineering Group upon the reform
of Jian Gong Hospital in 2003, the Group operated
a defined benefit plan for 35 retirees. Under the
plan, the retirees are entitled to a certain medical
insurance and funeral compensation until death.

The plan exposes the Group to longevity risk. The
present value of the defined benefit plan liability
is calculated by reference to the best estimate of
the mortality of plan participants. An increase in
the life expectancy of the plan participants will
increase the plan’s liability.

BREEILRETIEFBITING
FEOMR003FR=ZERRE
B REBABZEKRAEE
fE—TBRERAGTE - RIBZET
2 RRKAEBEREZFHA
SEETEERBREERHE -

ZaTEEARER R RSAR
RERBAFHEENREDSZ
HIESHEER TR 2 HEME
FHE o FHEIZEEFEHEGML
REEMZTEZRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

32.RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 32.ER{KEHREE &)

(continued)

32.2 Defined benefit plans (continued) N2LRE/AETE (8
The principal assumption used for the purposes HEREANEERSNOT :

of valuation was as follows:

As at 31 December
M12831H
2016 2015
2016%F 201545

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T

Discount rate BLIR & 3.00% 3.85%
Expected rate of the average per FEHIAH A X BN R E
capital disposable income

growth 10.00% 4.50%
Average longevity at retirement EAERERABNESSESD

age for current pensioners 92 89
Movement in the present value of the defined RMEFE  RERFAEZR
benefit obligation during the both years were as EREMT :
follows:

For the year ended

31 December
HZ12A31HILEFE
2016 2015

20164 20155

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT  ARETT

At beginning of the year REH 4,630 5,849
Benefit paid 2 EF (2,938) (1,219)
Remeasurement on the net

defined benefit liability AERMNEABEFERFTE 20,332 -
At the end of the year RER 22,024 4,630
The remeasurement of the net defined benefit HAERMNEEFE B BA
liability, which is mainly actuarial losses arising OFET R ERER - BB R RER
from changes in demographic assumptions, BELBMERNEREEE
financial assumptions and experiences B) WBREDMAZEMLEE
adjustments, is included in other comprehensive WA ZH
income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

32.RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 32 EKEBFRZE @)

(continued)

32.2 Defined benefit plans (continued) N2RERAETE (90

Significant assumptions for the determination of
the defined benefit obligation are discount rate,
expected average per capital disposable income
and mortality. The sensitivity analyses below have
been determined based on reasonably possible
changes of the respective assumptions occurring
at the end of each reporting period, while holding
all other assumptions constant.

If the discount rate is higher (lower) by 1%,
the defined benefit obligation would decrease
(increase) by RMB1,188,000 (RMB1,309,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMB304,000 (RMB324,000)).

If the expected average per capital disposable
income growth increase (decrease) by 1%,
the defined benefit obligation would increase
(decrease) by RMB764,000 (RMB1,334,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB314,000
(RMB300,000)).

If the average longevity at retirement age for
current pensioners increases (decreases) by one
year for retirees, the defined benefit obligation
would increase (decrease) by RMB1,981,000
(RMB1,825,000) for the years ended 31 December
2016 (2015: RMB659,000 (RMB1,336,000)).

The sensitivity analysis presented above may
not be representative of the actual change in the
defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of
one another as some of the assumptions may be
correlated.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group expected
to make payment of RMB2,446,000 under the
defined benefit plan in the next twelve months
from the end of each reporting period (2015:
RMB1,706,000).

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016

ARBEERERNEENERR
RBI|R - FH AT A ZEW
ARETR - THHREDTE
REBBRNEREHREEN
REWEZE (MABEHEMBRE
RIFTE) BE -

fd BE 3R B H (BR) 1% B E
2016F12A31MHB L FE MW R
ERMNEESZEERS (3 0)
A K %1,188,000t (A R ¥
1,309,00070) (20155 : A E
#£304,0007T (A R #324,000
JT)) °

i FEHA A $9 A R B W A 38 R 38
GRl) 1% » # £20165F 12831
HIEFENRERFAEKHE
FE$Z i O ) A R #764,000
7T (A E #1,334,0007T) (2015
F: ARM314,000T (AR
300,0007T)) °

WMEREARKAEBNFEHEGE
R (#E) —F # ZE2016F
NANBLEFENERERA
ARGHEEZN ORd) AR
1,981,0007t (A K #1,825,000
7t) (2015% : AK#¥659,0007T
(AER%1,336,000)) °

L X 25 BURE B R R BR

RERANEENERS(L  BA
5 B TR ILARRE - IR
RAAEE L BB L o

A20165F128318 » ZXEBE R
BARAERAEBEZREHARE
SHEVRZR+ Z @ B A ERAS A A
R #2,446,0007C (20155 : A
EE#51,706,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

33.5HARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS

Share award scheme

On 7 July 2014, the Company adopted a share award
scheme (the “Scheme”) as a means to recognise the
contribution of and provide incentives for the key
management personnel including directors, senior
management, employed experts and core employees
of the Group (the “Selected Participants”). The
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on the adoption date. The
shares to be awarded under the Scheme will be
acquired by the Company through the trustee from
the open market out of cash contributed by the Group
(the “Award Shares”) and be held in trustee for the
Selected Participants until such shares are vested in
accordance with the provisions of the Scheme.

From September to December in 2014, the Company
paid an amount of HK$221,856,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB175,684,000) to repurchase the
Company’s existing shares of 16,044,500 from the
market pursuant to the Scheme. As at 31 December
2014, all the shares were held by the trustee and the
potential participants have not yet been selected by
the Board.

In January 2015, 2,144,000 existing shares of the
Company was repurchased from the market at a
total consideration of HK$30,218,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB23,892,000).

BURB AR ZKRS

i 17 2R Bhst 2

FR2014F7878 » KRB —18
BT & ([ZET8))  fEAR
EAEETEEEAS (BFEES
SREEE - SERERRZMER)
((EEZSHE) MEEMRAKSE
REZBNAR - ZFTESEBERMA
HEBI0FABMRER - RIBZE
BRENROEERATKLHEZTEA
MAEBHANBESHREARHIEE
A(TRBRYD)) THETALE
EZHEERE  BEEEBERGOBRIEZ
FEIZRERBAL -

H2014F98 £128 > A2 al X A
221,856,000 T (HERHV AR
175,684,0007t) RIBEZTEI T H
F B8 [E16,044,500l R A A R BB R
o BLE2014F128318 ° FiER
PIHIEABTEMESS HAREME
BESHE -

201518 - AARKETHIE LBRE
2,144,000 A A HER D AR
430,218,000 T (HERHIAR
#£23,892,0007T) °

)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

33.S HARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Share award scheme (continued)
On 25 May 2015, the Board granted an aggregate of
8,690,200 Award Shares to 63 Selected Participants
who are managerial personnel under the Scheme,
of which (i) 440,000 Award Shares were granted to
4 directors without initial grant price; (ii) 4,639,200
Award Shares were granted to 59 Selected
Participants, who are the senior management,
employed experts and core employees of the Group
without initial grant price; and (iii) 3,611,000 Award
Shares were granted to 44 Selected Participants (all
of whom overlap with those Selected Participants
mentioned in (ii)) with the initial grant price of
HK$12.68 per share. The vesting dates of these Award
Shares are as follows:

1,320,200 Award Shares 13 May 2016
7,370,000 Award Shares 1/3 on 13 May 2016
1/3 on 13 May 2017

1/3 on 13 May 2018

On 22 December 2015, the Board granted an
aggregate of 2,385,000 Award Shares to 65 Selected
Participants who are managerial personnel under
the Scheme, of which (i) 400,000 Award Shares were
granted to 4 directors without initial grant price; (ii)
1,273,000 Award Shares were granted to 61 Selected
Participants, who are the senior management,
employed experts and core employees of the Group
without initial grant price; and (iii) 712,000 Award
Shares were granted to 29 Selected Participants
(some of whom overlap with those Selected
Participants mentioned in (ii) above) with the initial
grant price of HK$9.21 per share. The vesting dates of
these Award Shares are as follows:

1,125,000 Award Shares 24 December 2015
1,260,000 Award Shares 1/3 on 1 January 2017
1/3 on 1 January 2018

1/3 on 1 January 2019

BUBRMBNHARZRS @)

iR 2B &l ()
2015658250 EEERIBEZ
TEBEI3BREEAEERBHES
H 18,690,200 EE IR 17 » B
(i)440,000f B R D IR F4RES
MEL LR HE 5 (ii)4,639,2008%
HERDEFOREBERAEBESR
EBEAE ZTEEXRZLEEW
EEZHEHEMBNSRHERK K
(iii)3,611,0008% %€ B B% 10 &% F 445
BESEE (2 IRE(i) T U =R
SHEBER) ULTREERAEBR
12688 T - ELRBRHVNEEH
HAONT :

1,320,200 2016558 13H
READ
7,370,000/  1/3/A201655813H
KRR

1/312017%5813H

1/312018F5H13H

JA2015%F 128228 » ESERIBEZ
FFTEIMES R EBEAEERBHES
H$H2,385,000R LR 0 B
(i)400,000f R EN IR P X F4RES
ME L FHEW ; (1i)1,273,0008
BEROIZEFOIBBEBRAEESHR
EEAE ZTEREXRZRVEEWN
EEZHEMBOSREERK K
(iii)712,000/2 T B AR 10 1% F29R &
BoHE (oS HEEHEG)TAME
RSHEEE) YLPREERKES
f%9.218 T - ELEERHMNEEBA
B0 -

1,125,0000% 20155%F12824H
LR

1,260,000/% 1/3/20175FE181H
12 B AR 19

1/372018F181H

1/372019F181H
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

33.HARE-BASED PAYMENT 33.URONAZZXE @
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Share award scheme (continued) Izt R BT Sl ()
The Award Shares carry rights to dividends. REBROEEREME -
The following table discloses the movement of the TRIFEHZE2016F12831HILF
Company’s Award Shares granted to the Selected EEETEEZSEENAQARRBR
Participants for the year ended 31 December 2016 INEE - LK R20165F12831H
and outstanding at 31 December 2016: R ARATESRBIAR D ¢

Number of Awarded Shares

RBRHYE
Outstanding  Granted Vested  Outstanding
Category of at during during at Share price  Grant
participant 2016/1/1  theyear  theyear 2016/12/31 atgrantdate  price
420165 420165
1818 12A318  RLBH
SEEER BATE  ERRE  FREE  HATR kE RIEER
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Directors S 660,000 - (660,000 - 14.92 - 25/05/2015
Sub-total Nt 660,000 - (660,000 -
Employees B 660,200 - (660,200) - 14.92 - 25/05/2015
Employees == 3,611,000 - (1,203,664)° 2,407,336 14.92 12.68 25/05/2015
Employees &8 3,759,000 - (1,252,997) 2,506,003 14.92 - 25/05/2015
Employees E& 712,000 - - 712,000 8.98 9.21 22/12/2015
Employees &g 548,000 - - 548,000 8.98 - 22/12/2015
Sub-total N 9,290,200 - (3,116,861) 6,173,339
Total st 9,950,200 - (3,776,861) 6,173,339
*  For these Award Shares with initial grant price, the * RS SR (B R S R IR D
number of vested shares represent the number M= SBERKOSBEHAEES
of Award Shares that the relevant employees are RIS T L E R R 5
entitled to request the Company to sell. The relevant e - HEESENEMSZSETS
employees bear the risks and rewards of the shares 12 B ARG R R &
upon acceptance of the grant and payment of the BE®R MEEHRABRESNEE
grant price, and are obliged to refund the Excess HA%E R ATBER: - BB B S mA
in cash to the Company if the relevant employees NEBRIBESE o
terminate the services before the end of the vesting
period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

333.S HARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Share award scheme (continued)
The fair value with total amount of RMB77,974,000 of
the Award Shares is determined based on the market
price of the shares of the Company at the date of
grant, without taking into account any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions.

The Group recognised the total expense of
RMB23,298,000 for the year ended 31 December
2016 (2015: RMB41,762,000) in relation to the
Scheme, including an amount of RMB2,349,000 (2015:
RMB2,009,000) amortised from prepayment of share-
based payment as disclosed in Note 27.

34.ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS

On 30 August 2016, Pinyu entered into an agreement to
acquire the entire issued share capital of Ample Mighty
from CR Healthcare Group by the issue of 462,913,516
consideration shares by the Company. The Acquisition
was completed on 31 October 2016 and has been
accounted for using acquisition method. The fair value
of the consideration shares of the Company, determined
using the share price at the Acquisition Date, amounted
to RMBA4,982,600,000. Upon completion, CR Healthcare
Group holds approximately 35.70% of the issued share
capital of the Company as enlarged.

Ample Mighty is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in provision of
hospital consulting services and healthcare services
in Mainland China.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to RMB18,418,000
have been excluded from the consideration transferred
and have been recognised as an expense in the
current year, with the other expenses line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

BUBRMBNHARZRS @)

RpREIFTE (@)
BEARODAAEBELBARY
77,974,000t IR E H BHAR QT
BRHOTEEE  WESREARE R
FMSERRFBBIRMG -

BZE2016F12AN B ILFE - ZEEH
ZaT Bl R4A R X AR ™523,298,000
7 (20154 : A K#41,762,0007T)
BIEURMDARZEATEAREEN
AR%2,349,000T (20155 : AR
2,009,0007t) (FRANFTEE27 iR EE) ©

34. W BB ¥ %

2016588308 » Pinyus] M 1% -
mENEEEEWNBEENZ IR
TRA MEAERE AATIKE
17462,913,516IR R ER D - W iEE
1B A2016510A318 A& I AR AU
BEAR XARRERDHVARE
B RARWBABNKRE BAR
#54,982,600,0007C > U B8 & AKX &
EHBEREERELRATKEREN
2EITIRAL35.70% °

EHE-MRERRAT - HHEA
DX EBEEETERGEMBRELS
AR 3% % B ARG

8 B8 W BB B R A R %518,418,000T
EHREEZEREN  UEXRFER
RAEMX  ERHEHMERER —HR
GEEEREMEZEBAREAS
iR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

34. W R )
(i) RIEE R B TBRIEER
EHRIZABHNAAER (REE

34.ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS (continued)

(i) Fair value of identifiable assets acquired and

liabilities recognised at the Acquisition Date,
determined on a provisional basis:

Fair value of net identifiable assets of

BEEEE) B

FriE AR AR EEFE

Amount
recognised
at the date of
acquisition

RRUES B HIRY
CHEREH
RMB’000
ARBET T

subsidiaries acquired o REE
Property, plant and equipment M~ B KRR 105,630
Intangible assets BEEE 1,728,026
Loan to a sponsored hospital o —EE IR ENER 47,293
Interest in a joint venture R—REeE R mzER 507,949
Inventories 78 226
Trade receivables FEWR B 5 FhE 26,409
Prepayments and other receivables TR RIE R E At EW R IE 1,699
Amounts due from related parties P& U B B 75 TR IR 1,958
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEEY 101,003
Trade payables FESE 5 FIE (692)
Other payables HAth FEASFRIE (23,584)
Amounts due to related parties FE A A 75 FRIR (381)
Payables to the Sponsored Hospitals FE A5 22 3% B8 e 7R TH (384,957)
Deferred tax liability EEHAE (319,089)
Net identifiable assets AIRRERETFE 1,791,490

REERS BREZRE - H
il & Wi AR IR DA K% FE IR BE Bk 05 =R 0B
MAFERERSNBTEBA
R #30,066,0007T ° 1R & 1 W
BEYNREMGT  BHATER
EHNEHNRERERT -

The total fair value and the gross contractual
amounts of trade receivables, other receivables
and amounts due from related parties at the
Acquisition Date amounted to RMB30,066,000.
The best estimate at the Acquisition Date of
the contractual cash flow not expected to be
collected amounted to nil.

P BB B /B8 2 B) ATl Bl B B FHE
MARBEDREEREEMT
B RAMMENU GBI EEEHY
¥ BEERE BEEERR
—EEERRzEREWEEH
MR R EEETHMGEE -

The fair values of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiaries are estimated on
a provisional basis, awaiting the completion of
final valuation to assist management’s estimates
in relation to fair value of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and interest in a
joint venture at the acquisition date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

34.ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS (continued)

(ii) Goodwill ( l)%ﬁ%
Goodwill determined on a provisional basis was REEEEEENHEBNT
as follows:
Amount
recognised
at the date of
acquisition
RIS BEIR
EREREHE
RMB’000
ARET T
Consideration transferred 2EZERE 4,982,600
Less: Net assets acquired B BERBEEFE (1,791,490)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEXKMEENEE (3,191,110)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Ample Mighty
included amounts paid for the benefit of expected
synergies, revenue growth, future market
development and the assembled workforce of
Ample Mighty. These benefits are not recognised
separately from goodwill because they do not
meet the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets. In addition, as mentioned
in Note 21, certain amount of goodwill was
resulted from the increase of share price of the
consideration shares issued by the Company at
the Acquisition Date.

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisition is
expected to be deductable for tax purpose.

Net cash inflow on the Acquisition:

KBEFEEENHDEBEERS
BERNBRIME - KRB R ~ KK
MEHEREFRELE IMX
TSR - ZEZERRKEE
ARNBELEENEREE &
WAREBERE SRR o LI #
M1 ETEHEERET)
HREWE BEBA QAT METR
BEROWRE LA -

WEEMELE cEmERBAAEHN
BRI ©

WEBHR SRR -

RMB’000
ARBET T

ERBRER
RESEYER

Cash and cash equivalent
balances acquired

101,003

Included in the loss for the year is profit of
RMB19,042,000 attributable to the additional
business generated by Ample Mighty. Revenue for
the year includes RMB23,536,000 generated from
Ample Mighty.

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

34.ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS (continued)
(ii) Goodwill (continued)

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2016, the Group’s revenue for the year would
have been RMB1,603,689,000 and loss for the
year would have been RMB1,496,621,000. This
pro forma information is for illustrative purposes
only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of operations of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2016,
nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.

In determining the “pro-forma” revenue and profit
of the Group had Ample Mighty been acquired at
the beginning of the current year, the directors
have

 calculated depreciation and amortisation
of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets acquired on the basis of the
provisional fair values arising in the initial
accounting for the business combination
rather than the carrying amounts recognised
in the preacquisition financial statements;
and

« determined borrowing costs based on the
funding levels, credit ratings and debt/equity
position of the Group after the business
combination.

EPERBRERARAT —2—7

6. WEBET =)
(i) & )

fis UK B8 74201618 1H 5B X
AEB2FEREZABARY
1,603,689,0005t ° FEEFEIEA
A R #1,496,621,0007T ° %18
BEREHFHZA XF—F
REAEBER2016F1818 K
Bl REERESZEEIR
mREE TIESEAYHREKE
F=gods =B: 1 I

EEEAEEMARNFEFEDUNE
Bz EZ] WERABEARE
R EED

. EREHERSOETIRA
SHEEMELENERMEL
RABE (7 =2 U8B AT B 3%
REPEEAVKREDSE)
HATWBYE  BMERRE
HEHEFEE CITEREBHEE
TEE R

- ERAREEXRBSHEN
ESKF - ERAFARKE
% BRAHROR 18 B R A
ETEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

35.NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY 35. kLB AT

Summarised financial information in respect of the BREEE R ESHNAERIE
Group’s non-wholly owned subsidiary, Jian Gong 2EM B A BRE T B EE R
Hospital that has material non-controlling interests EEHFG|UWT o R2016FE K 2015F12
is set out below. The non-controlling interests owned B31B ' IR EZTEER=EER
20% of ownership and voting right in Jian Gong FTERRIZRERN20% o T B i&
Hospital as at 31 December 2016 and 2015. The BRI EREERRNATEBYE S
summarised financial information below represents ZH o

amount before intragroup eliminations.

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2016 2015
20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T

Current assets REEE 410,788 403,009
Non-current assets ERBEE 293,454 287194
Current liabilities i Jh=Ri (88,915) (113,015)
Non-current liabilities FREBEE (19,578) (2,924)
Total equity EREZ 595,749 574,264
Non-controlling interests By 119,151 114,854
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

35.NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY 35.3f2EMBAT @

(Continued)

For the year ended
31 December
BZE12A31BLEE
2016 2015
20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T

Revenue and other income WA & HEAth U 2 603,722 581,542
Expenses B (567,958) (554,692)
Profit for the year FER)E 35,764 26,850
Other comprehensive expense FEHMPEMAX

for the year (20,332) -
Total comprehensive income FE2EKRALE

for the year 15,432 26,850
Profit attributable to JE 4 AR R I FE AL RS

non-controlling interests 7152 5,369

Net cash generated from operating  &E& ZBFTISREFEE

activities 52,751 43,956
Net cash used in investing activities R&EZFBFIARESEE (25,132) (33,488)
Net cash inflow BHE&RANER 27,619 10,468
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

36.CAPITAL 36. R A
Number of Share Share
shares capital capital
RDEE [HEN [SEN
HK$°000 RMB’000
FHET ARET T
Ordinary shares of S REE0.00025
HK$0.00025 each BTZEBR
Authorised EE
At 1 January 2015 and M2015F1B1H R
31 December 2015 and 2016 2015 % 20165
12831H 1,520,000,000 380 302
Issued and fully paid BRITRAR
At 1 January 2015 and 20151818
31 December 2015 K2015%12831H 833,763,000 209 166
Shares issued for acquisition AUWEERERmRT
of business (ii) Z &0 (i) 462,913,516 116 101
At 31 December 2016 2016128318 1,296,676,516 325 267

Notes:

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, (i)
the Group repurchased its own shares through the
Trustee on the Stock Exchange as follows:

No. of
ordinary shares Highest

Month of repurchase

L AEIDERY) HERHE

January 2015 201514 2,144,000
September 2014 2014%9H 3,102,500
October 2014 20145108 6,583,000
November 2014 20145118 2,159,000
December 2014 2014%12A 4,200,000

The shares repurchased were held by the Trustee
pursuant to the Company’s Share Award Scheme as
detailed in Note 33.

(i) On 31 October 2016, 462,913,516 consideration (ii)
shares with par value of HKD0.00025 per share were
issued and allotted to CR Healthcare Group as the
Acquisition’s consideration (Note 34).

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016

Pt

REE2015F & 2014F12831H
IFFE AEEBBEANBEX
FrEgE EAF R MHMIBERAT ¢

Price per share Aggregate
BRER consideration
Lowest paid
RS RIK ENERE
HK$ HK$ HK$°000
BT B 7T FET
14.28 13.91 30,218
13.21 12.62 39,999
13.29 12.74 85,896
15.65 15.08 32,965
15.10 14.89 62,996

PR BE @A A7 B 5 FEAR R AR A BIRAX
D EZENRTEIRA - FHISSIRESS »

MR20165F10H31H - AEE A
B B3 7T M Bi462,913,5160%
KRB 5 (B HEE0.00025% 1)
ERWIEZ RE (FizE34)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

37.0PERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases

37.K<EHE
AEFHEEEBA

As at 31 December
M12831H
2016
20164

2015
20155
RMB’000
ARET T

RMB’000
ARBT T

KEHETHRERENR

Within one year —FR 2,858 2,748

In the second to the third year EZEFE=F
inclusive (BREEREWE) 940 718
3,798 3,466

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for the office premises leased. These
leases were negotiated for lease terms of one to three
years at fixed monthly rental.

38.CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
The following is the details of capital expenditure and
other commitment contracted for but not provided in
these consolidated financial statements.

Capital expenditure BEARRX
In respect of acquisition of property, BRIWEYE -

KEHENREASEREER NS
FrmENNEE  ZEHER 2=
FHEE REFAERERD -

38.BEA K HARE
LUTACTHNEBEARRAGEESHHEHRR
FTREBENEARATEHR EMRAIES
,% °

As at 31 December
M12831H
2016
20164

2015
20155
RMB’000
ARET T

RMB’000
ARETT

plant and equipment Ee A ] 9,803 10,626
Other commitment Hith &g
In respect of Repayable Investment BEEREIOTHHZEMIOTERR
Amounts to I0T hospitals under EHNBERBERESE
IOT agreements (Note 7) (F5E7) 538,000 570,000

EHRARFIRERAR —T-AFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

39.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group is involved as defendants in certain
medical disputes arising from its normal business
operations. Management of the Group believes,
based on legal advice and considering the insurance
coverage, the final result of these lawsuits will not

.JEEE
AEBEAREES EREKEEH
EENETEREMUYD AEEEE
EBHE EREEERREZERR
EE  ZERANRKRERETEY

AEBNMBRANEBELEEAT

274

have a material impact on the financial position or

& Rt UbIE B o

operations of the Group and accordingly, no provision

is made in this regard.

40.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
401Names and relationships
Names and relationships with related parties are

as follows:

LO.BEBE R R Z
401 278 K B3R

T

Relationship

Yan Hua Hospital

B &

Entity controlled by a shareholder

B RERFTIEFIER

UMP Beijing A joint venture

BoBa® (b5 BERT

CR Wugang A joint venture

= HE BE QT

UMP An associate
FEBEBIER =N

Subsidiaries controlled by

China Resources National Corporation

(“CR National”)
FEERANT ([EBEQT])
iRk B AR

Fellow subsidiaries of CR Healthcare Group
which has significant influence over
the Group
HARGEEELEAFENEREREE
CENC =N

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016F 12331 HILFE

40.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40.BEEB(A RS (&)

(continued)

40.2 Related party balances 40.2 BEEE 5 &R ()
At the end of the reporting period, other than RIEER - BREGFE7AERIOTR
the transactions with Yan Hua Hospital and BEE T EBMC BN 5 R EW
receivables from Yan Hua Hospital under the 10T MACBIT AN  AEBBEUT
arrangements set out in Note 7, the Group had the REEE S AE e

following balances with related parties:

Amounts due from related parties PEUR ER B 5 FRIE

As at 31 December

M12831H
2016 2015
20164 20155
Trade in nature RMB’000 RMB’000
BESME ARETT ARBT T
Yan Hua Hospital AR 66,468 57,500
The following is an aged analysis of amount due TXEINAREHRIZZZEHE
from related parties which is trade in nature EFUE’JFEHQEQH?‘FE ZMERE
based on the invoice date at the end of the ZERES AT

reporting period:

As at 31 December
M12831H
2016 2015
2016%F 201545

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T

Within 60 days 60K A 53,570 38,579
61-180 days 61£180XK 12,858 18,921
181 days -1 year 181RENFE 40 -

66,468 57,500
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

40.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

276

(continued)

40.2 Related party balances (continued)
The Group had the following balances of
receivables from Yan Hua Hospital under the IOT
arrangements at the end of the reporting period:

LO.BEBE RS (@)

40.2 BAEE 5 458 ()
REBNRE BARESUTRE
10T 22 HE FE Uk e {1 B8 B Zh B B9 45
&

As at 31 December

128318
2016 AONES)
20164 20155
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T ARET T
Receivables from Yan Hua Hospital FEUR AL B& PR TR IE 32,291 32,353
Less: current portion included B EF AR RIER
in prepayments and other H t FE R FRIE K
receivables BIEREB (3,262) (3,262)
Non-current portion JEENERER 29,029 29,091

Non-trade in nature

FEZME

Subsidiaries controlled by CR National

As at
31 December
2016

R2016%
12831H
RMB’000

ARBTT

EHAD R TR B LR 1,760

The amounts due from the related parties are
denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest-
free and recoverable within one year. As at 31
December 2016 and 2015, the Group did not have
amount due from related parties which was past
due.

FEURERHE S FIBUA RKEGHE -
AEIRE ZERITR—FRIK
B o 20164 K2015%F 12831
B AEBEWECHHNEKRS
B 75 FRIE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

40.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40.BEEB(A RS (&)

(continued)

40.2 Related party balances (continued) 40.2 BEEE S 45 8% ()
Amounts due to related parties P BB 5 FRIE

As at 31 December
M12831H

2016 2015
20164 20155

Trade in nature RMB’000 RMB’000
BS5HE AR¥T T AR¥T T

Yan Hua Hospital LB 34 -

As at
31 December
2016
120164
12831H
Trade in nature RMB’000
HZHtH ARET T
Subsidiaries controlled by CR National = BB QT FTEFINHE A T 3,114
As at
31 December
2016
20165
12H31H
Non-trade in nature RMB’000
FEZFMHE ARET T
Subsidiaries controlled by AN T FTE S
CR National SRl NG 3,766
The above amounts are unsecured, interest free FRFRIBEAEER  RERERE
and repayable on demand. ERIEE -

FPEEBRERARAT —F—7
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

40.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40.BBtA RS (&)

(continued)

40.3 Related party transactions LI X 5
Trade in nature E5HE

For the year ended
31 December
BZEZ12A31BLEE
2016 2015
20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T

Hospital management BiREER
and consulting services B RIS
Yan Hua Hospital A= 35,798 31,767

For the year ended
31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2016 2015
20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT  ARETRT

GPO business GPOZ
Yan Hua Hospital FILEERR 278,074 248,601
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

40.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40.BEEB(A RS (&)

(continued)

403Related party transactions WIBEBE R X5 ()
(continued)
Trade in nature (continued) BEH5HE ()
During the period from 31 October 2016 M20165F10A31H (Y88 B HA)
(Acquisition Date) to 31 December 2016, the Z£2016%F12A31H LB E - &K
Group entered into the following transactions SEEEFAEEKE D ANVEE
with related parties that are not member of the FEIMUTRS :
Group:

Period from
31 October 2016

(Acquisition Date)

to
31 December 2016
$20165F10H31H
(WEERE) =
20165%12H31H

LEHARS
RMB’000
ARBET T
Purchases of Goods RBER
Subsidiaries controlled by CR National BB N B TSI B A | 4,942
Non-trade in nature £ 5 E
During the reporting period, other than the trade- RIBEWE - BRI FRSARE
in-nature transactions with Yan Hua Hospital |OTZ BB (L ESR I 1T B 5
under the IOT arrangements set out in Note 7 and HER SR M3 HEEe
the investment injection to UMP Beijing set out in () SEABRBH > AEE
Note 23, the Group had the following significant EUTEABEERS

transactions with related parties:

For the year ended
31 December
BE12A31BLEE
2016 2015
2016%F 20154

Non-trade in nature RMB’000 RMB’000
FEZHE AR®T T AR¥T T

Yan Hua Hospital LB - 10,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

40.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40.BBtA RS (&)

(continued)

403Related party transactions WIBEBE RS (8)

(continued)

Non-trade in nature (continued)

In January 2015, the Group made a prepayment
to Yanhua Hospital for the establishment of the
advanced clinical testing and laboratory center
project. The establishment was suspended due to the
management reassessment to the project and the
prepayment was refunded to the Group in April 2015.

IEFME (#)
R2015F 18 - AEE M@K E
B Sk A5 AR AR 37 5 #E A9 i BRI B
REBRPOBEEWENR - %8
BEEREEBEHTEmE(E
15 A FE{S R E R2015%F4 A
RIEBTAEH o

40.4 Compensation of key management W4FTEEBEAES 25

personnel
The emoluments of key management during the
year is as follows:

FREEZEEASZHFHEATIM
T

For the year ended
31 December
BE12A31BLEEE
2016 2015
20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBT T

Short-term employees benefits EH{EEEF 21,155 8,987

Equity-settled share-based R A5 B DU T RBA X
payment expense - 8,180
Post-employment benefits BiEEEA 230 131
21,385 17,298
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

41.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern, while to maximise the return to the equity
holders of the Company through optimisation of debt
and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from the prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net of
cash and bank balances and equity attributable to
equity holders of the Company, comprising capital and
reserves.

The management reviews the capital structure
on a quarterly basis. As part of this review, the
management considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
the recommendation of management, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through issue
of new shares, issue of new debts as well as the
repayment of existing debts.

LEXERER

FEENEAEEEERALEEE
RERELE  AREBELERY
1 BRANAESFEAFRREAE
| AEENBEEREEEFRIT—
B o

REBNEARBEBERERRITHE
BRURARDAEREEARERES
(HAIRAREBARK) HIFHE -

EEESETEEEARE FRILE
BEEN-—Ho EEESZERER
BARESHERERENERE - RiE
EEENER  AEESERBITH
B BITHEBREEREEBER
BARREBNEEYE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

42.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets: SREE
Loans and receivables

(including cash and cash

ERRRYRIE
(BRAERAEEEY

REMTEARSHRERER

SR T EER
As at 31 December
M12A31H

2016
20164

2015
20155
RMB’000
ARET T

RMB’000
ARBTT

equivalents and certificate B 1FFEE)
of deposit) 1,628,423 1,253,625
Financial assets at FVTPL FVTPLE BB E 66,400 74,990
1,694,823 1,328,615
Financial liabilities: TRIEE
Amortised cost B 672,948 226,348

Financial risk management
objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, amounts due from related parties, loan
to a sponsored hospital, other receivables, certificate
of deposit, cash and cash equivalents, receivables
from 10T Hospitals, short-term investments, trade
payables, amount due to related parties, payables
to the Sponsored Hospitals and other payables.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

TRIEMREE B ERBR

FEEFESMIACRERBESR
TE - FEURESEE S FOR - O — R
BRIRENER - HEWFIR - £
# BRERBELEEY  KREIOTE
Btz WA - BHIRE - BNES
FOE -~ BANEBLRE - BYSEHRE
Btz RIER AR FRIE - ZE T/
TENFBREBNMERE - H&
ZeRMTIAMEBENRAREEDSEA
e~ FERRMABESER - TX
BN MR EZSRERIBER -
EHEEEREEZSRE - URR
RSB R RBEE B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

42.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
Financial risk management
objectives and policies (continued)
Currency risk
The Group undertakes certain financing and operating
transactions in foreign currencies, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. The Group does not
use any derivative contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management manages
its currency risk by closely monitoring the movement
of the foreign currency rates and considering hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should such
need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
during both years are as follows:

ReMIARERERERE

(80
tREKREREREREXE
()

HEERR

REBUIINEETETREREER
5 BELEERIMNE R o AEERE
REATESRNEMERRR - E12
EEB R ERINEE RSB I NAE
FEREREITERINE AR EE
B EbR -

REBRMEFEUMNETENES
BEENRERESENRABENTR

Liabilities Assets
=N gE
As at 31 December As at 31 December
M12H831H M12831H
2016 2015 2016 2015
2016%F 201545 201645 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTRT ARBTRT AR¥ETT
US dollar ESpr - - 33,461 3,396
HK dollar BT - - 7,633 87,509

Currency sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to the risk of fluctuations
in the HK dollar and US dollar against RMB.

ERGRED
AEBEIEARETRETEARY
ERRE AR

HHERERERERAT —T— A FR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

42.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
Financial risk management
objectives and policies (continued)
Currency sensitivity analysis (continued)
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% (2015: 5%) increase and decrease in RMB
against HK dollar and US dollar. 5% (2015: 5%) is
the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation to RMB at year end for a 5%
(2015: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive
number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit
where RMB weakens 5% against the relevant currency.
For a 5% strengthening of RMB against the relevant
currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit, and the balances below would be

GREMTERSEERER

(#8)

cREAMEEEERBEK
(&)

BEGURRE DT (#)
TRAVNAEEHARKEELR
EnEERABEREBES% (20155 :
5%) B 8 =X E 5% (20155 :
5%) REEBEANOETEEEAE
WMEIMNERIRISATANSREL =
WRKEEBEHIINEERSEIREE
BT o BUBE D IEBIEUINE
FHMEMREHERIER  WRFRIEZ
5% (2015%F : 5%) WINEE =&
BEBREARBNERETHE T
REJIMEERB  ARBHERE
M ES%E M ZREME - A
RELZHBEEAES %S EH RS
ELXZERANTE BTSSR
BEhEH -

negative.
HK dollar US dollar
BT E
As at 31 December As at 31 December
M12831H MW12A31H

2016
20165

RMB’000
ARBET T

Profit or loss

AEREE 382

2015
20155
RMB’000
ARET T

2016
20165
RMB’000
ARET T

2015
20154
RMB’000
ARBT T

4,375 1,673 170
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42.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to receivables from IOT hospitals and loan
to a sponsored hospital and cash flow interest risk
in relation to variable-rate bank balances (see Note
29), which carry prevailing market interest rates and
short-term investments (see Note 28). The Group
currently does not have a specific policy to manage
their interest rate risk and have not entered into
interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure, but will
closely monitor their interest rate risk exposure in the
future.

The management of the Group considers the
fluctuation in interest rates on bank balances and
short-term investments is insignificant. Therefore, no
sensitivity analysis is presented.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through
its investments in short-term investments. The
management manages this exposure by only investing
in investments operated by banks and financial
institution with good reputation and by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risks.

The management of the Group considers the
fluctuation in fair value changes on financial products
is insignificant, taking into account the short-term
duration of such financial products.

The management of the Group considers the
fluctuation in fair value changes on mutual funds
is insignificant, taking into account that the Group
intends to sell them in the near term.

REMIBERSHEARER

(#8)

cTREREIERBE
(&)
M = [ B2
AEEEEEEWIOTE T FIE R [
—EERBREHNERBEEN AR
f‘fﬁﬂzﬂffﬁuﬁﬁiﬁiﬁﬂzﬂmn
g (RBITTHNERFR) GG2EHM
$29) REHKRE (B2 R HE28)
HENEESRERERER - AEER
A RGBIEEERNZRERABRK
R FETVRZEEHRZ G LT
Rk BRESEVERESER
R 9 1) 2= L B o

ZRHEXK

AEEERERARTEBRENR
EWFEHBETEA - B - B8
2 PSRRI B4 ©

Ht E 5 R
$EILL&§E"L HREmmE R E
fbERER EEEEBEREH
EERHNERTREMBBEFNIR
& RESHETERR2REAKN

SEMESERIER

AARZETRERNWERMLE &K
BEREERAZSTRMERNAIAE

EEEBRETK

AARASEESEEBALEZSH
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42.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 42.2RiTEAERESREARER

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the management of the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each material individual debt at the end
of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the management of the Group
considers that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks.
However, the credit risk on cash and cash equivalents
and certificate of deposit is limited because the
majority of the counterparties are banks with good
reputation.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on short-
term investments which represent investments in
financial products operated by banks.

(#)

THEAREEEERER
()

B e
FEERBEERBRBORERSH
FHTER u%mﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
% RERSEHBRRR AL
R A NIREE -

RREEERR FAEEEEECDR
E-EEEAREEEFERE  F8
EMRAEMEEREN  BARKIIRE
TBREAMRER - ttih - AEEE
EEAESHREMAREFEZTHEXER
BEENATREEHE  BREMRT TR
ElEREHRER D RERE © BItm
T AKEEEERARLEENGEE
e BEERE -

HNEREZRRTHRABES - &
SEEHEEESTER - AW A
RARZBREHFHAEERFNR
T BERBRSEEVURTREN
EERBER -

$EIEE"L HRE (BREARTT
BEENEHER) NEESTEAR -
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42.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk in respect of
amounts due from the 10T Hospitals and the Sponsored
Hospitals, including receivables from the 10T Hospitals,
loan to a sponsored hospital, trade receivables from
all the IOT Hospitals and the Sponsored Hospitals,
and amounts due from related parties. Details of
the balances with 10T Hospitals, balances with the
Sponsored Hospitals and amounts due from related
parties are set out in Notes 7 and 40.2 respectively.
The Group monitors the exposure to credit risk on
an ongoing basis and credit evaluation is performed
on each of the IOT Hospital, the Sponsored Hospital
and the related party. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the Group have reviewed the recoverability of
receivables from the I0T Hospitals, loan to a sponsored
hospital, trade receivables from all the 10T Hospitals
and the Sponsored Hospitals, and the amounts due
from related parties to ensure that follow-up action
is taken timely. Therefore the Group’s management
concludes the exposure to bad debt is not significant.
Under such circumstances, the management considers
that the Group’s credit risk is not significant.

Liquidity risk

In management of liquidity risk, the Group’s
management monitors and maintains a reasonable
level of cash and cash equivalents which deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the impacts of fluctuations
in cash flows. The management relies on the cash
generated from operating activities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

REMIBERSHEARER

(#8)

cREREEEERERE
(%)

=ERRE (&)

7E FE URIOTES B X 18 g FE W S v 58
= SR IE (35K B IOTES fR =~ FE UK 2K
H - EREREMNEE
3B BT I0TEE B K 52 3 B2 B 9 FE UK
B 5 HUE R W RN S 20E) S E
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z2016F 12831 L EE

42.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 42.2RiTEAERESREARER

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (%)

(continued)

Financial risk management TREREEEEREE
objectives and policies (continued) (%)

Liquidity risk (continued) mENE 2R (#)

On demand Total
or within 1-3 3 months undiscounted  Carrying

one month months to 1 year 1-5 years »5 years cash flows amount
BEXY, RER
—fiAR 123fHF  MEAE1E  1E5F SENE  RENEER  KEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTn  ARETR AR¥TR  ARETR

As at 31 December 2016 142016123318

Financial liabilities tHEE

Trade payables LR 145386 97317 56 - - ws 24275
Other payables At 24,384 21,550 7,999 - - 53,933 53,933
Amounts due to ERBHLTE
related parties 5,280 1,213 421 - - 6,914 6,914
Payables to the EREHBRIE
Sponsored Hospitals 369,344 - - - - 369,344 369,344
Total h 544,392 120,080 8,476 - - 672,948 672,948

As at 31 December 2015 120155128318

Financial liabilities SHEE

Trade payables EHESRE 12576 83,817 - - - 209543 200543
Other payables HtbEfF0E 10,083 6,722 - - - 16,805 16,805
Total st 135,809 90,539 - - - 226,348 226,348
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

42.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
Fair value of financial instruments
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets are determined
(in particular, the valuation technique(s) and
inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements
are categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements is

observable.
Fair value as at
Financial assets (RMB’000)
RUTHEBZAAREE
EHEE (AR®TFT)
31 31
December December
2016 2015
20164 20154
128 31H 12H31H
Mutual funds (Note 28) - 45,000
HEESE (KizE28) - 45,000
Financial products 66,400 29,990
(Note 28)
emEm (MEE28) 66,400 29,990

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in these consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

Fair value
hierarchy

DNABEEEBHR

Level 1

A

Level 2

A —

== -

REBMTEAREHEAEKRER

(#8)

TR TAQIREE
FEERIEMEEREREHNRZ
DAEEE - TR BBEMNMAE
EZEETREEZAREE (BRIZ
HESERFAFERBAE) - RIZF
ENAREBERRANGAEZTERERE
RESARBEFNEIIBTREAR

BEBRZES -

Valuation technique(s)

and key input(s)

HEFTEREEGAE

Quoted bid prices in an active
market

® SEE IS RE

Determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted
cash flow analysis. Future cash
flows are estimated based on
return rates.
KAAREEREARURRATRE
DITETE o RRBEEREERNEH
RZRAEET o

&

EEAR  HZSHFSUBHRRTPRE
BERAIRcEHEERSRMAE
ZIREERKRE 2 A AEEEY -
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43.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 43.&ADTBTXTEMHE D TWE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (E]

The Company has the following principal subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2016:

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power

held by the Group
RrEEBEZFERER
Place and date of Issued and fully REZELA
incorporation/  paid share capital/ 31 December 31 December
Name of subsidiaries establishment  registered capital 2016 2015
HMEL,/ ERORBRRE  2016F 2015%
(NGRS Rt K A S / ARmER 128318 128318
) )
Beijing Phoenix The PRC RMB500,000,000 100.00 100.00
t5BEE HE ARE
500,000,0007T
Jian Gong Hospital* The PRC RMBA420,552,600 80.00 80.00
=gk 12 May 2003 AR®
HE 420,552,6007
200358128
Beijing Wanrong Yi kang Medical The PRC RMB3,000,000 100.00 100.00
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd * 20 March 2000  AE#3,000,0007C
TREREREEAR AT HE
200358120
Beijing Phoenix Jiayi Medical Devices The PRC RMB4,000,000 100.00 100.00
Co., Ltd.* 9 December 2004 A &¥4,000,0007
tREREREESHAR AT i
2004F 12890
Beijing Phoenix Easylife Healthcare The PRC RMB1,000,000 100.00 100.00
Consulting Co., Ltd ¥ 18 January 2008 AK¥1,000,0007C
TRBEREEERMEAERAR HE
2008%1H18H
Beijing Phoenix Easylife Technology The PRC RMB500,000 100.00 100.00
and Trade Co., Ltd* 28 April 2011 AK#500,0007
TREEEENEEFRAF HE
2011545 28H
Beijing Easylife Xinnuo Laundry The PRC RMB500,000 100.00 100.00
Service Co., Ltd ¥ 110ctober 2013 AK¥500,0007T
T EREEEHARREERA T HE
2013F10811H
Easylife Yongxin (Beijing) Trade Co., Ltd* The PRC RMB500,000 100.00 100.00
BEXEHREERRAR 8 November 2013 AR¥500,0007
HE
2013%11A8H

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016

A20165F12A8318 » XA THEAHA U
TEEMBLAR :

Principal activities

[nvestment holding and
hospital management

REZRNEREE

General healthcare
services

FRBERERK

GPO business
GPO¥7%

GPO business
GPOERH

Other hospital-derived
services

HAEh 07 R

GPO business
GPO¥7%

GPO business
GPO%#

GPO business
GPO¥£7%
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Continued

Name of subsidiaries

WELRER

Unison Champ Limited
(“Unison Champ”)
Unison Champ Limited
(“Unison Champ”)

Pinyu
Pinyu

Phoenix Healthcare International
Investment Limited

EEBRERRERRLA

Star Target Investments Limited

EBREARAT

Phoenix Baoding Healthcare Hospital
Management Co., Ltd.*#

BEREEREEARAT

Beijing Phoenix United Innovation
Management Consultlng Co., Ltd*"#
L RBEAT A E AR AT

Beijing Phoenix Yisheng UCC Clinic
Management Co., Ltd*"*

L RBBREDFERAR AT

Beijing Phoenix United Innovation
Information Technology Co., Ltd*#

TRBEBAEERMERAA

Beijing Lihetang Healthcare
Management Co.,Ltd**
ITRBNERBERERA A

43.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Place and date of

incorporation/

establishment
MY/

Rt H R A S

The BVI

7 January 2013
ABERES
2013%1A78

The BVI
3January 2013
ABERES
2013% 1830

Hong Kong

28 August 2012
B

2012584 28A

Hong Kong
3January 2013
2013%1A3H

The PRC

1 April 2016
HE
201654518

The PRC

20 April 2016
E
2016547 20H

The PRC

5 August 2016
HE

2016%8 750

The PRC

20 April 2016
TE
2016544208

The PRC
1June 2016
HE
20166418

15 )
Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
REBRE 2 frEERR
lssued and fully REZELH
paid share capital/ 31 December 31 December
registered capital 2016 2015
ERORAREA  2016F 20155
/ AMER 12A31A 12A31A
% %
USD1 100.00 100.00
(EFH
USD1 100.00 100.00
%5
usD1 100.00 100.00
(EFH
USD1 100.00 100.00
(EFH
USD5,000,000/ 100.00 N/A
USD8,000,000 @R
5,000,0005 7t/
8,000,000% 7
RMB10,000/ 100.00 N/A
RMB20,000,000 FER
AEK#10,0007/
AK#20,000,0007
RMB10,000/ 100.00 N/A
RMB120,000,000 @R
AK#10,0007t/
AK#120,000,0007T
RMB10,000/ 100.00 N/A
RMB10,000,000 FEH
AR#10,0007/
AK™10,000,0007
RMB1,000,000 100.00 N/A
AK#1,000,0007T TER

FREREBFRERARA

G3EARTETENE QTN

Principal activities

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REER

Hospital management
BhEE

Other hospital-derived
services

Rt &5 TR

Other hospital-derived
services

A0 074 B

Other hospital-derived
services

SRR 074 B

Other hospital-derived
services

Rt &5 TR
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43.PARTICULARS OF
SUBSIDIARIES OF TH

(Continued)

Name of subsidiaries

WELFER

Ample Mighty**
Eiﬁ**

China Resources Hospital
Investment Limited**

EEBRAEERERA T

Shenzhen Yukangrun**

A mHERERERARA T

CR Hospital Investment**

EEBRRETEERAT

China Resources Hospital
Management Co., Ltd**
EHERERERAT

CR Hospital Holding**
ERBRERERAT

999 Clinic**

ZHERFMDE (RY) BREAAT

PRINCI
E COMP NY

Place and date of  Issued and fully

incorporation/  paid share capital/
establishment  registered capital
SMEY/  BRARAZRE
b HR A /&R
The BVI USD50,000
28 October 2011 50,000% 7T
ABEREE
2011F10828A
Hong Kong HKD1
28 October 2011 BT
i
2011104 28R
The PRC RMB10,000
21 January 2016 AE#10,0007
el
2016514218
The PRC USD40,000,000/
23 October 2012 USD100,000,000
HE 40,000,000% 7t/
2012F10823R 100,000,000
The PRC USD2,000,000/
9 May 2014 USD10,000,000
HE 2,000,000% 7t/
20145890 10,000,000% T
The PRC RMB52,000,000
20 July 2012 AK#52,000,0007
e
2012%7R20R
The PRC RMBA4,000,000
25 November 2015 A& #4,000,0007T
e
2015%11A25A

IAPNBEEMEB RN

5
Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
AEERA IERER
B EL adl]
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
20165 2015%
12A31H 128318
% %
100.00 N/A
il
100.00 N/A
TER
100.00 N/A
TR
100.00 N/A
FER
100.00 N/A
TER
100.00 N/A
TR
100.00 N/A
TEA

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016
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IERE

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Hospital consulting
services

Bl AR

Hospital consulting
services

BREAR%

Hospital consulting
services

BRtahRE

General healthcare
services

RRBRRH
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43.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
*  The entities are subsidiaries of Beijing Phoenix.

** The entities are acquired through the Acquisition
during the year as disclosed in Note 34.

#  The entities are subsidiaries newly established during
2016.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Notes:
(i) Al of the subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are
registered as limited liability companies under the

PRC law.

(i) None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities at the end of the year.
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44.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 447K /A 5] B 78 48 S % 42 & 35
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY =

At 31 December
®W12A31H
2016 2015
20164 20155

Notes ~RMB’000 RMB’000
e ARBTT  ARETT

Non-current assets IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBARNERE (i) 6,076,813 1,186,450
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR S~ RIFRIE 137,071 117,133
6,213,884 1,303,583
Current assets REVEE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREZEY 18,640 9,587
18,640 9,587
Current liabilities REERE
Amounts due to subsidiaries B~ RFIE 31,788 19,649
Dividends payables FES R E - 83,823
Other payables HAth FEAS 58 16,673 823
48,461 104,295
Net current liabilities REBEEFEE (29,821) (94,708)
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEERAEBEE 6,184,063 1,208,875
Capital and reserves PRAS R (%1
Share capital [ &N 36 267 166
Share premium and reserves B RERGHE (i) 6,183,796 1,208,709
Total equity 4R 6,184,063 1,208,875

294  China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F 12831 AL FE

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s balance
of investment in a subsidiary mainly represents its
investment cost in Unison Champ of 1 US dollar
(2015:1 US dollar), the deemed investments arising
from the waiver of amounts due from subsidiaries
pursuant to the relevant written statements made by
the Company during 2016 and during 2014 and the
equity contribution to subsidiaries arising from the
share based payment arrangements involving equity
instruments of the Company.

44%@%%&%%&%%%
)

(i) 72016%F12H318 * "ARIA—
B ARIMNEEEHREEIEHR
M Unison ChampkJ & & K A 13
70 (20155 1% L) AREAR
NAR20165F & 2014F EH 948
E AR B AFR
EHMEENMBRIERE  UESR
ARrlERTENURDNRE
HFMEARNRNBARRELE -

(i) Movement in the Company’s reserves is as follows: (i) AARMBEEEHOT -
Treasury ~ Share-based
Share Capital share payment  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BAEE BAGE ERRORE UROARRE ZHER @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETR ARETn ARBTn ARETR ARET:R
At 1 January 2015 R2015E1818 1,497,815 - (175,684) - (33,511) 1,288,620
Purchase of shares under RERA R R 2
Share Award Scheme BERR - - (23,892) - - (23,892)
Recognition of equity-settled ~ BRRERLE
share based payments DY E - - - 39,753 - 39,753
Shares vested under RIER R R BT 2
the Share Award Scheme BEZRG - (2,877) 58,848 (8,438) - 47,533
Dividend RE (115,079) - - - - (115,079)
Loss and total comprehensive  EEEER
expense for the year PEARAE - - - - (28,226) (28,226)
At 31 December 2015 R2015812831H 1,382,736 (2,877) (140,728) 31,315 (61,737) 1,208,709
Issue of shares for acquisition  BRBEERM
of business BIZBRH 4,982,499 - - - - 4,982,499
Recognition of equity-settled ~ HRARERLE
share based payments DYGRNES - - - 20,949 - 20,949
Shares vested under the Share  RIERA EE
Award Scheme HE P v - 3,745 26,545 (30,290) - -
Loss and total comprehensive ~ EEEER
expense for the year PERZAE - - - - (29,534) (29,534)
Others Hity 7 - 462 - - 1,173
At 31 December 2016 72016%128310 6,365,946 868 (113,721) 21,974 (91,271) 6,183,796
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Financial Summary -

n Accordance with

International Financial Reporting Standards

B ME - RiE

£)7

PR B 5 5 5 ZE B

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A3MBLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
20165 20155 20145 20135 20126
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT AR¥ETR ARETR AR®Tn AR®TxR
CONSOLIDATED RESULTS mE%E
Revenue & 1,532,831 1,372,267 1,206,265 887,354 758,032
Profit (loss) before tax BAIFIE (E8) (1,452,481) 247,968 316,759 143,009 147,278
Income tax expense FrEwimx (47,331)  (75,554) (77,230)  (46,865)  (36,544)
Profit (loss) for the year FEAE (BB) (1,499,812) 172,414 239,529 96,144 110,734
Attributable to: LU AL -
Equity holders of the ANAEEREA
Company (1,506,964) 167,045 230,051 89,992 101,088
Non-controlling interests RS 7152 5,369 9,478 6,152 9,646
(1,499,812) 172,414 239,529 96,144 110,734

As at 31 December

W128318
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
20164 20155 20145 20134 20128
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®ETR AR®ETR AR®ETn AR¥TR
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BWEE 6,448,336 2,255,469 2,011,906 2,124,038 1,020,860
Total liabilities =R (1,090,806) (392,737) (276,662) (408,184) (443,102)
5,357,530 1,862,732 1,735,244 1,715,854 577758
Equity attributable to DT ALEG#ES
Equity holders of the AATEBEREA
Company 5,238,379 1,747,878 1,627,112 1,617,200 485,256
Non-controlling interests RS 119,151 114,854 108,132 98,654 92,502
5,357,530 1,862,732 1,735,244 1,715,854 577,758
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“Ample Mighty”

“Articles of Association” or
“Articles”

“Audit Committee”

“Award Shares”

“Beijing Easylife”

“Beijing Jiayi”

“Beijing Juxin Wantong”

“Beijing Phoenix”

“Beijing Wanrong”

Definitions

Ample Mighty Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of BVI
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Healthcare Group

the articles of association of our Company adopted on September 30,
2013 and as amended from time to time

the audit committee of the Board

such Shares awarded pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the
maximum number of which shall not exceed 5% of the total issued
capital of the Company as at July 7, 2014 and 1% of the total number
issued Shares to each of the Selected Participant as at July 7, 2014

Beijing Phoenix Easylife Healthcare Consulting Co., Ltd. (It RE B =4+ 5
BEiT7Z#HEMR2QF), a limited liability company established under the
laws of the PRC on January 18, 2008, and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
our Group

Beijing Phoenix Jiayi Medical Devices Co., Ltd. (t BB EFEEEWME
PR A 7]), formerly known as Beijing Phoenix Luoke Medical Technology
Co., Ltd. (It RBE/E = B2 MiBRAF) and Phoenix Wanfeng Medical
Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (BIE\BI#E 2K (It = )ER 2 7)), a limited
liability company incorporated under the laws of the PRC on December
9, 2004, and a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

Beijing Juxin Wantong Investment Co., Ltd. (I R BEERKREBR LD
Al), formerly known as Phoenix United Hospital Management (Beijing)
Co., Ltd. (Bl E ¥ B2 B px & B(dt ) B R 2 7)) and Phoenix Healthcare
Investment Management (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (BlEEEREEE(LLT)ER
‘A 7]), a limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC
on June 9, 2003, and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Beijing Wantong and
a connected person to our Company

Beijing Phoenix United Hospital Management Consulting Co. Ltd. (3t Bl
B S BREEZHAGRAT), formerly known as Beijing Phoenix United
Hospital Management Co., Ltd. (It R B E B S B EEBR A7) and
Beijing Phoenix United Hospital Management Joint Stock Co., Ltd. (dt=X
BEBSEEERMDAMRDE), a limited liability company established
under the laws of the PRC on November 6, 2007, and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company

Beijing Wanrong Yikang Medical Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (dt RE R EE
B2z 5PR/AF)), a limited liability company incorporated under the laws
of the PRC on March 20, 2000, and a wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company

EPERBRERARAT —2—7
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Definitions

[ |

[ESERA[ ]
[ERR4AR =5 [4RA1]

[EREEE ]

[ R AD

Memass |

bR |

[t B EEE ]

El2=v=0= 0

[ ]

BEARAR  —BARBEABERFESEEEIMBULNLE - BER
EREENEZENB AR

RN T R20135F9 A 30 BRI FAEHERT A B ZRZAA)

EEEEREES

RERORBFEETFNZERSD  HESHEEFSBBERATAR
201477 B ITRALEHMNS% R A2014E77ARIT TR ER
SHEEDBRITROLEN1%

tEEE R BERMNBHERAT  —ER2008FE1H188 REH
B EERINERSELT  AAEER2EHNEBR T

trREEESERESMARLE FIELRBEES B2 MERAF
KEEBEESZRM (1bx) ARQF) » —ERN2004F12898 RE
PEDEREEMR LN BREEAT » ARQAZEMBELR

tRBEERRERRLAR (AIBEEKEZERERE (X)) BRAF
FEEEEREEE (5) BRAA) - —BR2003FE6 9B BEF
B R LNERSELT  ALtZERNZEMB AT RAQFE
BEAL

tREEBSERERZABRAT (AIBLRERBRSBREEAR
NEARLEBEEMSBREEROAERLE) - —ER2007F1186H
RIBPEERERINEREERT  BARAA2EMNBE AR

TR BREEREEGR AT —BN2000FE38208 REPEEEF
MAEALWERSELAT  BEARATANEZEHMB LT
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“Beijing Wantong”

“Board” or “Board of
Directors”

* BV | ”
“CAGR”

“CG Code”

“Chairman”
“Chief Executive Officer”
“Chief Financial Officer”

“China” or “PRC”

“CITIC Medical”

“CITIC Kingview”

“Company” or “our Company”

or “CR Phoenix”

“Companies Ordinance”

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

“CR Bank”

Definitions

Beijing Phoenix Wantong Investment Management Co., Ltd. (1t BB E
EHREEEARAT), formerly known as Phoenix Hospital Management
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (Bl B & BT & B(dt =) B R 2 7)), a limited liability
company incorporated under the laws of the PRC on April 24, 2002

the board of Directors of our Company

the British Virgin Islands
Compound Annual Growth Rate

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules

the chairman of our Board
the chief executive officer of our Company
the chief financial officer of our Company

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this report,
Taiwan, the Macau Special Administrative Region and Hong Kong

CITIC Medical & Health Group Co., Ltd (F=EBEREEXEBERAT), a
company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability

CITIC Kingview Capital Management Co., Ltd. (FESHREELEEERE
{E/27]), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability, the
shareholders of which are CITIC Trust Co., Ltd., CITIC Capital Holdings
Limited and China CITIC Limited

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Company Limited (&
BEEEERAERAT]), a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability on February 28, 2013

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules, or where the
context requires, refers to Ms. Xu Jie (&), Ms. Xu Xiaojie (#&/)\$E), Mr.

Xu Bao Rui (8 &) and Speed Key Limited or any of them

China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co., Ltd.
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Definitions
e

[t=EE ]

[E5g
[REBERES
[EEFERE]
MesERsa
[EER]
[T
[ERMHE]

[ e

[FhEEE&

[hE8R4 ]

[ARE = [EERE]

PN

2R

[ BRgEBIRT

LtREEERKREEEARAR FIBEEERER (X)) ARL
8]) - —ER2002F4 24 ARIBFHENEREEMAR LN BREMERF

ADTEER
e Pagal

EATHEE

LT RBIKE AR REATE
EFRETR

ARRTRBR

ANTERHHE

REARANE  BiAREMS  TEESE BFRITHRERE
B

TEBERREXREEARAT  —BARPEEMKINBREER
5

TEREEAEEAREMELT  —HRPEEMKALINEBERIF
BRRDBIBHPEETAEREELF  PEEXFZRERQIARPEHR
EARLH

FHREBRERBMRLT 0 —EN2013F2828R EMESHSEM
B MNBEREMERE

HARHER] » BRIUEMB ERNE B EHIFE622F 1 A KA

BEELTRAFMBFZANEERE  BIXEME @ BRE - B/E
% B Kk Speed Key Limitedsi A {EA— 75

HREERRITROBRLA
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“CR Healthcare Group”

“CR Holdings”

“Director(s)”

“Eligible Persons”

“Executive General
Manager”

“FY2015”
“FY2016”
“GDP”

[T

“Group”, “our Group”,
“We” Or “us”

“Hangzhou Hospitals”

“HK$” or “HKD” and
“cent(s)”

“Hong Hui”

“Hong Kong”

“Huizhou Hospital”

Definitions

China Resources Healthcare Group Limited, a company incorporated
under the laws of Hong Kong

China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (FEBE(&EE)ER 2 A), a
company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, which is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of China Resources Co., Limited (ZE B D BIR
A7) and the indirect holding company of CR Healthcare Group

the directors of our Company or any of them
any of the (i) key management personnel including the Directors and
senior management of the Group; (ii) employed experts as nominated by

the Board; and (iii) core employees of the Group

the executive general manager of our Company

the financial year ended December 31, 2015
the financial year ended December 31, 2016
gross domestic product

our Company and its subsidiaries

Hangzhou Plastic Surgery Hospital Co., Ltd. ({1 /N B X B Bz B R 2
Fl), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CITIC Medical, and its branch, Hangzhou
Hand Surgery Hospital (/N F 7MELEEBR)

Hong Kong dollar and cent(s) respectively, the lawful currency of Hong
Kong

Hong Hui Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (AL E 2GR A F)), a limited liability
company established under the laws of the PRC on March 15, 1994, a
supplier of the Group

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
CITIC Huizhou Hospital Co., Ltd (F 5 E N EX B R 2 7), a company

incorporated in the PRC with limited liability, of which 60% is owned by
CITIC Medical and 40% is owned by CITIC Kingview

>l

i
+
53d

EPERBRERARAT —2—7

301



Definitions

[EHEREREE ]

(s ]

[E%]

[EE/AL]

[ AT ASTE |
[20155 Bt £ |
(20165 B4 |
[BER4EERE]
[A&EHE ]

[N E& P |

[T ] A 584l ]

[41% ]

[&E]

[ EMER |

EHEEEERRAT  —BRETBEEIMALNDF

£5 (KE) BRAF > —HREBEMULNERAT » HEBRSD
BRABNZEMNBLAREHEESENEZEERAT

ARABRERESHEMN—LES

FAHEREEAE  BREAKENESRSRAEERE  (VHESE
RENERER ) R(i)AEENZMESR

AARPITRKRE

BZE2015F 12831 B LB BEFE
BE20165F 12831 HLLMBFE
BREERE
RAEREMBRE

MMNBEERERQF  —BARTPBEEMRLNEREETQAARPE
BENZEMBLTR - URED QTN FIRER

DRIREBIRAL - BREEEH

ABEEGRAT  —ER1994F3F15B8RBEHRBEERLNER
EEAR  AREEN— (U HED

PEBEBEHTHRE

PEZMNERBRLF  —BARPEZEMRLNERAF - H60%K
AT EEERES  40%REMTEHREES
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“IFRSs”

ulOTn

“I0T hospitals and clinics”

‘Jian Gong Hospital”

“Jing Mei Hospital”

‘Jing Mei Hospital Group

‘JV Company”

“Listing Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Mentougou Hospital”

“Mentougou Hospital for
Women and Children”

“Mentougou Hospital for
Women and Children 10T
Agreement”

“Mentougou IOT Agreement”

Definitions

International Financial Reporting Standards
the “invest-operate-transfer” model

third-party hospitals and clinics, which we manage and operate under
the IOT model

Beijing Jian Gong Hospital Co., Ltd. (Gt IR = ERERAE]), a limited
liability company established under the laws of the PRC on May 12,
2003 and a subsidiary of our Company, and its predecessor, Beijing
Construction Worker Hospital (It XM EE T AEPRR), before its reform

Jing Mei Hospital (It = = £ & B # & Fx), a not-for-profit hospital
established under the laws of the PRC in 1956 and wholly owned by
Beijing Coal, which we began managing in May 2011 pursuant to the
Jing Mei 10T Agreement

collectively, Jing Mei Hospital and seven Grade | hospitals and 11
community clinics affiliated with Jing Mei Hospital

UMP Phoenix Healthcare Limited, a limited liability company
incorporated in the BVI, which is held as to 50% by Pinyu and 50% by
UMP China

the date on which dealings in the Shares first commence on the Stock
Exchange, i.e. November 29, 2013

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

Beijing Mentougou Hospital (& ;X ™ P9 38 /& & & BR), a not-for-profit
hospital established under the laws of the PRC in 1951 and wholly
owned by the Mentougou District government, which we began
managing in June 2010 pursuant to the Mentougou |IOT Agreement

Mentougou Hospital for Women and Children (F9 38 & & & 40 1R & FR)
incorporated under the laws of the PRC in 1983 and wholly owned
by the Mentougou District government, which we began managing in
September 2014 pursuant to the Mentougou Hospital for Women and
Children 10T Agreement

the IOT agreement we entered into with the Mentougou District
government on September 23, 2014

collectively, the IOT agreement we entered into with the Mentougou
District government on July 30, 2010, as amended
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Definitions

[ ERRR O T3R5 28
roTJ
[1OTEEPR K 32 Fr

[fE2= R

[ SUR BT

R ek = E

[BEQ

i

Il

[Em A

[ Em#R Al

[FIsER Bk

[FISRE RS 4 R A2

[ PSR B IR 4D IR R
10T

[FISEBIOTIHE

B PR B 7 3 15 2E B

[RE - &8 -BRXI#EKX
AEBRABIOTERNEEMEENE =T MAEER N2
TETREERERAT (RAAILEZTERT AERKR)  —BR
2003F5 B 12AREBEFEEAETMALNEREE LA » HARLD MK
BRAaE

TR REEEAER —SHLIERREZEEENELRNER  ©
1956 F RIBHBIEEKY - AEBRBERFEIOTIHZER2011E5ARHE
HEHETERE

TEBRERAMBN LR -—REEREMNNMXHLED TSR

BEMEBEERAR  —HEABHEREEIMRINEREEL
A » APinyuRUMP China%&#5k%50%

BROERERENREBEXFESER (B12013F11829H)

BMAEs EmRA
tEmMAEERER  —XHNEEERTEEEENIEL RS
15T FERBPBIEERY - AEBREMEEIOTIHZEN20105F6 8
HREHETER
FISEE R IE R G2 - P1983FERIBHEEEFMA YL - HFIEERE
BRE2EHA  AEERBPABEEERHRERIOTHZENR201459A8
HHREHETER
AEBEREMEEERFN2014F98 23T 2I10THE

$%l£ﬁiFﬁ EEBEEBITN2010F7 8308 5T L MIOTHH & (£185T) W
oy i
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“Mentougou TCM Hospital

IOT Agreement”

“Mentougou Traditional

Chinese Medicine Hospital”

“Model Code”

“NHFPC”
“Nomination Committee”

“Pinyu”

“Prospectus”

“PMM”

“Remuneration Committee

“Reporting Period”
“RMB”

“Selected Participant(s)”

“SFO”

“Share(s)”

“Shareholder(s)”

“Share Award Scheme”

“Share Option Scheme

“Speed Key Limited”

“Stock Exchange”

Definitions

the IOT agreement we entered into with the Mentougou District
government on June 6, 2012

Mentougou Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital (It =M FISEBEHE
B%), a not-for-profit hospital established under the laws of the PRC in
1956 and wholly owned by the Mentougou District government, which
we began managing in June 2012 pursuant to the Mentougou TCM
Hospital IOT Agreement

The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

National Health and Family Planning Commission of the PRC
the nomination committee of the Board

Pinyu Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in the BVI on
January 3, 2013, a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

the prospectus of the Company dated November 18, 2013
pharmaceuticals, medical device and medical consumables
the remuneration committee of the Board

the period from January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016
Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

Eligible Persons selected by the Board in accordance with the terms of
the Share Award Scheme

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to
time

share(s) with par value of HK$0.00025 each in the capital of our
Company

holder(s) of the Share(s)

the share award scheme of the Company adopted by the Board pursuant
to a resolution passed by the Board on July 7, 2014, as amended by the
Board on May 25, 2015

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by the Company
pursuant to a resolution passed by our Shareholders on September 30,

2013

a limited liability company incorporated in the BVI on January 30, 2013,
a Controlling Shareholder and a connected person to our Company

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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Definitions

[FISER & B8R 10T thh % S REEEPEBERBUTN201256 86 HFI L MI0TH &

[ PS8R & 2Pk | b EtRHMEBREFER  —ZHMBREERR2ERENFERE
Bt - BMOS6FRBPBIERAY - AEBRBFAREBEETERIOTH =
201256 BT HETER

[E2%E<p Al H EHRAIME10TE L HBITAESETRES RS NEETE

KR | FEBEREENTEEEZEES

[REZEEE] b EEEREEET

[Pinyu | S Pinyu Limited » —f42013F 1 B3R E RBARHEZME LN ER
EEAR AXRARNZENE AR

[ARER ] b AAEHEAR2013F11 A 18HNEBRER

[Em ~ BERMK b R BESRMREREN

B AFEM

[FMESE ] B EXZEFMESS

[R5 HAR b 20161 1HZ2016%F12A31HER

[AR¥ ] ¥ AR HEEEEY

[BESEE ] | ESTERBROBBIAIEAIRENSERAL

[ & REE RG] | i;&iﬂﬁﬂﬁ%sﬂ B REBERA (RTREET - BRI UE ML E

[ B AARRAFHEREEC.000258 T R4

NE B SUESZ =N

[ B 0 22 @ =t &1 | EEERBESEN2014F7A7EBBN —BERBRMEMANE AT
BB Al KESER2015F5825H185]

[ BB AR T2 B ﬁ’ﬁ?ﬁiiﬁﬁ’\zmsigﬁ B0HBBHRFRBRERMRANAVIERE

[Speed Key Limited ] S —RBNR2013F1AB0R ERBAERBEEMRINEREETLF - A
APREZERBRREEEAL

R B BERBERZMAERLAE
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Definitions

S
=5
“Syndicated Loan the agreement we entered into with a consortium of lenders led by

Agreement” Deutsche Bank AG on February 4, 2015, whereby the Company was

granted a facility in the aggregate sum of US$150.0 million with a
repayment term of three years (which is extendable for another two
years after the initial three-year term), the interest rate of which is
determined with reference to the three-month London Interbank Offered
Rate plus 3.15% per annum

“True Point” True Point Holdings Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in
the BVI
“UMP China” UMP Healthcare China Limited, a limited liability company incorporated

in the Cayman Islands, and a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of UMP
Healthcare Holdings

“UMP Healthcare Holdings” UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited (Bf & B £ B AR 2 7)), a limited
liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands, whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 722)

“U.S. dollar” or “US$” United States dollar, the lawful currency of the United States

“United States” or “U.S.” the United States of America, its territories and possessions, and all
areas subject to its jurisdiction

“Yan Hua Hospital” Yan Hua Hospital (1tZ7#{LEEPFT), a not-for-profit hospital established
under the laws of the PRC in 1973 and wholly owned by Yan Hua
Phoenix, which we started to manage and operate in February 2008
pursuant to the Yan Hua IOT Agreement and a connected person of our
Company

“Yan Hua Hospital Group” collectively, Yan Hua Hospital and 17 community clinics affiliated with
Yan Hua Hospital

“Yan Hua IOT Agreement” collectively, the IOT agreement we entered into with Yan Hua Hospital
Group and Yan Hua Phoenix on February 1, 2008, as amended

“Yan Hua Phoenix” Beijing Yan Hua Phoenix Healthcare Asset Management Co., Ltd. (It=X
FEEEEEEEE AR DA, a limited liability company incorporated
under the laws of the PRC on July 18, 2005, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Beijing Juxin Wantong and a connected person of our Company

(LT LT3

In this report, the terms “associate”, “connected person”, “connected transaction”, “subsidiary” and
“substantial shareholder” shall have the same meanings ascribed thereto under in the Listing Rules,
unless the context otherwise requires.
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Definitions
e

E e E

[True Point]

[UMP China

Rick=y-ps el

=
[=E |

[ ML E&Ex

[ (LB = E

[ #ALIOT i

[FECRBLE ]

M2015%F2840 » K PEBERELRRITHFENERS M ER ZOH
& Bt AAFERTFEH. 1%‘“%%%&%@ BERBA=F (ARK
NEIFHABEIMER2F) » FAELSE= FHMRBBTREEREM
3.15%EE

True Point Holdings Limited ' —EEXBH# RS TMRINER
Y E /NG|

UMP Healthcare China Limited » —EEHEHEXMALINERE
A8 TAKSEBRKERNEEZERBLAR

BEBBEEERLR —BEHEHSEMUINEREERT
HROREZ P L (RHARSE : 722)

£ XEDEEEY

EXNRERE  HAELRBHRZHEENMAEESE
R B  HREBE2ERENFERNER - R1973FRETE
B AEERBAIOTH EN2008F2 A R HETEEN
EE RARABEEAL
HCBRRENBN1 7B B FNGRE

AEBEMCEREBMH/IEEN2008F281HE] L WIOTH=
STE (BA5ET)

IR EEEREEESEARAT » —EHR2005F7H1881EEH
B RaMRINERETLAR  BAABEERNEZENBATAR
AANTBEEAL

EARBES  RXBEZHEMEN  [BBEA TEEAT THEXZ | - THBLAAIRIEFERRIERAFEL
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